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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital
Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the business review and outlook of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue was
approximately HK$262,463,000, representing a significant decrease
of 22.31% over that of HK$337,839,000 of the corresponding period
of 2019. The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$64,848,000 for the year under review,
representing a decrease of 26.98% over that of HK$88,810,000 of
the corresponding period of 2019. Basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company was 5.38 Hong Kong cents
(2019: 7.36 Hong Kong cents). As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
total assets and net assets reached approximately HK$268,582,000
and approximately HK$119,002,000 respectively. The decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the curtailment in business
scale of the mineral concentrates trading business relating to nickel
cathodes with reduced trading volume under the influence of the global
COVID-19 pandemic during 2020. The significant decrease in the loss
attributable to owners of the Company was primarily attributable to (a)
the profitability of the Group’s trading business has been deteriorating
resulting from the continued weakening domestic demand for the
nickel products and the imbalance of purchase price of nickel between
international and domestic trading; (b) the recognition of the fair value
loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
in an amount of approximately HK$4,075,000 (2019: fair value gain of
HK$346,000); (c) the Group did not receive any compensation income
from the minority shareholder of the Company’s indirectly-owned
subsidiary, Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji”)
(2019: HK$33,510,000); (d) the Group recorded net foreign exchange
loss in an amount of approximately HK$15,134,000 (2019: net foreign
exchange gain of HK$800,000); and (e) notwithstanding (a) to (d),
during the year under review, the Group did not incur fair value loss on
nickel future contracts (2019: approximately HK$75,763,000).

DIVIDENDS

According to the Company’s dividend policy and in order to reserve
sufficient funds for the Group’s future development and operation, the
Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
(2019: nil).
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REVIEW OF 2020
Trading of mineral concentrates business

The trading of mineral concentrates business segment principally
operates in two main aspects: (1) Nickel Trading — sourcing mineral
concentrates (branded electrolytic nickel cathodes) from Russia and
exporting them to the trading intermediaries and end customers in the
PRC and (2) Other Trading — sourcing mineral concentrates (mainly
gold, copper, zinc and lead concentrates) from Peru and selling them to
the customers in the PRC and Peru.

During the year under review, because supply from our major supplier
was tight due to inventory depletion, the Group was only able to
trade an aggregate volume of approximately more than 2,390 tons
(2019: 2,700 tons) of nickel, with a reduced revenue of approximately
HK$252,337,000 (2019: HK$287,589,000) being recognised by
the Group. During 2019, the Group also recognised revenue of
approximately HK$13,975,000 from electrolytic copper trading.
Meanwhile, as a result of the weakening of the domestic demand for
imported nickel products, which is mainly due to continued imbalances
in domestic and overseas nickel prices (i.e., the purchase price
from the upstream supplier continues to rise due to the shutdown in
production, while the prices from the downstream purchasers are weak
due to insufficient demand.), the Group experienced a drop in the
selling price of the product and recorded a gross loss of approximately
HK$1,058,000 (2019: HK$36,000). The Group will continue to stabilize
its revenue through this business segment and strives to strengthen its
revenue base with diversification into other mineral products.

In relation to Other Trading, as the Group had ceased the Other
Trading business in Ecuador starting from last year and the COVID-19
coronavirus outbreak has spread across the world since early 2020,
causing disruption to business and economic activities in Peru, the
Other Trading business of the Group performed unsatisfactorily and
during the year under review, the Group was only able to recognise
revenue in the Other Trading business of approximately HK$5,748,000
(2019: HK$16,584,000).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Securities investments business

As the securities markets in Hong Kong and the PRC since early 2020
have been vulnerable to a high level of uncertainty and volatility, there
emerged limited opportunities for securities investment. During the year
under review, the Group did not make any alteration to its investment
portfolio and continued to invest in 4,970,000 shares of a Hong Kong
listed company engaged in financial services. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group recognised relevant fair value loss on financial instruments
at FVTPL of approximately HK$4,075,000 (2019: fair value gain
of HK$346,000), the negative impact of which has been mitigated
with a dividend income related to the investment of approximately
HK$1,249,000 (2019: nil).

Construction material business

Hunan Taiji, engaging in manufacture and sale of slag powder
business in the PRC, has been in suspension of production since
August 2016 after its sole supplier served a written notice to suspend
the supply of granulated steel slag for production in March 2016.
There was no turnover generated since August 2016 and the Group
continued to incur operating loss in this business segment after the
suspension of the production. During the year under review, the Group
recognised a segment loss of approximately HK$20,799,000 (2019:
HK$24,166,000), representing a decrease of 13.93% compared to the
last year.

For the best interests of the Group, Hunan Taiji and its minority
shareholder, the Group has been continuing to pursue on the
negotiations with the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji on the
possibility for the resumption of Hunan Taiji’'s production and to seek
out any feasible solution from time to time. The Group is currently
considering to lodge an application as soon as practicable for
arbitration proceedings at the China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission against the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji
for requesting the compensation on, inter alia, failing to procure the
requested amount of supply of the granulated steel slag for production
since September 2016.

OUTLOOK

Since early 2020, the epidemic of COVID-19 has spread across the
PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of the
Group to some extent. In the face of the economic recession and
uncertainties, the Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. At the same time, we will
closely monitor how China’s macroeconomy and policies and changes
in the global economy, political landscapes, market environment and
competition will affect the Company, and continue to optimize its
operations to maintain the sustainable long-term growth of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
cautiously and comprehensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable business
development. The Group will also actively seek opportunities and make
effective use of the resources at our disposal and viable business
opportunities for development and optimization of its asset allocation.
Since 2019, the Group has been identifying investment targets mainly
engaged in property leasing and property management operations in
first-tier cities in the Chinese mainland, conducting due diligence and
commercial discussion adhering to the principles of loyalty, prudence,
and care, which has not been further advanced in 2020 affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic and considering the overall economic environment
and the Group’s own operational development. The Group plans to
expand the scale of the property investment segment and introduce
more profitable businesses in due course with an aim to improving
its profitability, increasing shareholder returns, and laying a solid
foundation for its future development.

Looking into the future, the Board believes that, leveraging on the
experience and resources of the Group’s controlling shareholders and
adhering to the principle of investing in value, the Group will strive
to consolidate and develop its existing businesses, while cautiously
and carefully focusing on and develop the Group’s investments and
business development opportunities at home and abroad, consistently
exercising cost and risk control, strengthening its financial position,
and striving to reduce the adverse impact of COVID-19 and the
downturn in global economy on its business operations. Leveraging on
the experience and support of the Group’s controlling shareholders,
the management is committed to grasping and creating business
opportunities in the trading business and property and securities
investments with a view to bringing long-term and substantial returns to
shareholders and the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
valued shareholders for their unwavering trust in the Group over
the years, to our business partners and clients for their long-term
support, and to the entire management team and all staff for their
efforts and dedication. We will continue to intensify our efforts to
strengthen and develop our existing businesses while remaining open
to explore new investment opportunities so as to achieve long-term
strategic transformation and will strive to create the best returns for our
shareholders.

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) recorded revenue of approximately
HK$262,463,000, representing a significant decrease of 22.31%
over HK$337,839,000 of last year. The decrease in revenue was
mainly attributable to the curtailment in business scale of the mineral
concentrates trading business relating to nickel cathodes with reduced
trading volume during the year under review. The Group’s gross profit
during the year under review was approximately HK$944,000 (2019:
HK$9,725,000). The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$64,848,000 (2019: HK$88,810,000),
representing a decrease of 26.98% over the same period last year.
The significant decrease in loss was primarily attributable to (a) the
profitability of the Group’s trading business has been deteriorating
resulting from the continued weakening domestic demand for the
nickel products and the imbalance of purchase price of nickel between
international and domestic trading; (b) the recognition of the fair value
loss on financial instruments at FVTPL in an amount of approximately
HK$4,075,000 (2019: fair value gain of HK$346,000); (c) the Group did
not receive any compensation income from the minority shareholder of
the Company’s indirectly-owned subsidiary, Hunan Taiji Construction
Material Co., Ltd. (“Hunan Taiji”) (2019: HK$33,510,000); (d) the Group
recorded net foreign exchange loss in an amount of approximately
HK$15,134,000 (2019: net foreign exchange gain of HK$800,000);
and (e) notwithstanding (a) to (d), during the year under review, the
Group did not incur fair value loss on nickel future contracts (2019:
approximately HK$75,763,000). Basic and diluted loss per share were
HK cents 5.38 (2019: HK cents 7.36).

OPERATION REVIEW
Trading of mineral concentrates business

The trading of mineral concentrates business segment principally
operates in two main aspects: (1) Nickel Trading-sourcing mineral
concentrates (branded electrolytic nickel cathodes) from Russia and
exporting them to the trading intermediaries and end customers in the
PRC and (2) Other Trading-sourcing mineral concentrates (mainly gold,
copper, zinc and lead concentrates) from Peru and selling them to the
customers in the PRC and Peru.

During the year under review, with limited availability of product supply,
the Group was only able to trade an aggregate volume of approximately
more than 2,390 tons (2019: 2,700 tons) of nickel, with a reduced
revenue of approximately HK$252,337,000 (2019: HK$287,589,000)
being recognised by the Group. During 2019, the Group also
recognised revenue of approximately HK$13,975,000 from electrolytic
copper trading. However, this product stream continued to enable the
Group to strengthen its revenue base with diversification into other
mineral products in this business segment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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During the year under review, as a result of the weakening of the
domestic demand for imported nickel product, which is mainly due to
continued imbalances in domestic and overseas nickel prices, (i.e.,
the purchase price from the upstream supplier continues to rise due
to the shutdown in production, while the price from the downstream
purchasers are weak due to insufficient demand), the Group
experienced drop in the selling price of the product and recorded a
gross loss of approximately HK$1,058,000 (2019: HK$36,000).

On the other hand, in relation to Other Trading, as the Group had
ceased the Other Trading business in Ecuador starting from last year
and the COVID-19 coronavirus outbreak (the “Epidemic Outbreak”)
has spread across the world since early 2020, causing disruption to
business and economic activities in Peru, the Other Trading business of
the Group performed unsatisfactorily and during the year under review,
the Group was only able to recognise revenue in the Other Trading
business of approximately HK$5,748,000 (2019: HK$16,584,000).

Based on the foregoing, the business of trading mineral concentrates
recorded a segment loss of approximately HK$3,025,000 (2019:
HK$2,281,000).

Securities investments

As the securities markets in Hong Kong and the PRC since early 2020
have been vulnerable to a high level of uncertainty and volatility, there
emerged limited opportunities for securities investment. During the year
under review, the Group did not make any alteration to its investment
portfolio and continued to invest in 4,970,000 shares of a Hong Kong
listed company engaged in financial services. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group recognised relevant fair value loss on financial instruments
at FVTPL of approximately HK$4,075,000 (2019: fair value gain
of HK$346,000), the negative impact of which has been mitigated
with a dividend income related to the investment of approximately
HK$1,249,000 (2019: nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Construction material business

Hunan Taiji, engaging in manufacture and sale of slag powder
business in the PRC, has been in suspension of production since
August 2016 after its sole supplier served a written notice to suspend
the supply of granulated steel slag for production in March 2016.
There was no turnover generated since August 2016 and the Group
continued to incur operating loss in this business segment after the
suspension of the production. During the year under review, the Group
recognised a segment loss of approximately HK$20,799,000 (2019:
HK$24,166,000), representing a decrease of 13.93% compared to
the last year. For the best interests of the Group, Hunan Taiji and its
minority shareholder, the Group has been continuing to pursue on
the negotiations with the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji on the
possibility for the resumption of Hunan Taiji’'s production and to seek
out any feasible solution from time to time. In view of the sole supplier
is a related party of the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji, the Group
believes that the resumption of production of Hunan Taiji remains
uncertain. In February 2019, at the request of the minority shareholder
of Hunan Taiji, a notice of response was served to Hunan Taiji from the
Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province, the PRC
(“Loudi Intermediate Court”) requesting to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of the joint venture agreement of Hunan Taiji due to the
prolonged disputes between the two joint venturers. In January 2020,
the Loudi Intermediate Court ruled that the application was rebutted.
The minority shareholder subsequently lodged an appeal to Higher
People’s Court of Hunan Province and in October 2020, it was ruled
that Hunan Taiji should be dissolved and in February 2021, the Group
received a civil ruling from the Loudi Intermediate Court requesting
for implementing a mandatary dissolution. Meanwhile, the Group had
lodged a retrial request with the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC,
and the Group is currently considering to lodge application as soon
as practicably for arbitration proceedings at the China International
Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission against the minority
shareholder of Hunan Taiji for requesting the compensation on, inter
alia, failing to procure the requested amount of supply of the granulated
steel slag for production since September 2016.

In 2019, the Group received compensation income in an amount of
approximately HK$33,510,000 for the supply shortfall for the period
from 1 January 2014 to 31 August 2016. During the year under review,
no such compensation income was received and receivable by the
Group.
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Coal mining business

As the revenue generated is unable to support its operating costs and
the production costs, the production of the two mines under the coal
mining business have been suspended since March 2019. Meanwhile,
Peru was adversely affected under the Epidemic Outbreak and the
relevant government has imposed certain restrictions throughout the
country since March 2020. Hence, the Group’s coal mines operations
in Peru have been greatly disrupted since March 2020.

During the year under review, this business segment recorded
revenue of approximately HK$119,000 (2019: HK$2,128,000),
representing a decrease of 94.41% as compared to the same period
last year and a segment loss of approximately HK$14,295,000 (2019:
HK$12,603,000), representing an increase of 13.43% as compared to
the same period last year.

Since the Group expects the production will continue to incur loss and
given the Epidemic Outbreak, the Group expects that the two mines will
not resume production until the economic recovery from the Epidemic
Outbreak. Nevertheless, the Group will consider to resume production
in 2021 as it is anticipated that the production would generate positive
cash flow to the Group.

Property investment and development

During the year under review, the segment of property investment and
development recorded a segment gain of approximately HK$3,101,000
(2019: segment loss HK$1,487,000).

Investment properties in Beijing

During the year under review, due to the emergence of rental surrender
and rent reduction, the rental income from property leasing in Beijing,
the PRC was approximately HK$4,112,000 (2019: HK$4,511,000),
representing a decrease of 8.85% compared to the same period last
year. These investment properties in Beijing recorded fair value gain
of approximately HK$1,970,000 (2019: HK$63,000) in respect of the
revaluation. The Group expects these investment properties in Beijing
currently held on hand will keep generating a stable rental income
stream and capture potential appreciation in future.

Property development in Peru

As the Group had sold the remaining two property units in Peru
during last year, during the year under review, the Group did not
record turnover of this business segment (2019: approximately
HK$5,022,000).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Others

Benefitting from the favourable policies implemented in the Greater Bay
Area and Shenzhen Pioneer Demonstration Zone (#3517 REL[R), the
Group has signed a property sales agency and consultancy agreement
(“Property Agency and Consultancy Agreement”) with Huizhou
Macrolink Jia Ye Property Development Co., Ltd. (BN T #EMEEE
HEF AR AR (“Huizhou Macrolink”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide property agency and industry consultancy services
(“Agency Services”) in connection with all property sales businesses
of Huizhou Macrolink, including but not limited to formulating business
plans, consultancy and feasibility analysis of the primary and secondary
property market, undertaking public relations matters in relation to
property sales projects and other procedures of obtaining government
approval, drafting and reviewing the sale and purchase agreements,
agency agreements and other agreements in relation to the pre-sales,
sales, mortgages and assignment of residential properties and assist in
undertaking the registration procedures of the sales of properties or any
other consultancy advice in relation to the general business, operation
and administrative matters of Huizhou Macrolink. During the year under
review, the Group recognised a commission income of approximately
HK$1,296,000 in respect of the Agency Services (2019: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total equity amounted
to approximately HK$119,002,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$178,967,000), representing a decrease of 33.51% compared
with that as at 31 December 2019. The Group’s current ratio as at 31
December 2020 was 0.71 (31 December 2019: 1.06). The Group’s
gearing ratio, expressed as a ratio of total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings to total assets as at 31 December 2020, was 0.11 (31
December 2019: 0.10).

The Group had no particular seasonal pattern of borrowing. As at 31
December 2020, the Group had secured bank loan, secured other
loan and unsecured other loan amounting to nil (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$2,465,000); HK$23,000,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$25,000,000) and approximately HK$5,980,000 (31 December
2019: HK$5,595,000), respectively. The secured other loan is
denominated in HK$, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and after
extension, the repayment date has been extended to January 2022.
The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB and interest-bearing
at 9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
totaled approximately HK$6,830,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$35,721,000), which were mainly denominated in HK$, United
States dollar (‘US$”), RMB and Soles.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had aggregate banking and
other facilities of approximately HK$32,568,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$41,097,000) and had unutilised banking and other facilities of
approximately HK$9,568,000 (31 December 2019: HK$13,632,000)
available for drawdown.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately HK$73,446,000. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$33,084,000 as at 31 December 2020. These events or conditions
may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure:

(a) Implementing comprehensive policies to monitor cash flows
through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

(b) Exploring the possibility of disposing assets of the Group to
enhancing its liquidity position;

(c) Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include
funding from a related company of the Group;

(d) Obtaining financial support from a related company to which
the Group was indebted in an amount of RMB16,000,000
(approximately HK$19,136,000) as at 31 December 2020.
Subsequent to 31 December 2020, that related company
provided further financial support by advancing RMB15,000,000
(approximately HK$17,940,000) to the Group. The related
company has undertaken not to request for repayment of the
total indebted amount for twelve months from the date of this
Annual Report; and

(e) Strengthening its operation by entering into a property operation
and management contract (the “Property Operation and
Management Contract”) with a related company of the Group,
thereby generating stable income and operating cash flows to
the Group.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account of the
above measures covering a period of fifteen months from the end of
the reporting period prepared by the management, as well as available
unutilised banking and other facilities as at 31 December 2020, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group would be able to
finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due or will be falling due in coming twelve months. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EAAERLF



4 5

-

EWBHBR DN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRGERE

REBFER ARRZEBEITRAIL E T E
g WNZE_ZTFE+_A=+—R80 " KAz %
1TEBREE 51,206,249,251 % °

fEESE
REEFERN AR ZEEZENB R T
Topshine Reward Limited{t! &Genuine Crystal
Limited ([ Genuine Crystal]) 2 2288 B 1TIEA ©
Genuine CrystalB —REEER QG WiHFH
Mighty Comforts Limited,Z100% 2 Z4T R « i
Mighty Comforts Limited&— R EZ/R AR I
BEFMEBEEREER QR Z100%E BT « M F
HMEERERAG A —HBREATIMNIL 2 IREE
f% A &) - 73 A Profit Land Property Development
PROLANDPRO, S.A.Z100%C % 17 f% 72X + Profit
Land Property Development PROLANDPRO,
SAAE—RRENZRIMAKL 2 AE -

B EXFTESN  REEEER - NEB Y &R
HEAEALD -
BEAREE

RZBE-_ZF+_A=+—H AEBIWESEKRE
KEE(ZCE-—NF+_A=+—H : &) -

WREHBREE

RZEBEZ—F_ANA  FUFEBIZEERER
~al (DRYIFER D) (KRR zEE2EWBAR)
BN ERERREARAR([FEHBRERERIEE]
FIVMEEBEERAR - B RYIFEBRRER
TE- - ANBEE-_Z-_WNFE_A+tHIt
2 -FHBE(REBD AR ERERIEERS
TEERXTEEMEREVEELEE  BEk
BHEUAREMRTS - RRIGHAEME - RIS ER S E
REZHELOERE  BMELKRENERERIEE
SEREIEZTHWEE -

R-E-_—F=ZFAA  ARREFEH T NE
¥REERRAR(EFDINEKHEEE H#H
Bt AARBRHGRAEBE mMESBKGR
EHETEBHRRRLEANDIBRE BRREB
186,000,000/ 7T ([ W EEETH]) °

KRB EETKE MEELEEARRRENE
BEERARNMAEENEBR AR
Jt o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, there has been no change in the issued
share capital of the Company and the Company’s number of issued
ordinary shares as at 31 December 2020 was 1,206,249,251.

GROUP STRUCTURE

During the year under review, Topshine Reward Limited, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of the entire
issued share capital of Genuine Crystal Limited (“Genuine Crystal”).
Genuine Crystal is an investment holding company and holds 100%
issued share capital of Mighty Comforts Limited, an investment
holding company which holds 100% issued share capital of Profit
Land International Limited, which is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong and holds 100% issued share capital of
Profit Land Property Development PROLANDPRO, S.A., a company
incorporated in Ecuador.

Apart from the above, there has been no material change in the
structure of the Group during the year under review.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no significant capital
commitments (31 December 2019: Nil).

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 8 February 2021, Shenzhen Macrolink Industrial & Trading
Development Limited (“Shenzhen Macrolink”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Property Operation and
Management Contract with Macrolink Development and Investment
Limited (“Macrolink Development and Investment”), pursuant to
which Shenzhen Macrolink agreed to provide property operation and
management, solicitation of business and tenants and other related
services in relation to certain owned and entrusted properties for
Macrolink Development and Investment for a period of three years
commencing on 8 February 2021 and ending on 7 February 2024 (the
“Service Period”). During the Service Period, Shenzhen Macrolink or
its shareholders shall have the right of first refusal to acquire the entire
equity interests of Macrolink Development and Investment or its assets.

On 5 March 2021, the Company entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement with Macrolink Asia Industrial Investment Limited
(the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the Company conditionally agree
to purchase, and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire
equity interests of Macrolink Development and Investment at a total
consideration of HK$186,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Property Operation and
Management Contract and all duties and obligations under the Property
Operation and Management Contract shall terminate immediately and
automatically.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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Further details of the Property Operation and Management Contract
and the Acquisition are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 8 February 2021 and 5 March 2021, respectively. Up to the date
of this Annual Report, the Acquisition has not been completed.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continued to adopt a conservative approach with respect
to treasury and funding policies, with a focus on risk management
and transactions that are directly related to the underlying business of
the Group. During the year under review, the business activities of the
Group were mainly denominated in HK$, RMB, US$ and Soles. The
Board did not consider that the Group is significantly exposed to any
foreign currency risk. The Group has not adopted any hedging policy or
entered into any currency derivative products. However, the Board and
the management will continue to monitor the foreign currency exchange
exposure and will consider adopting certain hedging measures against
the currency risk when necessary.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and investment properties with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$37,750,000 (31 December 2019: HK$42,370,000)
and HK$73,544,000 (31 December 2019: HK$69,643,000) respectively
have been pledged to banks and other lender to secure bank and loan
facilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the pledged
investment properties included an amount of RMB26,680,000
(approximately HK$31,910,000) (31 December 2019: RMB27,260,000
(approximately HK$30,502,000)) relating to security for the repayment
obligations of a connected person of the Company in the partial loan
principal amount of RMB8,000,000 and the related interest thereon,
which has been fully indemnified by the connected person. Details of
the continuing connected transaction are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 9 January 2020 and 10 February 2020.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The Group had 116 employees in total as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: 127) mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and Peru. The
number of workers employed by the Group varies from time to time
depending on the industry need and they are remunerated under the
employment terms which are based on industry practice. The Group
implemented its remuneration policy and discretionary bonus based on
the performance of the Group and its employees. The Group provided
benefits such as social and medical insurance and pensions to ensure
competitiveness.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

Details of the outstanding litigations are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

OUTLOOK

Since early 2020, the Epidemic Outbreak has spread across the
PRC and other countries and it has affected the business of the
Group to some extent. In the face of the economic recession and
uncertainties, the Group will pay close attention to the development
of the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. At the same time, we will
closely monitor how China’s macroeconomy and policies and changes
in the global economy, political landscapes, market environment and
competition will affect the Company, and continue to optimize its
operations to maintain the sustainable long-term growth of the Group.

On the premise of capital adequacy, the Group will continue to
cautiously and comprehensively identify investment and business
development opportunities for efficient and stable business
development. The Group will also actively seek opportunities and make
effective use of the resources at our disposal and viable business
opportunities for development and optimization of its asset allocation.
Since 2019, the Group has been identifying investment targets mainly
engaged in property leasing and property management operations in
first-tier cities in the Chinese mainland, conducting due diligence and
commercial discussion adhering to the principles of loyalty, prudence,
and care, which has not been further advanced in 2020 affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic and considering the overall economic environment
and the Group’s own operational development. The Group plans to
expand the scale of the property investment segment and introduce
more profitable businesses in due course with an aim to improving
its profitability, increasing shareholder returns, and laying a solid
foundation for its future development.

Looking into the future, the Board believes that, leveraging on the
experience and resources of the Group’s controlling shareholders and
adhering to the principle of investing in value, the Group will strive
to consolidate and develop its existing businesses, while cautiously
and carefully focusing on and develop the Group’s investments and
business development opportunities at home and abroad, consistently
exercising cost and risk control, strengthening its financial position,
and striving to reduce the adverse impact of COVID-19 and the
downturn in global economy on its business operations. Leveraging on
the experience and support of the Group’s controlling shareholders,
the management is committed to grasping and creating business
opportunities in the trading business and property and securities
investments with a view to bringing long-term and substantial returns to
shareholders and the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fu Kwan, aged 63, has been the executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company as well as the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Fu is currently
the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Macrolink
Holding Co., Ltd (“Macrolink”). Mr. Fu is a senior economist and has
over 30 years of experience in corporate management and business
strategy planning. Mr. Fu served as a Commissioner of Public
Security in Liling City, Hunan Province, China, the Deputy Secretary
of the Commune Party Committee, the Secretary of the Township
Party Committee, the Deputy Director of the Economic and Trade
Commission of Liling City, a director of the Municipal Foreign Trade
Bureau, the deputy general manager of Hunan Arts and Crafts Import
and Export Group, and the deputy leader of Social and Education
Work Team of the Provincial Party Committee in Liuyang City, etc.
Also, Mr. Fu was appointed as the executive director and a member
of Standing Committee of the China Federation of Industry and
Commerce (2B T8 ), and a director of Political Affairs Committee
of China Federation of Industry and Commerce (& B T BBt 2 B 5%
BZB8€), a member of Advisory Committee of China Federation
of Industry and Commerce (2B T ZHZ E <) and the vice
president of the 10th China Federation of Industry and Commerce (&
Bl Tr5H%) . Mr. Fu worked as the vice chairman of the 11th China Civil
Chamber of Commerce (FERE A E), and was a member of the
11th, 12th and 13th National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, and the president of the Hong Kong China
Chamber of Commerce. Mr. Fu was appointed as the vice chairman of
the board of directors of Central South University and Beijing Foreign
Studies University. He has been honored as “the National Outstanding
Socialist Builder”, “the China’s Top Ten Outstanding Entrepreneurs”,
“China’s Economic Figures of the Year”, “the Outstanding
Entrepreneurs of Private Enterprise in 40 years of reform and opening
up of China” and “the New China’s Top Hundred Outstanding Hunan
Figures in 70 years” (T Bt +EAFHZHMAWE). Mr. Fu
is currently an executive director of Macrolink Culturaltainment
Development Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited, a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Zhang Jian, aged 47, has been the executive Director of the
Company and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently the senior vice president of Macrolink and the chief controller
of the integrated management department of Macrolink. Mr. Zhang has
more than 20 years of experience in investment banking, corporate
operation and business management. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and law from Jiangxi University of Finance and
Economics and a master’s degree in business administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is currently the general
manager of the Company and also acts as directors of two subsidiaries
of the Company.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Zhang is currently an executive director of Dongyue Group Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange), the Vice President of Keda Clean Energy
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and an
executive director of Macrolink Culturaltainment Development Co. Ltd
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. Zhang Bishu, aged 51, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Zhang is currently the senior vice
president and chief accountant of Macrolink. Before joining Macrolink,
Mr. Zhang served in state-owned enterprises and PRC government
bureau. Mr. Zhang joined Macrolink in October 2004 and was
employed as the deputy financial officer of Macrolink, the chairman of
Macrolink Weihung Food Company Ltd. ((rEBEBRERERAF),
a director and general manager of Jiayuan Cobalt Holdings Co., Ltd.
(EREEEB BB AR, the chief financial officer and a director of
the investment department of Macrolink and the chairman of Macrolink
Holding Group Financial Limited Liability Company (3T 2 B 12 j% &=
EHEAEREMAE). Mr. Zhang is also a certified accountant and
registered tax agent in the PRC. Mr. Zhang is also an executive director
of Dongyue Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange) and a director of Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd.

In addition, Mr. Zhang currently also acts as an executive director of
Liaoning Chengda Co., Ltd. (FE 2 A7 B R 2 7)) (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Sichuan Hongda Co., Ltd. (\9)I| %=
ERM AR R R (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
Sailun Group Co., Ltd. (BE@W&EEKRHBER 2 A) (@ company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange), Asia-Pacific Property & Casualty
Insurance Co., Ltd. and Daxinganling Rural Commercial Bank.

Ms. Liu Jing, aged 45, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Ms. Liu is currently the senior vice
president of Macrolink, the president of the investment department
of Macrolink, the chairman and the general manager of Changshi
Investment Co., Ltd., and the general manager of Macrolink
International Investment Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu joined Macrolink in
1998. Since then, Ms. Liu has worked in winery, real estate and
gas companies under Macrolink. Ms. Liu also served as the chief
financial director of overseas finance department of Macrolink.
Ms. Liu is currently an executive director of Shandong Organosilicone
Materials Co., Ltd. (a company listed on ChiNext of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange). In 1998, Ms. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting from Xiangtan University in Hunan province. Ms. Liu is also
a certified accountant in the PRC and acts as a director of a subsidiary
of the Company.

Mr. Chan Yeuk, aged 62, has been the executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2018. Mr. Chan is an economist and the
current director of Macrolink and Macrolink International Investment
Co., Ltd. Mr. Chan started working in 1976 and worked as a worker
and a project budgetary staff. In 1987, Mr. Chan obtained a degree
from the Business Administration Department of Beijing Institute of
Chemical Technology. After graduation, Mr. Chan worked in a company
under San Xiang Group in Guam, the United States of America serving
as the deputy manager, and later served as the deputy director and
the director of sales department of Hunan branch of China Investment
Bank. Mr. Chan joined Macrolink in 1993, and served as the chairman
of the Supervisory Board, the vice president, and the executive director
of Macrolink.
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Mr. Zhou Jianren, aged 62, has been an executive Director of the
Company since July 2014. Mr. Zhou is the elder brother of Mr. Zhou
Chu Jian He, the Chairman and an executive director of the Company
until 22 August 2018. Mr. Zhou has more than 30 years of experience
in international trading. Mr. Zhou also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since September 2004 and
is the chairman of the audit committee; and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Lam is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Securities Institute, Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
Australia ® New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants, Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and Certified Tax Adviser. Mr. Lam is currently
an independent non-executive director of Grand T G Gold Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
was an independent non-executive director of OCI International
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Dragonite International Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
28 April 2010 to 7 May 2018. Mr. Lam currently is a partner of
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited and was head of department in
Southwest Securities International Securities Limited and also the
proprietor of Albert Lam & Co. CPA. Mr. Lam was also the director and
currently is the shareholder and Consultant of Jonten Hopkins & Aoba
Group. Mr. Lam holds a Bachelor Degree in Arts (Economics) from the
University of Manchester, the United Kingdom.

Mr. Cao Kuangyu, aged 70, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2013 and is a member of
each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. Mr. Cao holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics from
Hunan University and a Master Degree in Financial Management from
the University of London. Mr. Cao has over 30 years of experience in
the banking industry. Mr. Cao worked in the Bank of China, Hunan
branch from 1981 to 1996 and his last position was the deputy general
manager of the branch. In 1996, Mr. Cao was transferred to the
Singapore branch of Bank of China as deputy general manager until
1999. Mr. Cao also worked in Citic Bank, Shenzhen branch from 1999
to 2003 and his last position was the president of the branch. Mr. Cao
came to Hong Kong in 2003 when Mr. Cao worked as managing
director, head of global investment banking division of BOCI Asia
Limited until 2007.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE B EAAERLF



-’G‘::.

i .

EEREREEASEE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEREBRRARRKEBEBRBRAG - AKX
IKERDABNBEEEREER AR ZBILIFH
TEE  BAARRBRAET - BEAEGEE
NER(EB)ERARZEILIFNTESE (R=-F
—tFNABME) - LA RRRBER T LT -

REEEE 635 AT =—F=ARBHEAR
AZBYFNTEESRRTHEZERTREUALE
REZBELREZEGRAZKE - RELETRE
ERRBREBEEETEMNOERBE LB - R
ENFHERERBARTRELEMEREELT
B - RALLRTRBUTRRFAER+ —F - ¥R
RAVERREFRDITEARBBEB - TFNREL
B RELRRERERMEEMZSREBA -
REENRERMEHAGABERBRA LT Z
DA BABERERARLIEENHEREEEE
EEAEEM -

REWE

REAKE 495 BT \FALAREERR
RAZARMERIBHEE - RELERFHLRE
AR ERSEREEGHMAGER  HAS
BRMRAREBTIHERS LM TBgF - REE
R - @t EMARWEEH T HESR — 1+
FRE - RMAKRRAR » RELBEETE—HE
KRG RAIE UREBREHEE LT AR
BESH UBERRARWEEK -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive director of Dongwu
Cement International Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited
and Dingyi Group Investment Limited, all of which are companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cao served as an independent
non-executive director of Huili Resources (Group) Limited (resigned in
September 2017), which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, aged 63, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since March 2013 and is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of
the audit committee and nomination committee. Mr. Cheung holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung also holds two Masters Degrees
respectively in Public Administration and in Laws from the University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung has worked in various government
departments for 12 years, and has over 20 years in the practice of
company law and civil litigation matters. Currently Mr. Cheung is the
senior partner of Messrs. Kelvin Cheung & Co., Solicitors & Notaries.
Mr. Cheung and his law firm have been the legal advisors of a number
of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, asset fund management
firms and non-profit making organizations and charities in Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Kwok Choi, aged 49, has been the company secretary
and the financial controller of the Company since September 2018.
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
majoring in accounting. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
finance, accounting and listed company secretarial matters. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Ng had worked in an international accounting
firm in Hong Kong, and was responsible for accounting, finance and
company secretarial matters for various listed companies in Hong
Kong.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, trading
of mineral concentrates and securities investment. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company comprise of property
investment and development, manufacturing and sale of construction
materials, trading of mineral concentrates, coal mining and others,
details of which are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Year,
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section from pages 8 to 16 of
this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of
the environment and maintaining a good standard of corporate
social governance essential for creating a framework for motivating
employees, and contributes to the community to meet the corporate
and business objectives of the Group. The Group also implemented
energy saving practices in offices where applicable.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time
to time and will consider taking more effective and efficient measures
and practices in the operations. The environmental policies and
performance of the Group are discussed in more detail in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations in particular, those have significant impact
on the Group, such as the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time. As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS

The Group intends to reward and recognise performing employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package and to promote career
development and provide opportunities within the Group for career
advancement. The Group encourages employees participation of
external seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and updates
on areas of industrial, legal, compliance, financial accounting and
tax knowledge. The Group also encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills which includes seminars, updates on regulatory
requirements and development and corporate governance practices.

The Group places high priority on maintaining good and long-term
relationships with our customers and suppliers to ensure efficient
delivery of products and services and smooth procurement process
respectively.

The Group recognises the importance to protect the interests of
shareholders and the importance of having communication with
them from time to time through annual general meetings, corporate
communications, interim and annual reports as well as results
announcements.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the Reporting Year, the Board identified the principal risks which
are likely to affect the Group’s business operations including volatility
and uncertainty in market conditions, changing in industry standards,
industry competition and financial risks in the ordinary course of
business, such as liquidity risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk, credit
risk and currency risk. It is essential that the Group is able to respond
in a timely manner to such changes which may adversely affect the
Group’s businesses and financial results.

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that the risk
management practices of the Group are sufficient to mitigate the risks
present in our businesses and operations as efficiently and effectively
as possible. The Board delegates some of its responsibility of risk
management to various operational departments. Further reviews are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — Risk
Management and Internal Control” on pages 64 and 65 of the Annual
Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 76 of this Annual
Report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group for the Reporting Year
(2019: Nil).

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, revenue generated from the Group’s five
largest customers in aggregate accounted for 96.14% of the total
revenue for the year and revenue generated from the largest customer
included therein accounted for 65.25%. Purchases from the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for 99.68% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 97.74%.

Save as disclosed in note 37(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers during the Reporting Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

There has been no change in the issued share capital of the Company
during the Reporting Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Reporting Year are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance with the provision
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to nil
(as at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$6,362,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws of the
Company or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during
the Reporting Year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 200 of this Annual Report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Reporting Year and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Jian

Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 87(1), Mr. Zhang
Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors of the Company are set out on pages
17 to 20 of this Annual Report.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors of the Company has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensations). Details of directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” on pages 27 and 28 of this Annual Report and notes
28 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no director of the
Company or any entity connected with the director of the Company
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries
was a party during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-law 166, every director, officer and
auditors shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred or sustained by him
as a director, auditors or officer of the Company about the execution
of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Year, save as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transaction” on pages 27 and 28 of this
Annual Report, the related party transactions set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements did not either fall within the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”, or
treated as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Provision of Mortgages

On 8 November 2019, Junefield (Beijing) Property Agency Co., Ltd.
(“Junefield Property Agency”) (EB(ItR)EHELLBR AT, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
mortgages agreements (the “Mortgage Agreements”) (as supplemented
and amended by the supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”)) with a bank, pursuant to which Junefield Property Agnecy
pledged certain investment properties in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) held by Junefield Property Agency in favour of the bank
as security for the repayment obligations of Jinzhou Rongxin Trading
Company Limited (the “Connected Borrower”) ($8MEEZEEZE AR A
A]) in the partial loan principal amount of RMB8 million and the related
interests thereon. On the same date, Junefield Property Agency and
the Connected Borrower also entered into an indemnity agreement (the
“Indemnity Agreement”), pursuant to which the Connected Borrower
agreed to pay Junefield Property Agency, a one-time handling charge
of RMB120,000, being 1.5% of the partial loan principal amount of
RMB8 million, and to fully indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s
obligations under the Mortgage Agreements (as supplemented and
amended by the Supplemental Agreement).

As the registered capital of the Connected Borrower is ultimately and
solely owned by Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He, who is a former executive
director and a former substantial shareholder of the Company, and the
younger brother of Mr. Zhou Jianren, a current executive director of
the Company, the Connected Borrower is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the entering into of the Mortgage Agreements, the
Supplemental Agreement and the Indemnity Agreement is to enable
the Group to have a readily available facility for providing sufficient
financial resources to it in the PRC without involving further negotiation
and lengthy procedures with financial institutions. Other details of the
agreements, including the reasons and the benefits of provision of
mortgages, are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 9
January 2020 and 10 February 2020.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The annual cap and the actual usage for the provision of mortgages
for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to RMB8,646,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$9,626,000) and nil, respectively.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company confirmed that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered into (a)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) either on
normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and (c) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the continuing
connected transaction entered into by the Group in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors of the Company have issued an
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”), which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

LONG POSITION - ORDINARY SHARES OF HK$0.10
EACH OF THE COMPANY

HERRBERT
B A 9 48 49
B2 tk?
Approximate
Percentage
of the
B ARz ZEER HREE Company’s
EEHE Personal Corporate Total issued share
Name of directors interest interest interests capital®
HEEE 4,500,000 870,145,473 874,645,473 72.51%
Mr. Fu Kwan (Htat1)
(Note 1)
PR B8 5t 4 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%

Mr. Chan Yeuk

HtiF1 : #870,145, 473D IHFEMEBMABR A AIFE -
TEBRESEARAFAEBEUEXEREARARERYN
42.05% - BN EMA B L EXERERR AR ETR
R2Z70%Ex - At - REEFEHRBAERD - BExLAE
118 A 1A870,145,47308 IR D R HE B #E2S ©

Witz : RZZZTF+-A=+—8 XRRIZEBETRAESE
1,206,249,251 f& A% 17 °

BRENFHBEEEN RZE_ZEF+_A=+—
B AARREZRTETRAERA  HEER
HMARBEZTREIZTBRABRARAREME
EEAE (& R E 5 LB HRAIEXVED) Z
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BE2MFFE B AR R RRE 2 B LM AREFETH
BBAMARA EB R S ORER
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Note 1: These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned
as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited. Mr. Fu
Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment Company
Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed to be interested in the 870,145,473
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2020, the issued share capital of the Company is
1,206,249,251 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, so far as is
known to the directors and chief executives of the Company, no
other directors and chief executives of the Company had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register as required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BERESEB

Name of Shareholders

B RkEDMEE

Capacity and nature of interest

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (LONG POSITION)

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the directors and chief
executives of the Company, the interests or short positions of the
persons (other than directors or chief executives of the Company) in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LR NN
EBRITRAN
BRBEDL
Approximate
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued

share capital

BFERGHE
Number of
shares held

MEMSEARAG (M)
Macrolink Group Limited (Note)

BUEBEXRREBRRR (ML)
Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited (Note)

Biat - #%870,145 473 B A EHMEEFRAFNA
MEBEEERARNBEVUEXREARATEED
42.05% c BEREHABUEEXREERAFTEHTR
R270%H s - Bt - stEFRHAEGRDIME - E
SEERAR  BUEEREERAFARBEL LR
RHEBEE B R R F R 2870,145,473% I 1)
hEA R

BEXHEEELEN R_TE-_FTE+-_A=+—
H BRARRNEZHARZETTHABIN  TEH
MATRARRRRG REERDEFTREZFESF R
HE GO EXVERE 2R F3 0 2B A R B kR I & &
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EEEREAE
Directly beneficially owned

REAE R
Interest in a controlled corporation

870,145,473 72.14%

870,145,473 72.14%

Note:  These 870,145,473 Shares are held by Macrolink Group Limited which is owned

as to approximately 42.05% by Truly Industry Investment Company Limited.
Mr. Fu Kwan owns 70% of the issued share capital of Truly Industry Investment
Company Limited. Therefore, each of Macrolink Group Limited, Truly Industry
Investment Company Limited and Mr. Fu Kwan is deemed or taken to be interested
in the 870,145,473 Shares which are owned by Macrolink Group Limited for the
purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was no other
person (other than the directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children under
age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its holding companies and subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, during the year ended 31
December 2020, the following director of the Company was considered
to have interests in the following businesses which competed or were
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

Each of Mr. Fu Kwan, Mr. Zhang Jian, Mr. Zhang Bishu, Ms. Liu Jing
and Mr. Chan Yeuk (collectively the “Relevant Directors”) is either the
beneficial owner or the director and/or senior management of a number
of companies (the “Companies”) in which either Macrolink Holding
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries or the Relevant Directors have beneficial
interests. The businesses engaged by the Companies include property
investment and development, securities investment and trading of
mineral concentrates.

The above-mentioned businesses are operated and managed by the
Companies with independent management and administration. In
addition, the Board is independent of the boards of the Companies
carrying on the competing businesses. Accordingly, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of the competing
businesses mentioned above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, as at the date of
this Annual Report, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the
Company was held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and/or
comparable market statistics. As an incentive for the employees,
bonuses and cash awards may also be given to employees based on
individual performance evaluation.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

The Corporate Governance Report of the Company is set out on pages
54 to 67 of this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose
term of office will expire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. There has
been no other change in the auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Fu Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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ABOUT THE REPORT

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (“Macrolink” or the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”, or
“We” and “Us”) is pleased to publish our annual environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) report (the “Report”) summarising the Group’s
ESG management approaches, practices and environmental and social
performance during the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Period”, “2020”), unless otherwise specified.

The scope of the Report focuses on the Group’s trading of mineral
concentrates business, which is principally operates in Nickel trading
(branded electrolytic nickel cathodes) and coal mining business in Peru.
With the outcome of final litigation announced in February 2021, the
Group’s manufacture and sales of the construction materials business
is required to proceed a mandatory dissolution prior to the termination
of the joint venture agreement of Hunan Taiji Construction Material
Co., Ltd.. Therefore, the business of manufacture and sales of the
construction materials is excluded in the reporting scope of the Report.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the second version
of ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“HKEX”) as well as adhering to the reporting principles
of materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance. For the details of
corporate governance, please refer to the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on page 54 to page 67 of this annual report.

OUR ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The board of directors (the “Board”) take the overall responsibility to
govern the ESG management of the Group, including determining the
direction of the Group’s ESG strategy, evaluating and controlling the
ESG risks and opportunities, as well as supervising the management
to formulate the relevant ESG-related policies and implement the ESG
initiatives across our business operations. An internal ESG taskforce
team supports and coordinates the execution of ESG measures,
collect relevant ESG data and information for performance review and
compilation of ESG reports and regularly report the progress of ESG
work to the Board. The Board has reviewed and approved the ESG
report in March 2021 to ensure all material issues and impacts on
sustainable development are fairly presented.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group maintains open dialogue with our stakeholders through
diversified channels of communication. This enables us to have a better
understanding of their needs, concerns and expectations relevant to

SEHEMPAUNESRERAEFENLSE TR LRERER  our business operation and ESG aspects, as well as obtaining their

BERE R - ST R R TR RARE - A
FEELEARENTHNNEIERHEHRE

RN ENMERETEHIAN T X

H0E
Stakeholders

perspectives and opinions in the operational direction and development
of the Group for formulating strategic business policies and planning.
The identified key stakeholder groups that can significantly influence the

Group and their expectations and concerns are indicated in the table

below:

HERBIER

Expectations and concerns

BERE

Communication channels

BRBREE

Shareholders/
Investors

Employees

gF

Customers

o REIRERR
o AHEBMEER

s ARKE

e |ong-term investment returns

e Sustainable business development

e Operation in compliance

o HrE AR A
s BEXERMZE
o BEER

- BETE

e Remuneration and benefits

e QOccupational health and safety
e Career development

e FEqual opportunities

o ERMREE S
o HURREFLRE

e Products and service quality
e Data privacy protection

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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o NAHEUA

e RERKXE

e RAIMERRNE

o EIIRE

e Company website

e General meetings

e Corporate reports and announcements
e Onsite inspection

s BHNRERM

o AEBHERAIHY

e« ET®E

o FERIBMEE

o BT HF

o BEEES

e Emails and suggestion box
e [ntranet and internal publications
e Employee meeting

e Annual performance review
e Employee training

e Team building activities

s BPERREBRKF

o BPRBER

o BPRIF

e AEER

e Customer feedback and complaints
e Customer service hotline

e Customer visit

e Day-to-day communication
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BHE HERBIEE
Stakeholders Expectations and concerns

BERE

Communication channels

BB

Business partners

B

Environment

B REEHE

Government and
regulatory
authorities

HE

Community

e

Media

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %
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HEAERE
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Business integrity
Mutual cooperating relationship
Open and fair procurement

g &R
WA TTR
Resources saving
Pollution reduction

ETIREMAR
BT & 15
RREER

Compliance with laws and regulations

Fulfilment of tax obligations
Support economic development

SEEMWHRANAFZESE
WEE it RERE

Participation in local community and

public welfare

Improve local community environment

BRERE

Information transparency

#

BETERER

HEEEZ2H

R AE IR

BES S ELER

B AR R

Lawful actions and communications
On-going direct engagement
Procurement and tendering

Strategic cooperation and negotiation
Onsite inspection

EREMIRGEE, BB R

Communication with local environmental
authority/department

EHRZXHEHR

HEEHEATHER

wiE - Mg kEgs

Regular documented information submission
Regular communication with regulatory
authorities

Forum, seminar and conference

NIE S

Company website

NEIFER
HEEH
Company website
Media enquiry

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION

The Group is committed to environmental sustainability. The Group
has implemented various control measures to optimise the resources
efficiency and reduce emissions and waste production across our
business operation, with an aim to minimise the adverse impacts on
the environment. We have strictly complied with relevant environmental
laws and regulations (e.g. D.S. 003-2017- MINAM approves the
standards of environmental quality (ECA) for the air and establish
complementary provisions, D.L. 1278 that approves the Law of Solid
Wastes Management etc.) applicable to mineral concentrates trading
business and coal mining business in Peru. The Group was not aware
of any breaches of the environmental laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.

Emission
Air emission

The Group recognises the major sources of air emission are mainly
come from the fuel combustion of machinery equipment and vehicles
in coal mine sites, as well as the dust generated from the production
process, including the soil stripping, rocks cutting and breaking, and
coal loading and unloading. The coal mining activity was suspended
during the Reporting Period mainly due to the global outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020, hence no air emission was
produced and recorded. Nevertheless, the control measures such as
watering the access of the installations, the interior of the mine pit
and the storage areas of coal stocks and routine maintenance of the
machinery equipment and vehicles will be strictly followed in mine sites
after the resumption of operation is allowed.

Waste management

The Group did not generate hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period. The main types of non-hazardous waste generated in mineral
concentrates trading business and coal mining operation are general
waste, rocks and stone from the surface in the mine pit. During
the period of the suspension of coal mines operations in Peru, no
non-hazardous waste was produced under the coal mining business.
Meanwhile, we have taken general green office measures to reduce the
waste generation in the office operation of mineral concentrates trading
business and mine office. For instance, we properly review the usage
of office materials to avoid overstocking and place paper collection
bins nearby the photocopiers for collecting and reusing the single-sided
printed paper. The recyclable waste, such as plastics and wastepaper,
is appropriately sorted and consigned to property management
company for further handling.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emission

The GHG emission of mineral concentrates trading business and coal
mining in Peru is mainly derived from the fugitive emission during the
coal mining and the energy consumption in our business operations.
Scope 1 GHG emission is the direct emissions from the stationary fuel
combustion of machinery equipment onsite, mobile fuel combustion
of vehicles and fugitive emission of methane in coal mine production.
Scope 2 GHG emission is the indirect emission from the consumption
of purchased electricity in coal mining activities and office operation.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has generated 3.63 tonne of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO,e”) GHG emission from our operation.
The decrease of GHG emission is mainly resulted from the disruption of
coal mining operation.

Use of Resources

The Group strives to utilise resources in a responsible and effective
manner in order to foster sustainable development. The Group
encourages our employees to act environmentally in their day-to-day
activities and cultivate greener corporate culture by enhancing their
environmental awareness.

The major energy consumption of the Group is mainly diesel and
purchased electricity, the Group has adopted certain measures in
offices and mine sites for energy saving, including but not limited to:

. Maintain the temperature of air conditioning at an
energy-efficient level 24-26 °C;

° Encourage employees to turn off office appliances and electronic
devices, such as air conditioners, computers, personal electronic
devices and common office equipment whenever not in use;

° Purchase office equipment, electrical appliances and
machineries with higher energy efficiency (such as those with
Grade 1 energy label) to reduce energy use;

o Place energy saving reminder signs nearby office equipment
and light switches to further enhance employees’ environmental
awareness.

The Group encourages paperless office environment in order to
reduce paper consumption. The Group has utilised electronic means
(e.g., email, e-newsletter and intranet) for daily communication and
disseminating information to avoid paper printing. We set double-sided
printing as default for printing, collected the single-sided printing used
paper in office and reused for drafting and printing to reduce paper
consumption.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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With respect to water conservation, the Group encourages our
employees to practicing water conservation habits and attaches water
saving signs at pantry and washrooms to remind them to reduce water
wastage. The Group did not face any issue in water sourcing during the
Reporting Period.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the business nature of mineral concentrates trading business,
the Group did not pose significant influences on the environment and
natural resources. With regard to the operation of coal mining, it can
potentially contribute to the negative impacts on the ecosystems and
landscape where we operate, such as soil erosion and underground
water pollution. Our production management team maintains regular
inspections and assessment reviews once the operations can be
resumed, to ensure the production process complies with the relevant
operational specifications and requirements to minimise.

OUR EMPLOYEES
Employment and Labour Standards

The Group acknowledges our employees are the most valued assets
in achieving our business objectives. We have stipulated a system of
employment policies related to remuneration and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest days, compensation and employee
welfares and benefits, and implemented an effective system in human
resources management intending to create a safe, motivated and
inclusive working environment for all employees.

Attractive remuneration packages for work-life balance

The Group values our employee’s work-life balance, firmly believing it to
be the route to obtain optimal performance and business sustainability.
Hence, the Group sets standard working hours in a maximum of eight
hours per days. In addition, both female and male employees of the
Group are entitled to marriage leave, maternity leave and paternity
leave, accompanied by statutory holidays to enable employees to fulfil
their family responsibilities. Employees are also provided with social
security, medical insurance and retirement scheme in accordance
with the relevant local labour laws and regulations such as Cap 57
Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
and TUO del D. Leg. 728 — Ley de Productividad y Competitividad
Laboral (Work Ministry law of productivity and competitiveness).
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Diversified and inclusive working environment

We strive to bring together talents from different geographic locations,
backgrounds and ethnics, creating a diversified platform in which
human resources can be turned to the best account, and looking for
high calibre individuals with the right talent and attitude to join us.
Justice, fairness and openness are the key principles that our human
resources management team upholds during the whole employment
process — from recruitment to remuneration, promotion and training.
When making decisions, we measure an individual’s competence,
whether the required qualifications and experience is fulfilled; while
on the other hand, gender, age, religion, marital status, ethnic or
other factors unrelated to work duties would be taken no notice of.
Employees are only dismissed by the Group with fair reasons such as
redundancy and poor performance and compensation will be granted in
accordance with the legislative requirements under the laws.

Zero-tolerance policy for unethical employment practices

The Group protects human rights. We have strictly complied with the
relevant local Labour Laws and prohibited any employment of child
labour aged under 18 or forced labour in the operation of our mineral
concentrates trading business and coal mining business. During the
recruitment process, the candidates are required to submit identity
documents such as identity cards and passports and the job reference
documents for our record to ensure their age and job eligibility meet
the requirements under the laws and regulations. Meanwhile, all the
employment contract is voluntarily signed by the employees and they
are free to leave their existing position.

There were no cases of prosecution for breach of applicable labour
laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Number of employee by

8,80%

Employee Profile

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 116 full-time employees.
There consisted of 2 in Hong Kong and 8 in Peru respectively engaged
in mineral concentrates trading business and coal mining business
within the reporting scope. The breakdown of employee profile within
the reporting scope is showed in the charts below:

Number of employee by age group

geographical region REBRESHE THAE
R E S e 8 TEE
0,0%

1,10%

2,20%

W HongKong M Peru W Age 18-30 M Age 31to 45
v WE 18Z305% 31%455%

[ Age 46-60 [ Over age 60
462605%, 60BRIA 1=

Health and Safety

Due to the business nature of mineral concentrates trading, our
business operation is mainly housed in office and thus no significant
occupational health and safety hazards are anticipated. Nevertheless,
the health and safety of employees is always our priority. The Group
strengthens the good housekeeping in the office areas, prepares first
aid kits for the treatment of minor injury and raise the safety awareness
of our employees on the use of display screen equipment, manual
handling and the fire safety as our approaches to safeguard workplace
safety.
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In our coal mining business, we have established an occupational
health and safety management (“OHS”) system with various safety
measures to safeguard the workplace as well as complying with
relevant laws and regulations for coal mining in Peru (e.g. Regulations
of Security and Safety Occupation in Mining). All mine sites have
been constructed in accordance with the specific designs and
building requirements under the laws and regulations to obtain all
the operating permits. Fire safety equipment (e.g. fire extinguishers)
is located at designated area along the gallery of mine sites in case
the mine of flammable coal. Safety risk assessment and regular
on-site safety inspections on the slope safety, coal mine structure
support and channels and mechanical equipment used at mine sites
are maintained in coal mining operation, to ensure proper identify the
potential safety risks at the earlier stage and safety mitigation measures
are appropriately implemented. Regular OHS training and safety
briefings are offered to increase the safety awareness in coal mining
operation and shoulder the shared responsibility to workplace safety.
Adequate personal protective equipment (“PPE”) is also provided to
the employees and they must wear full set of PPE before entering
the mine site. Nonetheless, the above safety practices will be strictly
implemented in our coal mining activities once the epidemic prevention
restrictions are relaxed and the resumption of business operation is
permitted.

Safety measures in response to COVID-19 pandemic

With the worldwide spread of COVID-19, the Group has closely
monitored the COVID-19 situation under the regions where we operate
and strictly followed the implemented epidemic prevention policies and
regulations of local governments, to safeguard the health and wellbeing
of our employees.

In our mineral concentrates trading business, we have strictly followed
the health advice issued by Centre of Health Protection in Hong Kong
and implemented the following key preventive measures to reduce the
risk of COVID-19 transmission.

o Require employees undergo a daily body temperature to ensure
they are fit to work prior to starting their work shift;

o Require our employees to stay home when they feel unwell
and/or are showing symptoms of COVID-19 and seek medical
attention;

° Require our employees to wear mask in office area and keep

appropriate social distance with others when in common
facilities of the workplace;

° Stagger the mealtime of our employees;

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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° Require employees to perform hand hygiene frequently and
maintain good personal hygiene;

° Perform regularly clean and disinfect frequently touched surfaces
such as furniture and commonly shared items; and

° Circulate the updated news and the health advice regarding
COVID-19 epidemic through emails and notice board to remind
employees on COVID-19 infection prevention.

Safety measure in Peru

With critical spread of COVID-19 in Peru, the Peruvian government
announced state of emergency in March 2020 and began the
national compulsory lockdown for three months. Part of the provinces
(e.g., Lima and Ancash) in Peru were extended the compulsory
immobilization (curfew) and social quarantine after the mandatory
quarantine in order to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 virus and
the risks of infection. In order to strictly abide by the launched epidemic
preventive measures, recommendations and advice of the Peruvian
government, all the employees were restricted to go to the office and
carried out mining production. After the national compulsory lockdown
ended in June 2020, our employees remained to work from home to
reduce face-to-face interaction, excepted those specific work must be
done in our office. In such case, the Group required the employees
to wear surgical mask when entering the office and keeping adequate
social distance in office area. Though the country-wide quarantine had
been relaxed in Q3 2020 and the mining production were allowed to
be restarted by asking for permits, the Group decided not to resume
the production activity in our mine sites during year 2020, with the
consideration of the local COVID-19 infection cases rise, in order to
ensure our employees’ health and safety.

Development and Training

The Group is dedicated to enhancing our employee’s latest knowledge
and skillsets by providing training and development opportunities, in
order to keep abreast with changing market trends and development.

The Group offers orientation training to newcomers, including the
introduction of company structure and policy, employee remuneration
and benefits and job description, to ensure they seamlessly fit into the
new positions and fully understand their rights and responsibilities.
On-the-job training and external training to the employees are provided
to our employees to equip their practical skills and technical knowledge
for performing their duties effectively. For instance, the Group provides
our employees to attend external training courses organised by our
suppliers with the topic of the trading prospect and price trend of
Nickel.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #
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RESPONSIBLE BUSINESS OPERATION
Supply Chain Management

The Group values strategic cooperation with our suppliers to achieve
mutual sustainable business development. The Group has set stringent
management approaches in supplier assessment and procurement
management. In the selection of new suppliers and contractors,
the Group carries out background checks by taking into account
various criteria, such as qualifications, capability, quality of services
and previous business and compliance track records, to ensure their
competency for reliable product and service provision. Regular supplier
performance evaluation on our existing suppliers and contractors,
in term of product and service quality, delivery time and after-sale
services, are conducted to ensure that their performance can be met
our standards and expectations consistently. Apart from delivering
quality products and services, the Group expects that all suppliers and
contractors maintain adequate environmental and occupational health
and safety management control procedures to comply with applicable
laws and regulations and minimise the environmental and social risks in
our business cooperation.

QUALITY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Group is committed to the provision of quality products
and services. The Group has implemented stringent operational
management procedures and control measures to ensure the
delivered products and services are up to customers’ requirements
and standards as well as the compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and industry practices.

We apply the official prices of nickel as set by the London Metal
Exchange (the “LME”), which are the global reference price, to
standardise the pricing of our business of mineral concentrate trading.
All the contract agreement is prepared in accordance with relevant
contract specification covering but not limited to pricing period,
settlement terms, traded and cleared currencies. We select the LME
approved brands, which are required to be strictly in conformance with
the requirements on quality, shape and weight as outlined by LME,
and obtain the independent laboratory tests, acceptance inspections
report and quality certificate from vendors, with the aim to validate the
consistency of the product conformance towards the specifications as
well as internationally recognised standards before product export and
delivery.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Group has established a set of operational control measures
to govern the quality of coal product. Since the Group is not further
processed the raw coal extracted from the mines, our quality inspectors
facilitate our customers to carry out onsite sampling inspection checks
to ensure the product quality in line with their requirements. Beside
product quality, on-time product delivery is equally important to our
coal mining business. policies related to on-time delivery, after-sales
services and/or return guarantee have been formulated to satisfy our
customer needs.

With the increasing concern in information privacy, the Group requires
all employees to perform their due care to keep all the corporate and
customer information (e.g. trade secrets, business forecasts, and
pricing etc.) in strict confidentiality as stipulated in our code of conduct.
Employees prohibit to divulge, copy and disclose any information to
unauthorised persons and third parties without prior authorisation
from the Group and customers. The Group has adopted several
administrative, physical and technical measures for data protection to
prevent information leakage and unauthorised access. Any employee
who breaches the regulations is subject to disciplinary actions and legal
liability.

The Group was not aware of any breaches of relevant laws and

regulations related to product quality and safety and privacy matter
during the Reporting Period.
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Anti-corruption

Integrity is the cornerstone of corporate business sustainability.
Our code of conduct outlined the required business conducts and
behaviours in our business operations and dealings for our employees
to abide by. The Group strictly prohibits the employees offer or receive
any forms of advantages (e.g. money, entertainment and commission)
directly or indirectly from our customers and business partners, or use
improper means to seek personal advantages, as well as conducting
any extortion, fraud and money laundering activities. The employee
who breaches the rules is subject to disciplinary action including
employment termination. The Group has whistleblowing policy in
place to encourage employees and external stakeholders to report the
potential or suspected improprieties, misbehaviours and corruption
practices in good faith. We keep the identity of the whistle-blower
with all the relevant reported information in confidentiality to prevent
any unfair treatment and reprisal. We undertake internal investigation
in a timely manner for case verification in event of any reported case
discovered and take remedial actions where necessary according to
the investigation findings. For the case, which is committed criminal
offence, we will transfer the case to local judicial authorities for further
handling.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any breaches
of relevant anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws and regulations in the
region where we operate.

Our Community

The Group strives to create positive influences on the community
through social activates and community engagement. The Group
encourages employees to participate in various volunteer and public
welfare. Though the outbreak of COVID-19 cause disruption of
business and economic activities in Peru, the Group will continues to
seek opportunities in providing job opportunities to the locals nearby
the mine sites in order to facilitate the economic recovery and improve
the living standard of the local community.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

BiERE Environmental Performance
B —EIEH ZE-NF —E-N\F
Unit 2020' 2019 2018
BRpER
Types of emissions
B E R e
GHG emissions?
WEI-EEHR =R fwE s 2.09 76.48 1,875.00
Scope 1 - Direct emissions?® tCOe
%ﬁz—ﬁéﬁﬁ-ﬁa‘&}#?&‘_ B WE—ELiRE & 154 6.9 1.00
Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions* tCOe
7&?%%9?73&%; M| tiRE 8 363 89 70 1 876.00
Total GHG emission tCOe
BEREERE
GHG intensity
WE S LIRE =
%_ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ . . TR 0.0006 0.0008 -
Mineral concentrates trading business tCO, e/
square feet
WE—EALIRE 2
5% B R 3 06 DR i A 008 )
Coal mining business tCO, e/tonne No applicable '
of raw coal
BEEYER
Type of waste
BEREY NI T E A A3 A3
Hazardous waste tonne Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
EEBRYS
Non-hazardous waste®
-—REEY N EEIEES 67 0.40 ELERES 67
- General waste tonne No available data ' No available data

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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B —E-FF —E-NF —B-N\F
Unit 20201 2019 2018
EREFEER
Types of resource consumption
BEIR
Energy
e 202.78 6,240.98 19,389.00
— 5E e gallon ’ o e
— Di 6 i
Diesel TR 7,701.65 037,034.47 736,400.59
kWh
-8 i
o Thk 3,056.00 4,677.00 4,944.00
- Electricity kWh
a3 \:w \E S ij
RERH R B _ TR 10,757.65 241,711.47 741,344.59
Total energy consumption kWh
HRBE
Energy intensity
BEESEK FTEREFHFR
. . . 0.76 0.95 -
Mineral concentrates trading business kWh/square feet
FRE, AR RE .
Y o 7 6 N m
RS KWh/tonne TER 235.45 -
Coal mining business® No applicable
of raw coal
7 7 A E{ /\E
K e 0 3,780 ,nﬂﬁ%w?ﬁ
Water’ gallon No available data
KEE
Water intensity
e, AWERE
BB RES i
. . gallon/tonne 0 3.71
Coal mining business
of raw coal
AH SR 0 225.80 664.59
Wood m?3
4 8 /‘\uE
A a 0.09 0.02 -
Paper?® tonne
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Note:

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 epidemic and the lockdown of Peru since Q2
2020, the mining activities at our coal mines continued to be suspended in order to
follow the epidemic preventive measure of the local government for preventing virus
transmission and hence we only maintain necessary administration operation in
mine office. Thus, the data coverage in 2020 is available to the business of mineral
concentrates trading and mine office operation in Peru only. Due to the business
nature in mineral concentrates trading and coal mining, no packaging materials are
utilised in our business segments as we are not engaged in manufacturing industry.

The calculation of greenhouse gas emissions is made with reference to “How to
prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
published by HKEX and international standards such as ISO 14064 and GHG
Protocol, 2019 sustainability report of HK Electric and the UNDP Environmental
Performance Reporting Tool.

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emission covers the direct emissions from the
combustion of fuels in mobile sources controlled by the Group.

Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission covers the indirect energy emission from the
purchased electricity consumption by the Group.

The waste generated in the operation of trading business is mainly collected by the
property management company and hence the Group did not quantify the waste
data for disclosure for information disclosure. Due to the suspension of work for
coal mining during the Reporting Period, no waste generation at coal mines was
recorded in 2020.

The figure presented in unit of kWh has been restated due to the alignment with
statistical method adopted in 2020. The conversion factors from volumetric units
of fuels consumption to energy units are with reference to CDP Technical note:
Conversion of fuel data to MWh in 2020.

Due to the suspension of work for coal mining during the Reporting Period, no
water consumption was recorded in 2020. The water billing of mineral concentrates
trading business is included in the office rental fee and hence there is no available
data for information disclosure.

The figure is only covered the consumption in mineral concentrates trading
business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #



B B>

—

TtERER

H=
=

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT ‘e

BT (BIE  HeRERHEEE]) HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX
#3l
RIR -#HEgRERKEES B
ESG Reporting Guide Section
A. R
A. Environmental
BEA1: HERY
Aspect A1: Emissions
Al — MR IRIBRE—BENY
FHERMBREREBHN MK THHEES  EERESEEDY Environmental Protection —
EEEN: Emission
(@ EFE: Kk
(o) EFHBITABERZENMBBEZE LR
B o
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
KPI A1.1  BERUY)TE 48 [ 48 78 BE B BUR - IRIBRE—BENY
The types of emissions and respective emission data. Environmental Protection —
Emission
KPI A1.2 /Miﬁﬁ“ﬁ'ﬁtﬁkz(u MEEtE) R (WER) BRE (MAGES B - B R A B E
HFIBHMETE Key Performance Indicators
Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
KPI A1.3 Pﬁéiﬁif%#ﬂi@im WEETE) R (ER) BE (WA EESHM - BB R R
BRI E Key Performance Indicators
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
KPIA1.4 FIESBREEEDAESE (UWHEAE) X(WMERZE(WNEESEN - § BREJER
HE e E Key Performance Indicators
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
KPI A1.5 HEUBEHEMRENIEBRAGHR - IRIBRE—BENY
Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Environmental Protection —
Emission
KPIA1.6 HUMEREEELBEZREENNG L  HEEESNEHBLAEKR - RIBERE—HERY

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

Environmental Protection —
Emission

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide

=6
Section

EmA2: EFRER
Aspect A2: Use of Resources

A2 —RREEE
ERFERER(BIEEIR - KREMERME) BB -
General Disclosure
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

KPI A2.1 RERESHEER KHEEER(WE - Kol 72 (U TETRE
HE)RFE(WUESESEN - BERETE) o
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or ail) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

KPI A2.2 #EFKELTE (WNEBESEEM  FHEKXMTHE) °
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

KPI A2.3 Hi3l B2 R 8 FB & 7t & M FTS BCR ©
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPI A2.4 kBB R KR LR BEAEE @ R ARG S RATEKRE -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

KPIA25 REEFTABEEMBNESE (ABEGE) R (ER) BEESBUGE -
Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

EBEA3 : BRERARER

Aspect AS3: The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 — PR EE
BEBITAHRERARERENEARZENE
General Disclosure
Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

KPI A3.1 Hli X ESHHRBERRAERNEATERCDRKRERBGUTENTH -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

BAWIRE - BREA
Our Environment — Use of
Resources

BB R R
Key Performance Indicators

B A DU R
Key Performance Indicators

BMHIRE —EREA
Our Environment — Use of
Resources

BAWIRE - BREA
Our Environment — Use of
Resources

BB R R
Key Performance Indicators

RERE-RRELRRAAER
Environment Protection —
The Environment and Natural
Resources

RERE-_RRERRAER
Environment Protection —
The Environment and Natural
Resources
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ESG Reporting Guide Section

B.&4&

B. Social

EEB1 : EfE

Aspect B1: Employment

B1 — = BMHEI—{EERE TR
BRI e  BIELEA  TESS - RE - FEHE - Ztib - R Our People — Employment and
RA R B A8 R AE F EY Labour Standards
(@) H%E: Kk
(b) BTHBEITAGEATENHEBER AN
B E R} o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.

BEB2: @EEZ2
Aspect B2: Health and Safety

B2 — = BAME T —@FEET S
FARHEZ2IHEREMREEIREBESEEEN Our People — Health and Safety
() HB=E: &
(o) BFHBITABERTZEMIEEZERRG
Eok=§ =2

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

EEBS3 : #EREI

Aspect B3: Development and Training

B3 — M B ER M E T -8R KIE
BRRAEBIBITIEREN N RRENBR - HltIFIES - Our People — Development and
General Disclosure Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training activities.

N MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ESG Reporting Guide
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Section

[EEB4 : & T%A|
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

B4 — MR
BRAB IEZE T3 55 T -
(@) HE: Kk
(b) BTHBEITAGEATENHEBER AN
BB RS «
General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

[EEBS5 : fitEsEEE
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

B5 — MR
ERMHEENRE R GRS
General Disclosure
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

[EEB6: EmERE
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

B6 — R ER
EHFMEHERNRENREREEEZS BES  BEELESEUAR
HWRER
@@ BX: &

(o) BFHBITABERTZEMNEBEZEERRG
KB K} o

General Disclosure
Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERL2EF

BMOWE T —&E &% T8
Our People — Employment and
Labour Standards

BEANEBKE —HERERE
Responsible Business Operation -
Supply Chain Management

BEANEBKE—BEEM MR
%

Responsible Business Operation —
Quality Products and Services
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Section

EHEB7 : RE’S
Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

B7 — A EE
B IEEERR - 1R - REFREREMN
() BX: &
(o) BTFHBETAEERTZEMNBEBEEZ LR
FER o

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

[BEB8: HERE
Aspect BS8: Community Investment

B8 —RRIEER
BENME2ERTHREEMTHEZTENBREZB IDEZELET
YR o
General Disclosure
Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BEANEBKE-—RES
Responsible Business Operation —
Anti-corruption

IRt

Our Community

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining
high standard of corporate governance practices. The primary
corporate governance rules applicable to the Company is the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Year”) and up
to the date of this Annual Report, the Company has complied with all
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code except for the following
deviations:

- Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman
of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination Committee
did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 26 June 2020 (“AGM”) due to other business engagement.
The chairman of the Audit Committee, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and certain members of the Nomination
Committee were present at the AGM to answer the shareholders’
questions.

— Under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should at least annually hold meetings with the independent
non-executive directors without the presence of other directors.
Due to the various other business engagement, the Chairman of
the Board did not meet up with the independent non-executive
Directors during the year. The Chairman of the Board will come up
with a meeting date with the independent non-executive Directors
as earliest as possible to make sure that they can meet without
other executive Directors present in the reporting year of 2021.

— Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
During the year, not all the independent non-executive Directors
attended the AGM due to other business engagement. The
Company will finalize and inform the dates of the general meetings
as earliest as possible to make sure that the independent
non-executive Directors can attend the general meetings in future.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2020 after specific enquiry.

The Company believes that the current procedures to remind all
Directors and senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) to follow strictly with the Model Code prior to
publication of the Group’s interim and final results remain sufficient to
prevent non-compliance with the Model Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the Reporting Year and up to the date of this Annual Report,
there was no change in the structure of the Board, which currently
comprises nine Directors and is of the opinion that it has a balance of
skill and experience based on the following composition:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Jian (General Manager)
Mr. Zhang Bishu

Ms. Liu Jing

Mr. Chan Yeuk

Mr. Zhou Jianren

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Cheung Ka Wai

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board. At least one of the independent
non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualification and/or experience in accounting and/or related financial
management expertise. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a period of two years
until terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions specified
therein.
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
20 of this Annual Report. Save as disclosed therein, there are no
other relationship (including financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships) among members of the Board. The Board
has received from each independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence and considers that they are
independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy and business
plans as well as the operation and financial performance of the Group,
and to review and approve the Group’s annual and interim results,
as well as corporate governance, financial, capital, remuneration and
mergers and acquisition matters. During the year under review, four
Board meetings and the AGM were held. The attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings and the AGM is set out as follows:

HEBITEERK
Meetings Attended/Held

E=g R

Board BEXE
=2 Directors Meeting AGM
BTESE Executive Directors
BEELE Mr. Fu Kwan 1/4 0/1
SR B A Mr. Zhang Jian 4/4 1/1
RME A Mr. Zhang Bishu 4/4 01
B+ Ms. Liu Jing 3/4 0/1
PoR B o A Mr. Chang Yeuk 4/4 0/1
FAEAKE Mr. Zhou Jianren 4/4 0/1
BUKEHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MEREE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 4/4 11
BT EAE Mr. Cao Kuangyu 4/4 0/1
REELAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 4/4 1/1
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During the Reporting Year, the Board has dealt with matters covering
mainly the Group’s overall strategy, annual and interim results, internal
control and risk assessment, corporate governance and matters of
disposal of subsidiaries. In addition, certain matters relating to the
Company’s announcements and other affairs were reviewed and
approved by written resolutions signed by all the Directors of the
Company.

Notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors in advance for regular
Board meetings. For other Board meetings, reasonable notice period
is given. Meeting agendas and other relevant information are normally
provided to the Directors at least 3 days in advance of the Board
meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional matters in
the agenda for Board meetings.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board
and committee meetings which are recorded in sufficient detail about
the matters considered. Both draft and final versions of the minutes are
sent to all Directors for their comments and records. Directors have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board meeting procedures
are followed.

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations and are able to make further enquiries when necessary.
Sufficient explanation and information have been provided to the Board
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information put before it for approval. They also have unrestricted
access to the advices and services of the Company Secretary. Update
which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details is provided
to all Directors to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. The Board has also agreed that the Directors
may seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expenses.

DIRECTORS INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Directors are given an induction after their
appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of their duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Company provides regular updates on the
business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, and
the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AAnEEANESSEL2EESTEERE - £#F  The Company encourages the participation of ongoing professional

BHARNREE - @BRZEERXR " -_FTFFANLRXHELE  trainings by individual Director at the Company’s expenses. The training

2 BERAT participation by individual Director during 2020 is summarised as
below:

HERAE

g3,

we

e

Attending

induction

Edpg training/
Reading seminars/

materials briefings
HITESE Executive Directors
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan v/ -
REE A Mr. Zhang Jian v -
RMNE LA Mr. Zhang Bishu v -
R+ Ms. Liu Jing v/ -
PR B 5T A Mr. Chan Yeuk v/ -
BEAEE Mr. Zhou Jianren v/ -
BUKEHITES Independent Non-Executive Directors
MERLE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert v/ v/
BT EAE Mr. Cao Kuangyu v/ -
REETE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai v/ v/
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

On top of the regulatory and statutory responsibilities, the main duties
of the Board include formulating strategy as well as monitoring and
controlling operating and financial performance of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
have been consulted on major and material matters of the Company
and have been encouraged to make active contribution to the affairs
of the Board. All Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company and are committed
to act in good faith and make decisions in the best interests of both
the Group and the shareholders of the Company. The Board delegates
day-to-day management of the businesses of the Group to the
management of the relevant principal divisions. The Company’s Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have
been set up to assist the Board to discharge its duties and to oversee
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. All Committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and report to the Board with
recommendations. The final decisions are rested with the Board, unless
otherwise provided in terms of reference of the relevant Committees.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions as set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code and
has adopted the latest corporate governance code manual (including
continuous professional development of directors, the compliance of
the Model Code, etc) since March 2016. In addition, the Company’s
employee whistleblowing guidelines has also been in place since
March 2012. Liability insurance for the Company’s Directors and senior
management was maintained by the Company with coverage for any
legal liabilities which may arise in the course of performing their duties.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 that give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Board is responsible for presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance and prospects. The Directors have made an assessment
on the liquidity position of the Group as to whether the Group is able
to operate as a going concern for fifteen months from the end of the
Reporting Year. The Directors are in the opinion that it is appropriate
for the Group to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement of the auditors of the Company
regarding their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 73
to 75 of this Annual Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The role of the chairman of the board and the chief executive officer are
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual. During the
Reporting Year, Mr. Fu Kwan has been the Chairman of the Company
and responsible for the leadership and the effective operation of the
Board. Mr. Zhang Jian has been the general manager of the Company
and assumes the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He has been responsible for the day-to-day management
of the businesses in all aspects effectively, the implementation of the
strategies approved by the Board, the development and formulation
of business plans, budgets and financial objectives for consideration
by the Board, and the establishment and maintenance of proper
internal controls and risk management systems with the support of the
Company’s Audit Committee.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors serve the relevant function of
bringing independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. Their presence and participation also
enable the Board to maintain good standards of compliance in financial
and other mandatory reporting requirements, and provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders of the
Company and the Company. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been appointed for a term of two years and subject to
retirement by rotation at annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election. The independent non-executive
Directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s corporate
communications.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The appointment of new Director(s) and other related matters have
been delegated to the Company’s Nomination Committee, which would
make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters including the
appointment or reappointment of the Directors of the Company. The
Board considers that the new Director(s) is expected to have expertise
in relevant area to make contribution to the Company and to have
sufficient time to participate in the decision making process of the
Company.

The executive Directors of the Company entered into service contracts
with the Company for terms of two or three years. In addition, each of
the independent non-executive Directors signed a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term of two years.

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, (i) any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment or (ii) any director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company. Any
Director appointed shall then be eligible for re-election.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu
and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai. Mr. Cheung Ka Wai is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendation to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and reviewing the specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board. The remuneration of Directors are based on the skKill
and contribution in the Company’s affairs and are determined by
reference to duties and responsibilities of the executive Directors
after considering the Group’s performance and the prevailing market
situations including salaries paid by comparable companies. No
Director is involved in determining his own remuneration. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available at the
Company’s website.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was one meeting held
by the Remuneration Committee to review the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management as well as the remuneration
policies.

Details of the remuneration paid and payable to Directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2020
are disclosed in notes 8, 9 and 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Attendance of the Remuneration Committee during the Reporting Year
is set out below:

HESBERE BTEIERE

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held
REELRE(EE) Mr. Cheung Ka Wai (Chairman) 1/1
ME R L E Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 11
BT A Mr. Cao Kuangyu 1/1
REZES NOMINATION COMMITTEE

ARNRRN —_E—_FERIVIEZEZE® mEEE The Company’s Nomination Committee was set up in 2012 to review

FHRT REZAEAE -RELEZECRAHM
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AEZEBBRANTHZHERTK - #AEEFEX
FETERA - AR TR ESTEXNBEZZE
MREZ T BE R Z TR ER B R
AEMBRALEETEEE KT -
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and make recommendations for new candidates to the Board. The
Nomination Committee currently comprises two executive Directors
(Mr. Fu Kwan (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Zhang
Jian) and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Lam
Man Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai). The
Nomination Committee will assess new candidates based on their
skills, experience and who, in its opinion, are able to make positive
contribution to the performance of the Board. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in 2013 which sets
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to review the policy and any measurable
objectives as may be adopted from time to time and to review the
progress on achieving the objectives. The Company seeks to achieve
board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities. The Company will also
take into account of its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does
not intend to fix a diversity quota for Board members appointment or
set a short term objective on gender diversity, for such policies may
compromise on the calibre of Directors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F #



RBE-Z-_THF+_A=T—HILFER  &H
ZEBEBETRgE  TEDNABRNEFTEN
g ANB O R BB Z T EBER ¢ (i) AR R

VHATEST 2B MEFRERETES
AR RRBRRNIREBFAS L& -

RBEEER  RAZEEZBRERHTINOT

e V™

& EERR S
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was one meeting held
by the Nomination Committee to mainly review (i) the structure, size,
composition and diversity policy of the Board; (i) the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors of the Company and (ii)) the
re-appointment of retiring Directors for election by shareholders of the
Company at the AGM.

Attendance of the Nomination Committee during the Reporting Year is
set out below:

HESBERE BTEBERE

No. of meeting attended/

RE Members No. of meeting held
BELE(EE) Mr. Fu Kwan (Chairman) 0/1
RELA Mr. Zhang Jian 1/1
MREREAE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 1/1
EW T A Mr. Cao Kuangyu 1/1
RERETAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 1/1
ZEREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Man
Sum, Albert, Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Cheung Ka Wai, and is chaired
by Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert. The chairman of the Audit Committee
possesses appropriate professional qualifications and/or experience in
accounting and/or related financial management expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2020 with 100%
attendance of its members. During the year, the Audit Committee
provided accounting and financial advices and recommendations to the
Board as well as reviewed the independence of external auditors and
relevant auditing matters. Also, the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The Group’s
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and
unaudited/audited annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee which was of the opinion
that the preparation of the relevant financial statements complied
with the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosure has been made.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. During
the Reporting Year, the fee in respect of audit service provided by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was HK$900,000 (2019: HK$900,000).
The fee paid/payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited for
non-audit services relating to assisting in reviewing the disclosure of
interim financial report was nil (2019: HK$285,000).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibilities for the
establishment and maintenance of an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, and to protect the
interest of shareholders of the Company. Furthermore, the risk
management and internal control system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has a built-in internal audit function and has established a
risk management framework, which consists of the Board, the Audit
Committee and the management. On-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group has been
established. Business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risks associated with their respective units. The results
of evaluation will be reported to management through regular internal
meetings associated with the list of risks identified and management’s
assessment on the impact to the Group. The Board discussed the risk
identified and evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system.

The Group is of the view that an effective risk management and
internal control system is in place which encompasses sound control
environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well-defined policies
and monitoring procedures and is reviewed and enhanced by the
management at regular intervals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practices, risk management and internal control system.
In respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group engaged
external consultants to perform review on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group at least once a
year and make recommendations for improvement and strengthening
of its risk management and internal control system. Based on the
reports on the findings from the external consultants, no major issues
but areas of improvement have been identified. All recommendations
will be properly followed up to ensure that they are implemented within
a reasonable period of time and the Board considered the Group’s risk
management and internal control system were effective in all material
aspects during the year.
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With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Company has formulated its guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the
insiders abide by the confidentiality requirement and fulfill the disclosure
obligation of the inside information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the company secretary
attended relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, special general meetings may be
convened by the Board upon requisition by any shareholder holding not
less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any general meetings
of the Company. The shareholder shall make a written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business at 15/F, COFCO Tower, 262 Gloucester
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (“Head Office”), specifying the
shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details
and the proposal regarding any specified transaction/business and its
supporting documents.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at its Head Office, specifying the shareholding information
of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/she
intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified
transaction/business and its supporting documents.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business at its Head Office. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of the
Company.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2020.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Directors are aware of the importance of maintaining good relations
and communications with shareholders of the Company. The Company
continues to promote investor relations and communication with its
investors. The Company uses a range of communication tools, such as
annual general meetings, special general meetings, annual and interim
reports, various notices, announcements and circulars etc, to ensure its
shareholders are kept informed of the Company’s information.

The Company has maintained a website at http://macrolinkcapital.
etnet.com.hk, which serves as a platform for corporate communications
with its shareholders and the general public. All corporate
communications required under the Listing Rules are displayed (for
documents published in the previous 5 years) on the Company’s
website, which has established procedures to ensure timely update in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
in 2019. Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that the Group records a profit after tax and that the declaration and
distribution of dividends does not affect the normal operations of the
Group. The Company intends to pay out on annual dividend payment
for the then financial year after taking into consideration of, inter alia,
the following factors:

()  the Group’s financial results;

(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

(iv) the availability of funds to meet the financial covenants of our
Group’s bank and other loans; and

(v)  any other factors that our Board may consider appropriate.
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The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the Bye-
Laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company
must be approved by an ordinary resolution of its shareholders at an
annual general meeting. The Board may from time to time pay to the
shareholders such interim and/or special dividends as it considers to be
justified by the profits of the Group.

Any declaration and/or payment of future dividends under the Dividend
Policy are/is subject to the Board’s determination that the same
would be in the best interests of the Group and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole. The Board endeavors to strike a balance
between the shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
and the Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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B gt FE W A R A
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

BB 31/F, Gloucester Tower
IR The Landmark
ETH115R% 11 Pedder Street
EMES Central

HE LTI RES1E  Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macrolink
Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 198,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

BREEZER

Key audit matter

RIBREUR B IR TFEEEZ R E T
Impairment assessments on mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets
DEFEMBHREMT16 -

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEERBEREARMWRRTIGEER_Z_ZF+_H
=+—HZREMES 54 456,868,000/ 7T £ 6,594,000/ 7T
(R EERETHARIELARA) -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s mining rights and
exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2020
were approximately HK$6,868,000 and HK$6,594,000
respectively before adjusting for the results of the
impairment assessment of the assets.

REEANBRERILEEEZFRAEEREEHABRLZ
B BR R Al A DA Bl BR T (B R E OB R AT - B SRR
BUARMREFEEEN RS HRZREERS HIREM
BETFKRANBEBEZE(HEFEARBTR) KAZEE
BRI -

The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Determining whether
there is any indication of impairment of the carrying
amounts of mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets as at the end of the reporting period, and the
extent of impairment loss if such indication exists, require
significant judgement.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEREBHREEARYR LT GEEETRENGME
TZEFBE:

Qur procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessments on mining rights and exploration and evaluation

assets included:

e HERBENHBAETR UKEREBEEEBERHMRERERE
BETRNEE - EEBTREZFNONERT @ fHEER
EETERRERR
Discussing indicators of impairment with the
management and challenging the management’s views
about the existence or non-existence of indicators of

impairment. Where such indicators were identified,
assessing the impairment testing performed by
management;

e RE BRECEHARELTFY EEEEKIBERT

HEREERMNNRSELEEL

Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
based on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business;

e IEBEERMEREBEFNE(BERBEAE)
Assessing the value-in-use calculations, including the
methodologies adopted by the management;

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HREEZSR

Key audit matter

RETRE S  KBEREUARMRETAEESEEREE
ABEU([ReELSEM]) - ERERBEREEFEER
HeREBIETREeELAEUR 2 _TF+_A=1+—
HzrlE &g - ETRENGBES  AEREXAME
NEERTERBEEARDRLAGEENBNERARESE
HFEURETRANGREReRERALGTECREENEH
REBR - SERCENBE  BRERBRE -

For the purpose of assessing impairment, mining rights
and exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to
cash-generating units (“CGUs”). The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs as at 31 December 2020 were determined
by management based on value-in-use calculations using
cash flow projections. In carrying out the impairment
assessments, significant judgements were required to be
exercised to appropriately identify the respective CGUs to
which mining rights and exploration and evaluation assets
belong and to determine the key assumptions, including
operating margins, growth rates and discount rates, to be
used in the preparation of the cash flow projections and
the value-in-use calculations.

BARETREN G Bt EREEEEaRABRRE
518 /3 81#)3,014,0007% 7T % 3,599,000/ 7T + LA 5 Bl # £ 4%
EANBENFEEENRE S BHOR -

As a result of the impairment assessment, impairment
losses amounting to approximately HK$3,014,000 and
HK$3,599,000 were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to write down the carrying
amounts of mining rights and exploration and evaluation
assets respectively.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BEEZBERNMEEREERSEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREEEFNRBERITRABNEARANBRRE (B
RENBER BRERBRBEXR) 2EEME

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
adopted (including operating margins, growth rates and
discount rates) based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

HERBABRBLE R ERE (MK ERE
BEzAEM:

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as
approved budgets and considering the reasonableness
of these budgets;

I EE%E

AEBUVEESERBERMZBES  EHIREHE: &
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’'s competence, capabilities and objectivity; and

ZREAEZRGHES
1 o

Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess the
methodology used and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions.

EFHEAATERARBR A E
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AREXRER

Key audit matter

KREYEZ1EE

Valuation of investment properties
REGEMBWMEM T4 -

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERENREMEALNTEINE - BEREME BEXEHKRE
MER_Z_ZEF+_A=+—HZRAFEXA77,921,000
BT MBREVERBE_Z_ZEF+_HA=+—HIF
B2 AFERZEHL,970,0008 TREEBERAAR - B
HREMERBBLINBEE - REDEN G EKBEM
ERERARANE TRR MZEREXIXTEEEREY
Z FAREERERTEEAZEE -EalEZERFERE
HERERF Z2TRIEH 2 HARR -

The Group’s investment properties are carried at fair
value. Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties to be approximately
HK$77,921,000 as at 31 December 2020 with fair value
gains on investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2020 recorded in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss of approximately HK$1,970,000.
Independent external valuation was obtained in respect of
the investment properties. The valuation of the investment
properties is dependent on certain assumptions adopted
in the valuation process, which are subject to uncertainties
and might materially differ from the actual results.
Reasonable consideration has been given to the underlying
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BEZBERNMEEREERSEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREREBEREMEZMHEMETZIREFEE
Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

e EBUEXRSERMEMZBEN ORTEM:
Evaluation of the independent professional qualified
valuer’s competence, capabilities and objectivity;

s ZEMEZRMHEZNEMARENGE
BEE BN &
Engaging a valuation expert in assisting us to assess
the appropriateness of the methodology used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions made; and

1 K B {E R

o  EEMASEMNMBMARAF G EERM o
Considering the relevance of the data used and testing
the accuracy of the calculation of the estimates.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF



& ) S

BB MRS (F)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)

FREECENBASERE
BHRGAVBBRBIRRAEEAS S RSEL
EEREEBRLE - BNE M BRRM T 1AM
e BEEREREUKEEE ARBEEF
B#) /33,084,000 T * WRTZFEHRIBFERA
R BEEERBEREEEEBERLENRITE
EREME - EEEHREFHFRBEANFEALE
BEHE W= EAR S RIE M IF M 1 A -
REME  HANBERTEBRIEFEERR -

H b & ¥
BRARCEFARRUAMERN - HLENBEF
BEFBRZAN  ETEEFAMBRERESML
ZRBERE ((HEr]) -

ERMGEVBHRERZERL NRELMBER
ERAL AU BEREMEA 2 LB ER

==
=

==
=

AESHEAMBHRR BRGNS BEFZEER
BEEMER  KMZEREMENRE RS
BRAESEBERBRETEZNEHNFEERT
o RIFEBAERRL - WESFERS THD
THERREMEHBRBAHEREL - EFARE
HEE -HEEIE BFLLEEMAMRS -

&éégﬁﬁnv_\élﬁ\jﬁiﬁﬁzg

EER
Z: (=5

=
EHE

1

BERREZARARBEEBSAMAGRM2EE
TG RE LR R BB R BGRG 2 WERERAIE
BEEMAARBZEAMBHRE LABTEERR
IRRGEAVBBMRZER I FHEARKIFNE
R BB B A SRR AT BT 2B BB o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

EMPHASIS OF MATTER REGARDING GOING CONCERN

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Group will continue as a going concern. As discussed in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
suffered recurring losses from operations, has net current liabilities
of approximately HK$33,084,000, and has stated that these events
or conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Management’s evaluation of the events
and conditions and management’s plans and measures regarding these
matters are also described in note 1. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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oE B EAXAERLF

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

. —TNF
2020 2019
gz FET THETT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RS Revenue 5 262,463 337,839
& R R A Cost of sales and services (261,519) (328,114)
E7 Gross profit 944 9,725
= N & Other income and gains 5 8,495 46,142
THREMR Administrative expenses (52,524) (52,087)
Hib & X 1% Other operating expenses, net (21,750) (19,360)
KEYENTFERWZ FRE Fair value gains on investment properties,
net 14 1,970 63
HESHRAFEEE Fair value loss on future contracts 6 - (75,763)
HtEp & EREERE Impairment loss on other intangible assets 16 (6,613) (6,570)
Py ] Operating loss 6 (69,478) (97,850)
B 75 B AR Finance costs 7 (3,064) (4,293)
MREBLATRE 1R Loss before tax (72,542) (102,143)
Fief(B8A) K& Income tax (expense)/credit 10 (904) 3,524
FEBR Loss for the year (73,446) (98,619)
FEfh Attributable to:
ZAN/NECIE 2N Owners of the Company (64,848) (88,810)
FEIE IR i an Non-controlling interests (8,598) (9,809)
(73,446) (98,619)
ARAREBAELBREER Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company 11
AR R EE (FRREN) Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) (5.38) (7.36)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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AEEH LBI & 2R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-EF —NEF

2020 2019

TET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEER Loss for the year (73,446) (98,619)
Ha2mzsE (BAx) Other comprehensive income/(expenses),

(MBRBIE) net of tax

NS EF Bk HE - Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
AR FE(E ﬁ;ﬁﬁm FFA Change in fair value of equity investments at
HEth2E KB BRAKRE 2 fair value through other comprehensive income
NEBEES - (443)
- (443)
HiEA e EF DM E B AR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
ZIEH - profit or loss:
T 2 B HUEE R 0 By B3R Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve

VE R B upon deregistration of a subsidiary 4,165 -
S BB A B ARER E 3 Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon

Il disposal of a subsidiary (61) =
MEBINEBEEZ Exchange differences on translation of

fEHZ%E foreign operations 9,377 (3,097)

13,481 (3,097)
FEHMG2ERSE (BAX) Other comprehensive income/(expenses)

(MBRBLIE) for the year, net of tax 13,481 (3,540)
FEXHEHMBAXAHE Total comprehensive expenses for the year (59,965) (102,159)
4G Attributable to:

KRAREE A Owners of the Company (52,554) (91,842)

FE 12 AR A 2 Non-controlling interests (7,411) (10,317)

(59,965) (102,159)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R-ZE-_ZF+-A=+—HUABTIE)
At 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-FF —TNF
2020 2019
B &t FHET AT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - WENKERE Property, plant and equipment 18 82,816 99,104
KEYE Investment properties 14 77,921 73,850
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 15 19,234 17,196
HihE\mEEE Other intangible assets 16 6,849 14,520
RIEFIBE E Deferred tax assets 29 - 347
FERBEERE Total non-current assets 186,820 205,017
REBEE Current assets
Ve Inventories 17 28,264 30,841
JE U BR 3R Accounts receivable 18 932 3,171
EBNRE e & Prepayments, deposits and
H i & U SR IB other receivables 19 15,948 22,247
JE L B 38 R R FRIR Amounts due from related companies 20 14,019 12,420
AT EREBHEEE A Financial instruments at fair value
EafemI A through profit or loss 21 15,706 19,781
Be RIRTES Cash and bank balances 22 6,893 35,784
MEBEEMLE Total current assets 81,762 124,244
REBEE Current liabilities
FE S BR 3R Accounts payable 23 4,801 4515
HEhE sk ETaE Other payables and accruals 24 52,113 52,539
FFERITREMEER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 25 28,980 33,060
FET R 2 A R IR Amounts due to related companies 26 27,955 26,740
HEBRE Lease liabilities 27 973 _
FE T B 18 Tax payable 24 50
mE B ERE Total current liabilities 114,846 116,904
RE (BB EEFEE Net current (liabilities)/assets (33,084) 7,340
EEHAERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 153,736 212,357

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEaMBRRE (&)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

RZZEZZTF+=ZA=+—H AELIE)
At 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

. —TNF
2020 2019
B &t FHET TFAET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
FERBEE Non-current liabilities
HERRE Lease liabilities 27 331 _
MIEEREY Financial guarantee contract 28 - 134
EIERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 29 34,403 33,256
FERDEGERE Total non-current liabilities 34,734 33,390
EEFE Net assets 119,002 178,967
= Equity
ARATEBAEMLER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
&N Share capital 30 120,625 120,625
(e Reserves 31 (14,078) 38,476
106,547 159,101
FEE RS Non-controlling interests 12,455 19,866
R Total equity 119,002 178,967

SEMBHRERNR_TE-_—F=A=+HEEEE The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

HERRETHAATESRERESSRE . for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021 and are signed on
its behalf by:
HE R
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
5 o
Director Director

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUABETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARAEE RS
Attributable to owners of the Company
R L EjiRE
kx  RBEEER BRfRE EfffR A% i it EE & FBRER hgs
Share Statutory Property Exchange Non-
Share premium surplus  revaluation Other  fluctuation Accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Tz Tén Tz TR Tz TR Tz TR T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(H#30) (1) (Hsiiy)
(Note 30) (Note 31(i)) (Note 31(ii))
RZB-%%-5-8 At 1 January 2020 120,625 163,910 18,380 1,132 21,259 4,000 (170,205) 159,101 19,866 178,967
BNAEE Profit or loss - - - - - - (64,848) (64,848) (8,598) (73,446)
Ef2@UE/ (B%) (NBH Other comprehensive income/
) (expenses), net of tax
BEENERELZESZE  Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - - 8,190 - 8,190 1,187 9,377
REBARMBEMESE  Realisation of exchange fluctuation
B REGE reserve upon deregistration
of a subsidiary - - - - - 4,165 - 4,165 - 4,165
REERBA AR Release of exchange fluctuation
B REGE reserve upon disposal of a
subsidlary - - - - - (61) - (61) = (61)
EE2ERE/ (BX)AE  Total comprehensive income/
(k5E) (expenses) for the year,
net of tax - - - - - 12,294 (64,848) (62,554) (7,411) (59,965)
RZE-FE+ZB=1+-H At31 December 2020 120,625 163,910 18,380 1,132 21,259 16,294 (235,053) 106,547 12,455 119,002

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

BE_Z-_TF+_A=+—HIFE (CABRIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KATRBARE
Atributable to owners of the Company
AT EE
EROALR
Ba  RIRREE iERBEE GAKEER  DRERER bk ENRDER ZithiR g fARER g
Fair value
Share Statutory ~ through other Property Exchange Non-
Share: premium suplus comprehensive revaluation QOther fluctuation ~ Accumulated controling Total
capital account reserve  income reserve TESeNe TESeIVg esere losses Total Inferests equity

T TR TR TiEn T TR TiEn Tin T TR TiEn
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000

(Hizt50) (Hizsm) (st
Note 30) (Note 31) (Note 31(i)
W-§-hE-F-A At1 January 2019 120,626 163910 18,380 (361) 1,182 - 6,089 (80,591) 29,684 30,183 259,867
by Profit or loss - - - - - - - (88,810) (88,810) 9,809 (98,619)
EHAAER (NREE) Other comprehensive expenses,
net of tax
WATEFEREEHA Change in far value o equity investments
L2 ENENRAREL atfai value through other
IRTEL) comprefensive income - - - (43 - - - - (43 - (843
BEBNERERENZE  Bxchange diferences on translaton
of foreign operations - - - - - - (2,589 - (2,589 (608) (8,097)
ER2ERRAR(1RRE) Total comprehensive expenses for
the year, net of tax - - - (443) - - (2,589) (88,810) 91,842) (10,317) 102,159)
IHENATEFERESH A Transter of far value resenve upon
L2 EAENRARER the disposal of equity investments
BATEGRER at fair valug though other
comprehensive income - - - 804 - - - (804) - - -
b Sharefolder's contribution - - - - - 21,259 - - 21,259 - 21,259
H-§-hAEt=R=1-A At 31 December 2019 120,626 163910 18,380 - 1,182 21,59 4,000 (170,206) 159,101 19,866 178,967

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 81
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE_T-_TFTA=+T—BLEFECABETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
= i —E L
2020 2019
B at FERT FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
REXBHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B 75 B 5 18 Loss before tax (72,542) (102,143)
BB TS EELFHE Adjustments for:
BT AR Finance costs 7 3,064 4,293
A B U A Interest income (191) (1,178)
H ﬁ%% W E RFEEE Gain on disposal of items of property,
2 W= plant and equipment (128) (1,011)
WEMERNTFE WG Fair value gains on investment
properties 14 (1,970) (63)
AYEFEAHEH Fair value losses/(gains) on equity
qu)\TE El TN investments at fair value through profit
R EZEE (W) or loss 4,075 (346)
M BELRKEBEZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13 5,811 8,336
CRAEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15 1,090 437
H b 8 B o B Amortisation of other intangible assets 16 = 9
EMETEE 2 RERRE Impairment loss on other intangible assets 16 6,613 6,570
FE YRR SR 2 R E & 18 Provision of impairment loss on
SRR accounts receivable, net 814 413
TETFRIE ~ e M E A R I Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss
PR RERBREE on prepayments, deposits and other
(#[E) F58 receivables, net 1,179 (442)
M - WEREE Impairment loss on property, plant and
A 1A equipment 13 9,507 13,224
7 & MO Write-down of inventories 3,791 1,994
BB ERAONTESEE (Reversal)/provision of expected credit
&8 (Em) B loss on financial guarantee contract (72) 10
B S IE IR A 48 5 Amortisation of financial guarantee
contract (67) (10)
VE 5 E518 55 Foreign exchange loss, net 11,645 =
BB N A e B S 48 Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary 4,165 -
S E A A e e Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 41 (3,902) (3,320)
(27,118) (73,227)
Y %15 &R Decrease in stock of properties = 3,411
7 &1 00 Increase in inventories (1,214) (17,041)
UAFESEBHEESA Increase in equity investments at
B ) IR AN &2 0 fair value through profit or loss = (19,435)
FEUBR FUR A (38 40) Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable 1,410 (2,314)
AR RIE - ke RHE A I Decrease in prepayments,
B deposits and other receivables 5,074 512
B W 8 B FUA (Increase)/decrease in amounts
(3gm) /E due from related companies (1,599) 236
FERTBRFRIE I, CRi4) Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 286 (64)
HihpEMNZELESBEE I  Increase in other payables and accruals 3,335 6,036
FEASHRE 3 2 R FOIE L N Increase in amounts due to
related companies 1,215 22,960
B ISR & #4935 A0 Increase in financial guarantee contract = 136
REXBARE Cash used in operations (18,611) (78,790)
B U R 1T F B Bank interest received 191 1178
2 WO N IR Overseas tax received 1,039 -
2B IMIIR Overseas tax paid (1,087) (2,767)
ARKE T 2HERETFHE Net cash flows used in operating
activities (18,468) (80,379)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

HE_ZT-_ZEF+_A=1T—RILFE(AETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
B &t FHET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETHEESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEME BERIREEE Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (3) (67)
HEWME BMERKXEEB Proceeds from disposal of items of
ZHETE A property, plant and equipment 277 1,071
HEA %@ 8 B HEF) Proceeds from disposal of equity
qu)\EmiEH& SHAE AR investments at fair value through
& B FT1S T other comprehensive income - 65
TR&H|IIR S (i-jju)/;\)ﬁy (Increase)/decrease of restricted cash (5) 16
LERNBARNRS Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
Cmi) /RAFE disposal of subsidiaries 41 (39) 1,703
RETBHFMBZEHELRETFHE Net cash flows from investing
activities 230 2,788
METHRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
ERHE Interest paid (1,952) (3,132
SNERLHER Loan arrangement fee paid (575) (625)
BRRITER Repayment of bank loan (2,483) (3,724)
EEEmER Repayment of other loan (2,000) =
REHEE Shareholder’s contribution = 21,259
EEHEaE Repayment of lease liabilities (699) =
BMEES (FrA) Bz Net cash flows (used in)/from
REeREFHE financing activities (7,709) 13,778
BeRESZEEY 2R FE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (25,947) (63,813)
FHzHEERACEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 35,721 100,822
INSTERBE) s B - F Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net (2,944) (1,288)
FRZEESRBESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 6,830 35,721
ReRESEEYHEH 294  ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R MIRITA Cash and bank balances 22 6,893 35,784
W ZREES Less: Restricted cash (63) (63)
JERREGERERERANZ Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
ReERREEEY the consolidated statement of cash
flows 6,830 35,721
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mAEMB®REMNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. RAREBERURFESEEE 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND

MEBEARRAB(ARF]) D—HERA
REFAMKLZABRIAF  ERHEESBH
ERXZMAERRR ([BRA]) EH - NRAA
RBEBZAMMER R T EL XM 2 i
RAFRE2EEFRIARAER —EIFWEE -

AR TEAAKER T (G ARE )R
FENGENEBREHOT ¢

« MERARRE

o« BERHERENH

. BHRA

. BB

o« BIRRR: R

o HERBRETHE -

ARREERS ARTMZEABRRAAR
BAIERA A A EHREARAR (52
HEE)) REURERESRAR  MED
ANFERERRABELHS (EBELH

5 1) AL - A& T SARF]
TERBITEFHERL -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

8 & X B R A A

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section on pages 2 to 3 of this annual
report.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) were involved in the following principal
activities:

° property investment and development;

° manufacture and sale of construction materials;

o securities investments;

° trading of mineral concentrates;

° coal mining; and

° sale of parts of mining equipment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company are Macrolink Group Limited (“Macrolink Group”)
and Truly Industry Investment Company Limited, which are
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands

(“BVI") respectively, and its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu
Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ?
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. AAIREBEESRURGFESERE (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

ARAIZ EBHBRARZERIT Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BERITR PN
Edi e MERE FEfh R 22
NCIEZR BuRGEmE EMER Bak TEXEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
HEEES
Directly held
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited EBETHS 1€ (%)) 100 &R
Junefield Energy Holdings Limited BVI United States dollars Investment holding
(“UsD”) 1
Topshine Reward Limited EBELRS 50,000% 7T 100 BRE R
Topshine Reward Limited BVI USD50,000 Investment holding
MERBERERARAA & 5,000,000% 7T KREER
Macrolink International Development Limited Hong Kong USD5,000,000 100  Investment holding
BERFAE
Indirectly held
T3 AR A A EES 1B T 100 EHRE
Best Yield Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Securities
investments
Compafiia Minera Caminante S.A.C. & 10,000 E X 100 R R
(=’ iR - FE
E i M IHE R
VA B2 48 BB B 3R 75
Compania Minera Caminante S.A.C. Peru Peruvian Soles Searching,
(“Soles”) 10,000 prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
EBEERBRAF e 1,000,000/ 7T 100 MERE
Ever Park Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Property investment
A ERAR AR Es BT 100 MERE
Golden Talent Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Property investment

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. RAREEERURGEREE (FH) 1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

ERITR NN
Edi e MERE FE 1L R 25
NCIEE: BRRKEmE EfER BAk TEEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
Grade Honor Investments Limited HERLHE 17T 100 & & 1 %
Grade Honor Investments Limited BVI USD1 Investment holding
MEREEMBRAR (DAMERE]) REARHME 11,000,000 7T 60 HERHEZEM
CiE=0)) (TR E ) %
Hunan Taiji Construction Material Co., Ltd. The People’s USD11,000,000 Manufacture and
(“Hunan Taiji”) (Note (i) Republic of sale of construction
China (“PRC”) materials
BB (EM) ABRAE (THE GEM) D B 2 TT 100 REER
Junefield (Building Material) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 Investment holding
(“Junefield Building Material”)
HBESBREARLQA Es 10,0007 7T 100 BHIRE
Junefield High Value Metals Hong Kong HK$10,000 Securities
Investments Limited investments
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. wmE 28,000 100 MHBEZHRIEE
IR T B0
Junefield Metal Development S.A.C. Peru Soles 28,000 Trading of mineral
concentrates and
sale of parts of
mining equipment
B A R 2 Al BB 187 100 REERK
Link Wide Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 Investment holding
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. MR 7,848,316 R 100 W &R
it ER R
Lima Junefield Plaza S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,848,316 Promotion and

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=1+—HBI-FE CABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
1. AAREEERURGEHRERE (F) 1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

ERTR PN
Edi e BMERE FE 1L R 25
NCIEZR BRREEmE EfER B TEEK
Place of Issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
BEEE (&)
Indirectly held (continued)
Minera RC S.A.C. W 7,286,874R 100 BR--Hx-
B - R -
B N iHE R
A B 4B B8 BR B 2 75
Minera RC S.A.C. Peru Soles 7,286,874 Searching,
prospection,
exploration,
development,
transport and sale
of coal and related
mining activities
Talent Note Limited REELHS 3%TT 100 REZR
Talent Note Limited BVI UsD3 Investment holding
HEBULR) BHEKLBERAR & 100,000 7T 100 /E i
([Eps E I E L& D) (K7 a23i)
BB OLR) BHELLERAH PRC USD100,000 Property agency
(“Junefield Property Agency”) (Note (i)
RYFTE TEERGR QA & 5,000,000 7T 100 BEE S
(TR EERe |) (B2t (i)
RYIFTER T B3 RAR QA (“Shenzhen PRC USD5,000,000 Trading of mineral

Macrolink”) (Note (i)

0] ZHBARIREFEEREMBANAERE -

(ii) EHHBARDBRETEEEEIMAIEBEEDL

-

EEZAR/LEREIZARAMB AR ANE
B AFEXEREARESARLAEERE
EFEZIERD BEERS  RHEMH

e

BRARZHABHEHENBRITE °
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concentrates

Notes:
(i) The subsidiary is registered as a contractual joint venture under the PRC law.

(if) The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. AAIREBEESRURGFESIERE (&) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

W EGREYBBRRDBEE SIS These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
((B5estmag ) B2 BB BREE in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
A ([ BEMBREER ) (BIEFAETBME (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
WmEXER - FESEL([FESTED]) Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
EZRB)REBEARGTRAIMEGER o IEL5 Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
EMBHRRNEBESARIGOIZIEBRTE Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles
MR FES EmBRA (T EmRAN]) 2 &R generally accepted in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial
BRER -BEESLEEEVBRRE Rk statements also complied with the disclosure requirements of the
EWEMBPARILERA R FENEIN B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable disclosure
ATESHEAGERA -BRIESINHE - & provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
ARG B MR AB TR - FTB @ RBER Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They have been prepared
ExEINTHET- under the historical cost convention, except for investment

properties and equity investments which have been measured at
fair value. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

GREVERERBEARFALENBARERE The consolidated financial statements include the financial
—ECEF+ - A=F+—HILFEZHER statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
K- MBARNARAREENEELEHZE ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including
B(EELBEMEER)  -EAKER2HEER a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
BRI &ERE 2 a &80 ska @ kA ES Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
ZHEER WERREKRE A ARERERES rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
NwERHReE (BIREZRAUBRKRERR and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
RFRE IS RIS B AR 2 HHEEE)) - BIRR the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
NE B EVS I R o ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
MARREESREERAE HILE R A LRAK When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
ZYRRERESNFELUER - B AREBRT G of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
ERCHEHERERNAZENRESEE — all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
PYHBEEENER B power over an investee, including:
(a) HEERENRHMREFTBEAZENL (a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
B the investee;
b) EHMELHNZHRELZERN & (b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
) AEBZHEENRBERERE- (c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBHRRHME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE-—2—

TELZA=+—BIEEE (LB TEIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or accumulated losses, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE—T - TFE+ - A=1+—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. RAREEERURGEREE (FH) 1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

AEBEIKLEHELLERE TREE_Z
—EFE+ - A=+—HILFEHEBFERE
4373,446,0008 7 MR =T =_EF+=A
=+—H  Ex¥AaEFELA33084,000
B ZSEHRBRAEAEAEEIRGE
A B M B R B TSR E KRR o

AR TEEEERDU T EERE RS E

BN

(@) BREEBEK  BBEURKAERERH (@)
XERRERE

b) HRIHEAREEEMAIRENE  ANE (b)
HRBESMANRN

© BRE-—ZTRERY EFBAKEHN (©
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@) BEB—"RBPEQARNBELE R=_T (d)
—EF+-A=1+—8  AEBEENZ
BENE AR ([ AR®]) 16,000,000
70 (#319,136,000/8TC) - R _TF
+-A=1+—RH% ZBEEQREMA
R #15,000,0007T (£917,940,0007% 7T )
FAEEMREHE— PHE I - %
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HERIER R T —EARNEESH
RERMERE : &
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EEAR MEEEE KMANEHE
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MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

The Group has suffered recurring losses from operations,
recorded a net loss of approximately HK$73,446,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and it had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$33,084,000 as at 31 December 2020. These
events or conditions may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have taken the following measures
to mitigate the liquidity pressure:

Implementing comprehensive policies to monitor cash flows
through cutting costs and capital expenditure;

Exploring the possibility of disposing assets of the Group to
enhance its liquidity position;

Soliciting for further financing arrangements which include
funding from a related company of the Group;

Obtaining financial support from a related company to
which the Group was indebted in an amount of Renminbi
(“RMB”) 16,000,000 (approximately HK$19,136,000) as at
31 December 2020. Subsequent to 31 December 2020,
that related company provided further financial support by
advancing RMB15,000,000 (approximately HK$17,940,000)
to the Group. The related company has undertaken not
to request for repayment of the total indebted amount
for twelve months from the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements; and

Strengthening its operation by entering into a property
operation and management contract with a related company
of the Group, thereby generating stable income and
operating cash flows to the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

21

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION AND
BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account
of the above measures covering a period of fifteen months from
the end of the reporting period prepared by the management,
as well as unutilised banking and other facilities of approximately
HK$9,568,000 as at 31 December 2020 available for drawdown,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group would be
able to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any future liabilities that may arise and to re-classify
non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following amendments to HKFRSs and
HKASs for the first time for the current year’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (early
adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the adoption of
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 and the
amendments to HKFRSs and HKASSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TE+_RA=+—HIEFEGAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation
5 Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised
in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

g As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

L I N S I
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 B EHMEBNFREM2EEMMEEHR 2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

SR (4F) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

BREMBRELERIFIN - BB LT ERIFEI9 Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
9 BEUMBREERFETR EBYERS and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
HERE AT ME B ISR EER FE165R A EE] amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
HE T W RMEET H R & HY LA E b B 2 FI == interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
BRI AMNEEERETEREEEZEN Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
B e FERETIRMETERE R TR effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
HEMEENBENESRIREREMERE amount when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
{EBF - AIAETHEREmSEMNIE N T EH the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
BERFE  fIREERF RS T 55 RKEE change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
REMERMNEERZR TEAREESE reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
HeRENMEEHEFEREERLE LS - flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
ZIEFT A FERMNREENEHERIEEAN preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit
EHXHETNERTSERERSTHR changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be
IF - BEEANFMNERDERRBELNE R made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without
LREBFOENREEE  BREREI the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses
Do B BRREENRWIETEARRK D - that could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
ZIEFTRER RS TERBVERRE [ A E5E 5 requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
AIMER - EERAEAMEREER X ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
BEWEETAIIEARBENRKRKD ZHE relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
24 AAm B Al E @A /) - REE W T requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The
[ATE R A ESK o AN > 3ZEEFI B EXK relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
BEEREFTZES  UFETERREEER that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the
BHNEEERNENEENSR T ANERE entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
BRENTE ZETBEAR_-_ZT_—F— separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
A—Bsv&RENFERRB - RABWE amendments require an entity to disclose additional information
RZE BARsftTEMATLHRARGER - ZEE to enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of
AR T EHASENMBERRELETEMNE interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments
N2 and risk management strategy. The amendments are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
22 B EHMEBNFREM2EEMMEEHR 2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

SR (4F) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

BERGTTEANFIRNETERLEEED Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
2 BEMEBREOKATNGRIAEEESEER from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
JEEH B R A IR R B B TR A proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
ARERARPEENHEMS - EHR - B8 to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
BELEEEMNTLEMSMEENK A AE operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
HoZBIEAR-E-_—_F—AF—Hzx 2 entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items,
BRI FEEE YEBPERANEE and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
B R R BTG B R FE RIS ST & R HIRS 1y are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Hsk 2 B HERAOYE  BENKEE 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
H - A HRAIEE  ZESEi]Bet~edKR property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after
SENUBRREETRNERLE - the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial

statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.
AL EREITHE BE  AiLEE Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
AR EBTEUNETREMEEEEES whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of
Bl BITERMKABERES R BEEZHEBD fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly
KA - AR EZMBBENKAERIERITZ to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
SRIBIEERA (Flin - HBELTANME) - both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
tEEEETZE R EEMRBHE M AN labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
S8 (FIn - ARBEITERBNME - BE KRR relate directly to fulfiling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
HHEENTEBRUREREBEMEERKA depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
M) - —MREEKANESRTEZHER - used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
TEBEERN  BRIFERPBPERERR S Y and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
FHWEZEAR - ZIEFTERER T - —F relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
— A —HeEZERBHNFEERE  WEER explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
REBEHEHFRXEREBITNFERESHB amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
TMHABITEHAMBEBNER © 2 FTIRATEK 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
A -BRERBINIMNERTERERA entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
HEAXEABNHYERNARE mMAEd annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
HEEE - ZE BBt T e Y AER N Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
BHREREETMNEATE - applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment

to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

¥ o= B & A B B A 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #



B SeN g

A EE M ()
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BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the Group are
as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
Illustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FESHHFEHE 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
REBEPRR  AEBHRAFEFEERKE The Group measures its investment properties and equity
MERERIEE - AEEAMISEREE NS investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
ESEHHEEFRRXSHPLEEEEMSD S EE value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
BEMTHOEE - A FEFEREREK to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
HEEENEREENRINEEXBEE participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
EmEk(EETETBEBELTN XEEFH is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
SETMELD - T EBERHZEEBEMGEAEN or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
EEA@EACTSE BEESBENAFED the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
BBREMSR2HEENEEXEETERZ I most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
REXELENRITENS - or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the

Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

FeRmMEEZAFEAENEETLERMESE A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
ARFAEEE &R k&ERGNEED account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
ETHREREEN &S RREREZS—T benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
BREAE . MEERELKEBERNIS S - it to another market participant that would use the asset in its

highest and best use.

AEBEFERABERRARIBRZ GERM - m The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
HERHERAEATE  URSFAHIERH the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
ARG AHBLREZER D FERA AL R &G measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
AEE - inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
FrEERATFEHNGE P HEHRERTE LR All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
ZEERABHERHEATEFEEREME disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are categorised
BEACHEBH ALRXE (R AT 55 within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
ENFEZLRHE lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:
F—H — RBEHLAREESKAGHER Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
TSR IRE CRFAE) for identical assets or liabilities
FH - RBREHQAFEFENEEBE Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
AZAER(EEXEE) & lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
KE@ A2 2HERE measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly
F=H - REHQAYEFENEEE Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
AZTABERKEEH AL lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
B2 HERE measurement is unobservable

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REP E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEEHKEME () 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FER—FWBUATIER  BIWEAEANEE A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
B A
(@ ZAHAB BALTHEMBREZHEEZK (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
B maz AL family and that person
(i) i ek HEFEHE A EE (i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
iy HEAEBEEAFE %k (i)  has significant influence over the Group; or
iy BAEEXAEBFTRAAZEE (i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
ERERKE Group or of a parent of the Group;
e o
b) ZABEE BFS THEMEIGEHE : (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:
i) ZEREAEEBR 5B 2K (i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
I=W/NG| group;

iy —HEERAS—HEE(HS—MH (i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
B 2ERA - B ARHE R entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
BRR) ZHBERRKEELE the other entity);

(i) ZEREAAKERR-—F=F2 (i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
EBNE third party;

vy —"HERBAF=ZFTEREZAZD (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
¥ ME—HERBAZF=-LE® other entity is an associate of the third entity;
2N A

v) ZEBERBAAEENEAREHRSH (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
B BERMEESRART 2B benefit of the employees of either the Group or an
%@ FEHE entity related to the Group;

(Vi ZEBX@QTEZATES L (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
& 42 ) identified in (a);

Vi) @O)EEZATHZEREE AT (viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
27 YEM = (EEEZEE%Z’& over the entity or is a member of the key management
A ZETESEERE personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) MAEBE AL B 2 QR EE (vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
FTEEBEAERB 2 EREKEMN part, provides key management personnel services to
BEBE 2 AERMKERR the Group or to the parent of the Group.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) ‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEEHKEME () 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

W% BE MREBRKARREITE AW
HMEBEIIR EWE BB LREEEB K
DERGEREXRRREEEAN —HO WD
BREEEER THBHEFRAELRE
B IRE LR ESFRINE - WE - BE LR
BRENAABEREBEEREEER N
E R EEEEMOR KB E LN EM B R
A

ME BEMIBEBERAEFERASRZ
ER(HEREER) REEELPHE
FEBmRTME ENSERENNER
T HAXEREMNHARETEANGTA
EREEZEEREE WYX BEER
BHNEEHXNFTETREE  AEEHER
B RENEEREERFRHZEEZTHA
FERTIRITE -

WE - BEMRREBEEEB AR FH
NEREAEFE  UMBEERKAZHE
B-BUMERBZERFRAT

KA FERE LT H TEHITE

BF 202304
HEWMHEEE THHAGF & 2 BREE
BB s 4124

N 5%

TEHE 3E6EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When an
item of property, plant and equipment is classified as held for
sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated

20 to 30 years

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 6 years

Plant and machinery 4 to 12 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 to 6 years

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

W BMENMZHEEBE 2EAKBLE TR Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
ZAHAEH BZEBZKAIEEECERE different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
DEESAKT D SEHEKBYBLFTE reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
e -RE- -AIBFPERTEFEZELRE separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
BT HRFEERETHRTRAZ (WEA) - method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each

financial year end.

Y - BENMEREEE (BIEVBHER 2R An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant

B BEFREE  SFEFEFERSHE part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
AEEARERLERZER & FFEDR - HEK future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
BEMEEZEMMEREEREERLE Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
REFEGABRZERTER HEmALE consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is
EHEEMGHAFHEHEERABE CERE derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

REYELAFERDES WA R SHIEEA Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
WEMmMEANEESHEES DR HITH the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
B SKEHFEKBREPLEE 2 T ME otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
FrRER (BREEAEREEERENEEY earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
X OHFEMITATAREVEESR) - %5 for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
MEVIEAR AR (BIERXSKA)FTE o W4 administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
W% REVERAFTERZY @ REFE business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
BIRA T R © transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment

properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

WEMELATECESAEAZEZ A Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
FMEEFEZHEEBRERK - investment properties are included in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

MESKHEREME 2 E BN HREES Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
HEFEZHRAGEERT TIAER - property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEEHKEME () 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Mining rights are initially measured at cost. The carrying amount
of exploration and evaluation assets is reclassified to mining rights
when the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting
mineral resources are demonstrable. Mining rights with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment losses. The mining rights with finite
useful lives are amortised on a unit of production basis over the
estimated economic reserve of the mine.

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Exploration and evaluation assets include the
cost of exploration rights and the expenditures incurred in the
search for mineral resources as well as the determination of the
technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting those
resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrated, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified
as either mining rights or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

EEARRR  AEBFHAAORSATEE The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
FBEEHE MREHNBEL —BREAR is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
R EEFRAEEEABRIRRE  BIEY contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
REENBEEHEE - for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

AEBYMEHEERE —HBRMTEH The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
F o EHHERBEEEEEREERI o A approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
SERRELEENRENHEASRE AR low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
REEBEETHENSRAESE - lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to

use the underlying assets.

(a) (EHELE (a)  Right-of-use assets
HEHERKHE (BBEEE T H#ERD Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
HE) r MARRFERAEEE - F 4 date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
BEENKAGE @ W ERFTIHTEAN is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
WEEE REEEHEaENEH:T at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
SETHAE - FRAEEENKABIER impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
EEENREREE  BENVKREES of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
B AREHRESRRS B 2RI A the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
MEMNZ=ZE  HBRKINEBEESE - E costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
SRS EGTERS D EAE commencement date less any lease incentives received.
FMAEREGE LS FEAREETIRTE Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
AR over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful

lives of the assets as follows:

HE LT 504 Leasehold land 50 years
THREF 2% Land and building 2 years
IMREEEERMTA RS B4 RAF If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
BRI AEESKRARBESITEEE R the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
2 AR EEMTERSwmTEN of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
E- estimated useful life of the asset.
EFAREENAREVENERR When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
FEVERIEEBYED|R - ZZFRAEEE property, it is included in investment properties. The
REAREE R EYZE I BEER - 9IIRIA corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured
A =E  BEBURFEZ - at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment
properties”.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=1+—HBI-FE CABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c) FKHHE (c) Short-term leases
AEBBEBHEERRREERAREY The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
¥WESMEE (AEHSEMM®GE - A exemption to its short-term leases of properties (that
ff\ﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬂ ERHENEE - BT is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
EEBEEERE) - less from the commencement date and do not contain a

purchase option).

NHHENHENAEEEERRNIZR Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
BEREAERRER - expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
EXRSERHEAA - HRESMBE (SN When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
HHEBKR) BESHE DB AKEHES (or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either

BEMEE - an operating lease or a finance lease.
AREFBWTEEEEMAREMNSHLT 2 EE Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
RN ERNEEREACEMHE - IR the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
—Iﬁé\?ﬁ’ﬂﬁfﬁ‘éﬁﬂﬁk*ﬂ 3 LA R IEFR E4H Ak classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
i ElJZJX’E Eiz B EAK I DS E and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
?%'%fﬁ LEAFRRETEEAXLS © in the contract to each component on a relative stand-alone
%Efﬁ%%’\&%ﬁ CHEWATEHEERANZR selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
BEREIAER UBEEEBZRANKA - R line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
EE R e HER ANV EEER statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
MAHEEENRASRE  WEBEHNIE costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
R & WA B R B B MR o added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

15 48 B8 & 2 FT 5 1 B 7 Y £ & B0 R B RN 3R Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
@}HL%’%Eﬁﬂ}\ﬁ’\ﬁﬁf{’ﬁﬁmﬂﬁfﬁﬁkﬁﬁ incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are

accounted for as finance leases.

LD SREED B ABE Y Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
MAGE - LAFEFEEEESH AEM subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
2HEKREARARATFEFEBEZEH AR other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.
J/ﬁ. o
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23 FEEHKEME () 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractural
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with, the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

TRMEE(K(MER) cMEE DA A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

HeMEBEMARN—ZD) EEBENBRT asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

SRR (BB ARKB 2R T AR REKF S derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

) : statement of financial position) when:

° WHREEZRSREZENERE 3¢ . the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

e AEBECEHRUNEEMELRESRE e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
ZRER - B REREEREIETF T8 from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
ME=ZAZNE2HEWR RS REM received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
EEBALER WHE@AREEEEZE party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
EZ@®AKSBrEBRNER @ sib)AEE Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
Wi Ee (REE X B E 2 BRI AR of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
KOsk BEEEZEE 2GR - retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

MAREFEPEZEWNEEMELRESRELZ When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
BRI vVEFLE  BIFHEREGTRY from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
ZEAEMAE R &@%&&Ekﬁ ﬁK it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
SRV EEEIREBEZEERRNI S rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
Bl MBS REZEE IR - E'JZ’S%@ nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
BHAREBFTEE P K& 212 E AR i E R nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
REEEEE - EMBERT  XEBEIRE recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
HREEAGE CEEEAEREBAEGYIR continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
IR AEECRE 2EMNEEFE 2 EES an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
=g liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.
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POLICIES (continued)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group generally considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts
in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for accounts receivable and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group calculates ECLs of accounts receivable that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

cREERERNERESEAURAFER Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
EREEFHAEGZNSHAE B NE liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
B ENIUE skEANE PRI TFE AY D payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
TEAZPTATH  SFERME ° an effective hedge, as appropriate.
FMESRBEENRAFERER WAEXR All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
REEAREMNZE  BILEEREZXS the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
A FEEER © attributable transaction costs.

AEEZCRBEBREEMNRERER  sTAEAM The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, financial
[ XNE: IE&JE?EFEZ}_HEEL =t B2 R1T liabilities included in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
LEMEE - EMNEEARZFE HEARE bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies,
AR IS ERE A ° lease liabilities and financial guarantee contract.
SREBBEZHEEFERFEUATSEME The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

LEBEK AT E @A E(EAREER) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

REXERE SAEERREEHE L/(,\ After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
BRI E R AGE WA 22 subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
EAR ARG ER o %‘EF%M%EEM\LA& interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
REBRMRRETHEARESD  EEA18% immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
KRS REE - losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

SRR AN 7 5 E T B R RS 2 (s s Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
B URHEAKERFE 2D 2B AA - or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
ERRBHEIAGLEERR MK ANR - part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate

amortisation is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial guarantee contract

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group is the contract
that requires a payment to be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: () the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out or weighted average
basis and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEEHKEME () 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxable authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

B AHWARE @R AIE G #EEZ A Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
EERNWER ZeHENMARNEFERTHZE control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
Em RGBT A REESHNRE - amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

EANPHREBESAE4%ENE @A When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
EHERARFEETMARBEAS M AR the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
EEHNRELE fEREBESAORBREGE be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
HUWZEES  BEEE SR EHENTE to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
EMERE - 25T EBARKA SEEAET contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
T BERWAERL a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue

recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

BEAATHEESRMEXD  ARPHE®ER When the contract contains a financing component which
BEENRERBBERE —FNEANER - provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
WAREWZIENIRESE  EEAEAE transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
BEHEFEAYHEBEBNARERZH year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
SRNMAITERITIR - EANFTESEEK receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
o BAREBERMET —F U ENEXNTIEF reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
@ REBEGAOBRRHKABEENARER and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
BERMEEZEINOMNERS - HHAEBH contains a financing component which provides the Group with
BREERFE1SHEHREREFIRIEN A a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
EHEPXNEREEEDAETREER recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
BrENERAE - FXEREAEMNEEL - accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
"SR EAMEKN DN FERABRISER - method. For a contract where the period between the payment by

the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

KEHERE HRNMEERES AW Revenue from sale of mineral concentrates, coal and parts of

AR EBEEH#ER TR (—HR mining equipment is recognised at a point in time when control of

78 G B ) fERR o the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods.

KB HEMERUATEY) B N E BT Revenue from sale of properties are recognised when effective

HEEETYE AREER HALTEMARE control of ownership of the properties is transferred to the buyer,

BTEHTEKHREE - which is the point in time upon completion of the transfer of legal

title to the buyer.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEEHKEME () 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Management fee income is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 FEETHEME (8) 2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

BRENAETFSE YE BERREBEUARE Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
METLEENKAIN  mE NIIEESN AE property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets, costs
TENEENKN BN E—BEE - incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an

asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(a) FZAKANERE B2 T {E BRI & Al sk T8 B (@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
DS E N EZEA - contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) FZEKAEAESIENTERERKBRET (b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
(KBFERIT) BHEENEIR - that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)

performance obligations in the future.

(c) ®AKATEHARESYE - (c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

REEHERNMENE LKA BEZEENR The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
BHNERREERE FEEERERMN RS consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that
CERETEE  STAGREEER - HihE4 is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
B AN FE B AR S g o services to which the asset related is recognised. Other contract

costs are expensed as incurred.

NEBBRIBERSEABESTEEN  AEE The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
BR2EBRHEANESERNREBFRETE ([EBF Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
8D 2 EREEE—RAATHIBRES the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
HE o MMHRBREEEATE S CETEOLE employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
B WA IR oh iE £ 5T 2048 B FE N B Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
SEBRRNGER -BESTE 2 EEN basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated statement
AEEEEIHPBE VTHAEVEECES of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
IR e AEB ZEETHAER BB TS H# rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
HENEHEETES held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

AEBRFAE WMERENZBELE ZHNE The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in the
ANREEBZLHBEM T RTEIE Z P RENK PRC, Peru and Ecuador are required to participate in a central
BETE c HARTIIRIRE R RBRIKRSETEIH A pension scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
FERHE RS TEAR G B E KRB o The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of

profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due, taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available. For
financial assets at amortised cost other than accounts receivable,
the Group applies the general approach which is also referred to
the “three stage” model. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast of economic conditions. The Group’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are disclosed in note 18 and note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. EAESHHERLS(E) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

ANEBEEEEaEET s ERESARA The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
BT ERX - Mt DIREBMEE RIaEER and consequently related depreciation charges. This estimate is
M BMEAKZEER]FEAFHNAT based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
LEMIEL - Erl e g AR M A3 RFEF L property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
FRARENITERSRMEITESMAE B RE It could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
b WaEAFHR NG AE - BIE and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
BEeIRSTERY  siiERMBERKE R Management will increase the deprecation charge where useful
EEal B E R IERBE B E MBS WOR - W lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write off
MELEER_ZE_EFE+_A=+—HZ or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
AR H B 49 582,816,000/ 7T (=& — JL4F : have been abandoned or sold. The carrying amount of property,
99,104,000/ 70) ~ #E—FHIFHNGEE T plant and equipment at 31 December 2020 is approximately
HwERMTF13 - HK$82,816,000 (2019: HK$99,104,000). Further details are

included in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

HEEARGE LR EEE 2 EmEe NS The carrying amounts of mining rights and exploration and
EHBER BB BERA S E AR EREE evaluation assets are reviewed for impairment when events or
FEHRERN AEESEZEEMEEEE changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not
CEENEBRANHEZEEERIEARED R be recoverable. The Group considers all facts and circumstances
PR A R R R FT A B E 2 IR 8 A B occurred to judge whether these facts and circumstances
ZHEBEYE S (BB RE) - fl i E would suggest that the carrying amounts of mining rights and
SHAEEATEREEXKARFEREEWN exploration and evaluation assets may exceed their recoverable
E2REE - FREBENTHERAEEFT amounts (i.e. impaired). The recoverable amount is the higher of
EREREELEMNAHRRRERE its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating
IR ERESENITHERUFEZERSRE the value in use requires the Group to estimate the expected
MIAREE - E—PHFBEHNGRE T BRE future cash flows from the cash-generating units and to choose
M5E16 ° a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of

those cash flows. Further details are included in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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A77,921,000/8 7T (ZZF — J14F : 73,850,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Investment properties of the Group are stated at fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.3
to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of
investment properties at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$77,921,000 (2019: HK$73,850,000). The fair value of
investment properties, set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, are determined with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer. Such
valuations are made based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from the actual
results. In making the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based
on market condition existing at the end of the reporting period.
These estimates are compared to actual market data and actual
transactions in the market.

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020
was nil (2019: approximately HK$347,000). Further details are
included in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE—T - TFE+ - A=1+—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER

REERNME  AREREBEMZE®

MR D B THINEZ2HmE

#

(@) MERERBRSE HELBERHEE

YE
b) HERHEZEMHIEM  LERER
HEBE
) EFEEIH WFELMEFKRE
(d RBBEEZOM KEHRBEES

() HRFRDE - HERBRFFE 2R

RFEEARRBERERAREE &

() EoE RERBRETIIHEE -

EEEBBRUERASE I REDEHEE U
BELBERAERIERRAFGEZRR -9
BRADBRBE2RD M, BETME - M
2R WEF BB BALFHER B AR
M/ EIEFE - KRPBERBAEN,BEZ
AEAAEREEZGHRAERFETRA —
B R EL A ARITHEWARE
R D RWA RS - MBEKRA - MBS0
RNFEEEAREMADE 2 B ERE NS

BMEM-

DHWEETBRELCHAEE R kBRE
FEY  BKREDERRFIAIANEM R DA
BERERMEEEE AR/RFEENRE

BEETRE -

DHMBETEREERTRAEMES B
FENRIZIE  MHEREQ - HEAREMN
REMADEERFRELEBEE  HA%

FRENEEEEAEEE -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has six reportable
and operating segments as follows:

(@) the property investment and development segment engages
in leasing and sale of properties;

(b)  the manufacture and sale of construction materials segment
engages in the manufacture and sale of slag powder;

(c) the securities investments segment engages in investing in
listed securities;

(d) the trading of mineral concentrates segment engages in the
trading of mineral concentrates;

(e) the coal mining segment engages in the exploration and
development of coal mines concessions and mining for sale
of coal; and

(f)  the others segment engages in the sale of parts of mining
equipment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group’s loss before tax except that bank interest income and
other unallocated income and gains, finance costs, fair value loss
on future contracts as well as other unallocated head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from related companies and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, amounts due to related companies, financial
guarantee contract, lease liabilities and other unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a
group basis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. EHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
REBZRERDBE D 2D IHEESTWT ¢ An analysis of the Group’s segment results by reportable segment
is as follows:
BE_Z-_ZHF+-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2020
NERE HERHE
R%E RERE BEnA RFRES RRER B @it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining Others Total

TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A Segment revenue:
IREFLHE/ 58 Sales to/revenue from external customers 4,112 - - 258,085 119 2973 265,289
REWA Investment income o (2,826) - - - - (2,826)
WAREER 2% Total revenue and investment income 4,112 (2,826) - 258,085 119 2,973 262,463
T Segment results 3,101 (2,825) (20,799) (3,025) (14,205) (4,163) (42,006)
BONBMARE Bank interest income and other

RO BRA RN & unallocated income and gaing 8,504
SEREMANERY Corporate and other unallocated expenses (36,066)
RARBHRA Unallocated finance costs (3,064)
BHAES Loss before tax (712,542)
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

oE B E X E R LT
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mEMBHRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (88E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
o EBELE (4’) SEGMENT RESULTS (continued)
BHE-_Z—AFE+-_A=+—BILtEE Year ended 31 December 2019
VESE HERHE
RER Rk E BEME FEZH BRAR fh st
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral Coal
development  investments materials  concentrates mining QOthers Total

ThET TET TET TET TET THET THEL
HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000

ARG Segment revenue:
NREE BE /BT Sales to/revenue from exteral customers® 9,533 - - 318,148 2128 7,684 337,493
RERA Investment income = 346 = - - - 346
BARZESALE Total revenue and investment income 9,533 346 - 318,148 2,128 7,684 337,839
PH%E Segment results (1,487) 343 (24,166) (2,281) (12,609) (2,839) (43,033
FOFSRARE Bank interest income and other unallocated

AORBARKE income and gains 42,304
SEREBRIERT Corporate and other unallocated expenses (21,358)
HEANLTEER Fair value loss on future contracts (75,763)
AP RHHRE Unallocated finance costs (4,299)
BHAES Loss before tax (102,143)

AR DAz HERBMTRE - #r EIE L HER - * Since the amount of intersegment sales is insignificant, no reconciliation has

been made.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED .
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GAMBBRAME (R) |
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) "

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
4. EHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

AEEZR2HROHE D 2O BEERABIN
REMDEIWERIFAOT

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities and
other segment information by reportable segment is as follows:

BE-_Z_ZF+-A=1+—HLEE Year ended 31 December 2020

NERE HERHE
KRR BERE BEnA RREZ BB B @it
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining Others Total

- Thn TEn - - TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BEREE: Assets and liabilities:
APEE Segment assets 86,587 54,397 10,770 2,125 199,950
SEREMADEAE Corporate and other unallocated assets 68,632
BEE Total assets 268,562
b=t Segment liabiies 43,675 15,251 559 4,024 64,902
SEREMANEAR Corporate and other unallocated liabilties 84,678
BafE Total liabilities 149,580
ApadEs: Other segment information:
RERNBRZTEREH Depreciation and amortisation charged in

profit or loss 4 3,01 335 4 347
SEREMADELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 3,484

6,901

RENEATENGTE Fair value gains on investment properties,

net (1,970) - - - (1,970)
N BERRERNEEE Impairment loss on property, plant and

equipment - 9,507 - - 9,507
GFEHH Write-clown of inventories o 2,374 656

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DIER (F) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SHEENEGBUREEM S IER SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER
(48) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-Z-_ZEF+-A=+—HLFEHE) Year ended 31 December 2020 (continued)
NERE HERHE
& #5RE BEMH RRES BB B st
Property Manufacture
investment and sale of Trading
and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials ~ concentrates  Coal mining Others Total

TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BV AERERR Impaiment loss on other intangible assets - - - - 6,613 - 6,613
EWE R EEE Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss on
&/ (BR) 58 accounts receivable, net (54) - - - 9 00 814
BT SE  REREMERFE  Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss
FEGEEE/(BE)E  on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net (29) - - (4M) 872 834 1,206
SERERANELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 1)
1,179
HENE  BRER Gain on dlisposal of tems of property,
BGLEED S plant and equipment
-EEREMANELE - corporate and other unalocated amounts (128)
BRRZA Capital expendture’
-SARAMASREE - corporate and other unallocated amounts 1,973
A BEARZBERENE BERREREAEE A Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment
-3 and right-of-use assets.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

TELZA=+—BIEEE (LB TEIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. EHER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
SHEENEGBUREEM S IE R SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER
(#]%) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE-_ZE—hWF+_A=+—HILFE Year ended 31 December 2019
VIES ¢ HER
RER BRRE  HEREMH REZS BRFR i )
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Coal mining QOthers Total
AL AL TAL TAL AL AL TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERER: Assets and liabilities:
PHEE Segment assets 83,114 19,781 65,062 33,881 20,907 5,338 228,083
SEREMAIREE Corporate and other unallocated assets 101,178
BEE Total assets 329,261
PHEE Segment liabilities 41,633 - 12,891 466 565 4721 60,276
ERREMANEAR Corporate and other unallocated liabilties 90,018
BafE Total liabilities 150,294
EadEs: Other segment information:
RERMBITEREH Depreciation and amortisation
charged in profit or loss 2,915 - 4,901 129 561 5 8,511
SEREMANEES Corporate and other unallocated amounts 71
8,782
BEMFATENS Fair value gains on investment properties (63) - - - - - 63
% BERXERESE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment - - 13,224 - - - 13,224
FEHA Write-cown of inventories - - - - 1,994

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE_Z_TF+_A=+—HLEFE UGB TIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DITER (8E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
STHEENEGBUREEM S IE R SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND OTHER
(nﬁ) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HE_Z—NAFE+_A=+—BLFE (&) Year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
mERE RHER
RER BHRE  HEREMH #EES G Hf i
Manufacture
Property and sale of Trading
investment and Securities  construction of mineral
development  investments materials  concentrates  Goal mining Others Total
AL AL AL AL ThL AL AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BV AERERR Impaiment loss on other intangible assets - - - . 6,570 . 6,570
R R BESE Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss on
%/ (80) 58 accounts receivable, net 107 - - - (59) 365 413
BB REREMEWEIE  Reversal of impaiment loss on
HEFRERTE prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net - - - (162) (166) (116) (444)
SEREMRIELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 9
(442)
HENE  BERZKEEE (Loss)/gain on disposal of items of property,
(B58) /Y& plant and equipment (1) - - . 93 _ 9%
SEREMRIELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 49
1,011
EREY Capital expenditure* 38 - - - - - %8
SEREMRIELE Corporate and other unallocated amounts 29
67
# EAMYBREANBEYE  BENZENHEMERLE # Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment

Ee
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ma s HHE%%B{TE (1)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

—F=FF —T-NF

2020 2019

FHET FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fh PRC 259,542 317,354
WE Peru 5,747 20,139
BB Hong Kong (2,826) 346
262,463 337,839

ERAER IR E P RE DR -

(b) FHEEE

The revenue information above is based on the location of

the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

—E-EF —T-NF

2020 2019

FTHExT FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

A PRC 132,351 136,726
WE Peru 53,133 68,027
a5 Hong Kong 1,336 70
ENZ8 Ecuador - 194
186,820 205,017

ERFRBEEENNIREEMELD
B

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

The non-current assets information above is based on the

location of assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

4. DEHER (88E) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
ERTEREF2EHR Information about major customers
N R v e BB AKRERA Revenue from customers of corresponding periods contributing
EHEFEHI0% 2 ER T ¢ over 10% of total revenue of the Group is as follows:
—BERF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
FTERT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFPA(ELBREE S D) Customer A (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) 171,266 80,335
EFPB(EEBREE S D) Customer B (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) - 54,975
BEFC(ELREE S HE) Customer C (attributable to trading of mineral
concentrates segment) - 47,027
5. WAREHMWARWKEF 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
REB ZWADHTT : An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
—ECEHF —ET—NF
2020 2019
FTERT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
PN Revenue
EEEH WA Revenue from contracts with customers
iHE R IE Sale of mineral concentrates 258,085 318,148
HERBXBEZ I Sale of parts of mining equipment 2,973 7,684
HEME Sale of properties - 5,022
$H & B iR Sale of coal 119 2,128
261,177 332,982
K E E it FKIF 8 KA Revenue from other sources
el ARz Gross rental income 4,112 4,511
NEE(EER) W - F58 - Fair value (losses)/gains, net:
NATFEFEBEEES Equity investments at fair value through
FFABRNBRAKRE profit or loss (4,075) 346
PR B Dividend income 1,249 -
1,286 4,857
262,463 337,839

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) '
BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5. WARHMKARIWE () 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

BE-Z-B2Ff+-A=+-BHLFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FRES HERBER Hitb Bt
Trading of
mineral Coal
o Segment concentrates mining Others Total

FTERx FERT FERT FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EmkREESE Types of goods and services
HE BE Sale of mineral concentrates 258,085 - - 258,085
SHERERBZ I Sale of parts of mining equipment = - 2,973 2,973
8 & B R Sale of coal - 119 - 119
EFEHNWMAELE Total revenue from contracts

with customers 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
i E 5 Geographical markets
=8 PRC 255,430 - - 255,430
WE Peru 2,655 119 2,973 5,747

EFAEHWANEEE Total revenue from contracts

with customers 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
LON A Timing of revenue recognition
1E X — g eh At a point in time 258,085 119 2,973 261,177
£— BRIl A Over time - _ _ _

EFSHWBAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 258,085 119 2,973 261,177

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE —EF+ZA=T—HLEFECBTIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
5. WARHEMKM AR WE (8) 5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)
EFEESHAWAND B (&) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)
BE_ZE—hWF+_A=+—RHIL=EE Year ended 31 December 2019
MERE
RER BRES BRI Hith B3
Property
investment Trading of
and mineral Coal
aR: ] Segment development  concentrates mining Others Total
FTET FTAET THT FTET FTET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EmkREES Types of goods and services
3 E R Sale of mineral concentrates - 318,148 - - 318,148
SHERBEREZH  Sale of parts of mining equipment - - - 7,684 7,684
HEMF Sale of properties 5,022 - - - 5,002
55 & R I% Sale of coal - - 2128 _ 2128
BEFEHWAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
ih & T 15 Geographical markets
=8 PRC - 312,127 - 716 312,843
WE Peru 5,022 6,021 2,128 6,968 20,139
BEEEHWAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
WA i 2R Timing of revenue recognition
£ — B At a point in time 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
E—EEEA Over time - - - _ _
BEEEHWAEE Total revenue from contracts
with customers 5,022 318,148 2,128 7,684 332,982
TR RS W) &EEA =R AV The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
HEHRNEZOWA L 5E the current reporting period that were included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

. —E-NF

2020 2019

FHET FAET

HK$’000 HK$’'000

HEE M Sale of goods - 1,853

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5. WARHEAMWARKE (&)
BEFEHWBAND# (&)

PTEEHRTBEANETHNR ZER AR
SR —FRERB/EA -

REE 2 MR A R WS T

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.

An analysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows:

—E-EF —ET—NF
2020 2019
THER FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hin g A kW= Other income and gains

HRATH B HA Bank interest income 191 1,178
B U ERBS (B (H#/2236(a)) Compensation received (note 36(a)) = 33,510
MEREBRESWA (B 720) Property agency commission income (note (i) 1,296 -

HEWE  BER Gain on disposal of items of property,

I B W plant and equipment 128 1,011
Hth F 2 A Other interest income - 988
EERERA Management fee income 2,150 2,469
HEKT B A A /U = Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,902 3,320
FE 3 W 25 0% 58 Net foreign exchange gains - 800
FFEEAMTIIER Over-provision of other tax and levies in prior

BEBRERZ years = 2,794
BT Bh (HTa(i) Government grants (note (ii)) 758 -
EAfh Others 70 72

8,495 46,142
it - Notes:

0] MEREBMERATIREETEZF Z2RNEH -
WHER B BRER o

(ii) REBE-_ZT-_TF+-_A=+—RALLEFERN  £&
5| Bt Covid-1948 8 7 B e 52 U 74 B) £9758,0007%8
T EDEBESBITRMAN RIS - 5
BN & 1R E B 18 B RS B3R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

(i) The property agency commission income was arising from contract with
customer in the PRC and recognised at a point in time.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately HK$758,000 in respect of Covid-19-
related subsidies, related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong government. The grants were recognised when the required
employment conditions were fulfilled.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBHRRME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
6. OPERATING LOSS

:

6. KEFE

AEBZELEBRELNR, GIA)

The Group’s operating loss is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—EZEF —E-NF
2020 2019
iora FHET TAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BERAAX Employee benefits expense
(TEREEHE) (excluding directors’ remuneration) (i)
e IENEMEYRET Salaries, wages and other benefits
in kind 18,068 22,383
RORAE N ET B 50 Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes 1,986 2,339
20,054 24,722
1% 25 6 BN <& Auditors’ remuneration 900 900
EREEEZFE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 1,090 437
R T 1 2 4 Amortisation of mining rights (included
(FFASHE MARTEKAR) in cost of sales and services) = 9
FERAER BRI Cost of inventories recognised as an
expense (iv) 265,200 329,145
mE - BER Depreciation of property, plant and
BT E equipment (iii) 5,811 8,336
BE 5 B8 FE 5E Net foreign exchange loss 15,134 =
FEUBR R BB 1B B E F 5 Provision of impairment loss on accounts
receivable, net (i) 814 413
FERFIE -~ Re N E A E W FRIE Provision/(reversal) of impairment loss
AR (HEE ) H5E on prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, net (i) 1,179 (442)
YE - BREMREREEIE Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment (ii) 9,507 13,224
IS ERENEHAEHEBELRER Reversal of expected credit loss on
financial guarantee contract (ii) (72) =
FET M REFEEBEERN Lease payments relating to short-term
MEEE leases in respect of land and buildings 219 324
[OPEER/NEIE: € =R i o) 5 Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary (i) 4,165 =
HEAGHAFEEE Fair value loss on future contracts v) = 75,763
KEWMERS WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties (4,112) (4,511)
Vo Less:
FRABRESWAZIREYE Direct operating expenses incurred for
EXZEHEELERX investment properties that generated
rental income during the year 27 69
(4,085) (4,442)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6. KEEIE (&) 6. OPERATING LOSS (continued)

st Notes:

(i) EBERAMAZZHE T (ZE—NF : £561,000% (i) Employee benefits expense of nil (2019: approximately HK$561,000) and
JT) %20,054,000% 7T (= ZE— L4 : 24,161,000/ HK$20,054,000 (2019: HK$24,161,000) were charged to cost of sales and
T EDRIFt ASHE RBRBEAARITHRER - services and administrative expenses respectively.

(ii) ZRBEFATEMEET BFREIA - (i) Amounts are included in “Other operating expenses, net” in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

(iii) WEZBT(ZZE—NLF: 4954,0008T) * (iii) Depreciation of nil (2019: approximately HK$54,000), approximately
#13,445,000/ ¢ (Z T — N : 4,111,000/ 7T) & HK$3,445,000 (2019: HK$4,111,000) and HK$2,366,000 (2019:
2,366,0008 7T (ZZE—HF : 4,171,000 7T) B9 HK$4,171,000) were charged to cost of inventories, administrative expenses
Bt ATERA - THREAUREMEE ST HA - and other operating expenses respectively.

vy AREFIEEEFEMRAS,791,0008 T (ZE—N (ivy  The amount included write-down on inventories of approximately
£ 11,994,000 L) ° HK$3,791,000 (2019: HK$1,994,000).

(v) AEBBA-_Z-NFZARARBBPRAELKE (v) The Group commenced to invest in nickel future contracts which are traded
REBHEEA EREEHERIMER - HERN in The Shanghai Futures Exchange from March 2019 through a broker in the
BERRNERSY  REE-_Z—hLhF+-_A=1+— PRC. In view of the wide volatility of the price of nickel, the Group incurred
HIEFEER  AEBRERSESNBLEQANFEERE fair value loss on nickel future contracts in an amount of approximately
BEHT5,763,0008TL - R=ZZE_TFR=_F—H HK$75,763,000 during the year ended 31 December 2019. As at 31
F+ZA=1+—HB AEEVEZGEMEHES December 2020 and 2019, the Group has no nickel future contracts on hand.
7 o

7. B A 7. FINANCE COSTS

WIEKADTAT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

—BERF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
FTERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000

ARAFABBEEZRITR Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
HEmEEFR S repayable within five years 2,456 3,668
HERLHER Loan arrangement fee for other loan 575 625
HEBERNE Interest on lease liabilities 33 -
3,064 4,293

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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A BEENE (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EENFTEITHAEMS 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION
BIE EmRE - FBRQREH5383(1)(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
) O RMEER AR (BEEEMNZER) R disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c)
PE2BEBEZFAEEREZITRAENE and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
W Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

—ECEHF —E—NF
2020 2019
FHE T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
e Fees 540 540
EME - Other emoluments:
Fe RUREDH= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 1,752 1,752
RIRETEI 3R Pension scheme contributions 58 56
1,810 1,808
2,350 2,348
(a) BAEHITES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FRENFEILIIRTTEST 20 W The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
™~ the year were as follows:
—E-%F —TNF
2020 2019
FE T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
we Fees:
MRER ST AE Mr. Lam Man Sum, Albert 180 180
BT L Mr. Cao Kuangyu 180 180
REELAE Mr. Cheung Ka Wai 180 180
540 540
B bl &SN o B AL E b R B S IE Apart from the above, there were no other emoluments
HITESZ2ME(ZZE—HhF : &) o payable to the independent non-executive directors during

the year (2019: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBHRRHME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=1+—HBI-FE CABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8. EERFETHAEME (&)

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

e FZER
2k BWAsE RBAGTEAR B & 48 5t

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
F#& T THE T F#& T TFH& T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—EEHF 2020
HITEER Executive directors and
FTEITHAE the chief executive:
BELE Mr. Fu Kwan = 120 = 120
SRS E (H i) Mr. Zhang Jian (note) - 120 - 120
RMNELE Mr. Zhang Bishu = 120 = 120
22+ Ms. Liu Jing - 1,092 49 1,141
PeR 22 5T A Mr. Chan Yeuk = 120 - 120
B ALE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
- 1,752 58 1,810
—E—NE 2019
HITESEN Executive directors and
TEITHAE the chief executive:
HE A Mr. Fu Kwan = 120 = 120
SRR (MTET) Mr. Zhang Jian (note) - 120 - 120
RMNELE Mr. Zhang Bishu = 120 = 120
BF L Ms. Liu Jing = 1,092 47 1,139
PeR BB 4 A= Mr. Chan Yeuk = 120 = 120
B ALE Mr. Zhou Jianren = 180 9 189
= 1,752 56 1,808
et - Note:

FREETNRERARRTREZNEME - HRN EXFIRE
BB 1R B RIT AR R IURE & H B -

EXFRXNTRETATES 2HE 2
B EMME—RARZEALTEEART
K EHIB A B E R MR a0 E AR A R

ARRARWEISLAEMLH HEEFHER
TRABRFARZELRERETMAME (=
E-NFE) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

Mr. Zhang Jian also assumed the responsibility of the chief executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the chief executive.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the
executive directors shown above are generally emoluments in
respect of those persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2019: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF

p -



————

WY el |

REMB®RME (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hon
9. IfUBEHEER .
REE  AURSHFEERE L (ZZT—N
F—DEF RS HBEAN LXMW
8- R T (ZT—NF: W) &= EER

(EARRAEFTHETETRABR)RAFELZ

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

g Kong dollars)
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year include one
(2019: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining four (2019: four) highest paid employees who are

e EENTX : neither a director nor a chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
—EZ-EF —ET—NF
2020 2019
FTERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e RUREDI= Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4,435 4,292
RRET B 5K Pension scheme contributions 223 149
4,658 4,441

BRTIMESHENIEFEETRIFEZITHRA The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
EREHEEHBWLT : employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:
EE A
Number of employees

—ECEF —E-NF

2020 2019

0—1,000,0007% 7T Nil — HK$1,000,000 1 2

1,000,0017%& 7t —1,500,000/% 7T HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 3 2

4 4

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B AE A B R Gl
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AR ERENE (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z-_THF+_A=T—BHUEFEGABTIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10. FISHER (ER) 10.

BEBFBE mmmwﬁﬁa,%ﬁzzmw
RFRAIE16.5% (ZFE—NF : 16.5%) 2
KRR e - Et @ EREEF 2B )
RAEECEXSMEREEER 2T

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in

- which the Group operates.
—E-FHF —E-hF
2020 2019
FHERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BVH— &% Current — Hong Kong
BEFERBEBZ Over-provision in prior years - (6,531)
BIHR — H Al 3t [ Current — elsewhere
FEEH Charge for the year 12 1,100
BEFERERS Over-provision in prior years (115) (65)
ELEFIBE R Deferred tax expense 882 220
BB R Withholding tax charge:
— - PRC 125 1,752
FERBEBR(ER) Total tax expense/(credit) for the year 904 (3,524)

AEBEBRBABEZHAER,(KR) 8K
REBMNSHHNXIR16.5% (ZT—NF:

The tax expense/(credit) on the Group’s loss before tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong

16.5%) Mt E v BimfiB s =8mF profits tax rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) as follows:
—EZEF —ET—hNF
2020 2019
FERT FE T
HK$’000 HK$’000
Bk Bt B /&5 18 Loss before tax (72,542) (102,143)
BEEME16.5% (ZF—NF ¢ Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5%

16.5%) &t B Z TR (2019: 16.5%) (11,970) (16,854)
AR 2 WA Income not subject to tax (2,244) (4,627)
AR 2 X Expenses not deductible for tax 6,769 14,617
BEFERELRS Over-provision in prior years (115) (6,596)
AIERTIBEE Tax losses not recognised 7,795 14,023
BEFECHAIHEBRE Tax losses utilised from prior years (132) (223)
WEAREHEMEDEESERKE M  Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

MERRzZE operating in other jurisdictions 676 (5,324)
TRE R E W AR TEMNRH Effect of withholding tax on dividend income

e arising in the PRC 125 _
AR TS E LU A R FEFOFL Effect of withholding tax on other income from

e arbitration in the PRC - 1,752
T8 B R Tax concessions = (292)
MEBMERAFE 2 HEEBA (%) Tax expense/(credit) at effective rate 904 (3,524)
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A BEENE (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. X T EEAELESRER 11. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY
BREARBEERIIBREAQRES A The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based on the
EHFEERELEEFARADHETETARZM loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company, and the
M F 19 £01,206,249,251 % (ZF — L& ¢ weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,206,249,251
1,206,249,251%) 5T & - (2019: 1,206,249,251) in issue during the year.
RUTHESRERREEEE The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:
—E-EF —ET-NF
2020 2019
FTERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
[ = Loss
ARFTESRERNRBEEIE Y Loss attributable to owners of the Company
KABHERE AELEIE used in the basic and diluted loss per share
calculations (64,848) (88,810)
—E-%F —T-hF
2020 2019
il 4= Number of shares
ARFTESRERARBEEE Y Weighted average number of ordinary
FABBTEBR ZINEFHH shares in issue during the year used in the

basic and diluted loss per share calculations 1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251

RZEBE_EFER_E—HNhF+_A=1+— The Group had no potential ordinary shares in issue as at 31
A AARWEEMESETELLBR - December 2020 and 2019.

12. R E 12. DIVIDENDS
7R RS2 AT s B R B AR E (= No dividend has been paid or declared during the year (2019: Nil).
T—NF 8) BETEEUNHE_ZE_-F The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
F+_A=Zt+—HEFERMEANERE (ZF in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
—NEF:&|E) o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AR ERE (FE)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. Y% - MER R E 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KAERLH* BF HENELE RERRE  BAERG RE @t
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings improvements machinery*  equipment vehicles Total

TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn Tin TiEn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

“ECEE+ZB=1-H 31 December 2020
RZE-AE+-F=1t-BEK At 31 December 2019 and
“2-%%F-f-H 1 January 2020
N Cost 3,343 134,167 12,862 154,737 4,310 9,782 319,201
ZHTERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (55,760) (4,096) (147,035) (3,967) (9,239) (220,097)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,102 343 543 99,104
RZE=Z5-A-RH" At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
MG 2HMERAE depreciation and impairment 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,702 343 543 99,104
hE Additions - - - - 3 - 3
k= Disposals - - - - - (149) (149)
REERERRE Depreciation provided for the year - (3,959) (1,124) (490) (127) (111) (5,811)
HEBRB (W 2) Impairment losses (note (i) - (8,403) - (1,047) - (57) (9,507)
5 A% Exchange realignment (243) (278) (616) 303 ) 19 (824)
WZE-EE+-fA=1-H" At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated
k2 ERRE depreciation and impairment 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816
WZB-ZFE+-f=1-8 At 31 December 2020
N Cost 3,100 136,837 11,927 164,153 4,054 9,008 329,079
LHTERMA Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (71,070) (4,901) (157,685) (3,844) (8,763) (246,263)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,100 65,767 7,026 6,468 210 245 82,816
AINIAL FEEER S o MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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r A BEENE (&)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. 5% - BERKHE (&)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
KA BF HENEEE RBEREE  BAEEE e @t
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Office Motor
Land* Buildings  improvements machinery* equipment vehicles Total
THL TARL THTL THTL THTL Thn THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“Z-AF+-A=1-H 31 December 2019
RZE-\E+-B=1+-HEk At 31 December 2018 and
—2-NE5-F-H 1 January 2019
WA Cost 3,354 135,998 12,906 159,030 4272 10,852 326,412
ZHTERRE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (38,595) (2,918) (149,435) (3,580) (9,839) (204,367)
EHFE Net carrying amount 3,354 97,403 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045
RZE-nE—R-H" At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated
NBZAHERAE depreciation and impairment 3,354 97,408 9,988 9,595 692 1,013 122,045
HE Additions - - - - 67 - 67
HE Disposals - - - - &) (57) (60)
HERBAR (H41) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) - - - - - (89) (89)
RrEERERR Depreciation provided for the year - (4,801) (1,200 (1,604) #13) (318) (8,336)
HEBR W) Impairment losses (note (i) - (13,084) - (160) = - (13,224)
AR Exchange realignment (1) (1,131) (22) (129) - (6) (1,299)
RZE-NE+ZA=T-H" At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated
NBZHERAE depreciation and impairment 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,702 343 543 99,104
RZE-NETZA=1-H At 81 December 2019
K& Cost 3,343 134,167 12,862 154,737 4,310 9,782 319,201
ZIMERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment - (65,760) (4,09) (147,085) (3,967) (9,239) (220,097)
RERE Net carrying amount 3,343 78,407 8,766 7,702 343 543 99,104

* R EBAINZ [

& ZEAFEREREASER T+ =1
ST—BZzHMERFGBEHEEZYUE  BER
R #91,124,000% 7T (= F — N4 : 1,551,000/

L) ©

146

woE B

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E X AR Al

Located outside Hong Kong.

The net carrying amount includes property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$1,124,000 (2019: HK$1,551,000) relating to exploration
and evaluation activities of the Group as at 31 December 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. 5% - BERKE (&)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 %

HE-_ZT_TF+_A=+—BHBLFE
5 495,811,000 7. (=&
BI)HR EET(ZE—
3,445,000/ T (= =
2,366,000 L (=& —

T E
— N4 : 8,336,000
FLE : 54,000/ 7T)
— L% : 4,111,000/ 7T) &
G+ 4,171,00058 7T ) 2 5l

SABFERA TRERAREMEESH -
R-F_FREF_A=+—H AKEREED

37 750,000/ 7T (ZZF — L4 : 42,370,000/ 7T ) Z
ETYWE - BEREFEEEFIEAEERRRITR
—RBEZER - FEBERRGRE MBREM 25 -

RZZE_TF+_A=+—B AR HERERS
=1k EE (HEE16() - 2E B EHEA B R(GERM
HHEMNATPERBEEZDE BMERKERET
MEE ANEEREQFER LS AET TR
BTG - THREFERAERELSE  REHKX
N B R ERE m*wm%w #’iﬁﬂLﬁﬁ
MTMETHE - RBEREENS - TEHATS
* o BRERENEENER jt?ﬁ%&:%ﬁﬁ?m
MRRARAETFUAFAE - LI AFEFESBERAF
BEEHENE=FK - BRETE  E2RIREF M}%
T 28 DA Ko /B8 e RR R (B 5 $8.498,408,0007% 7T (=
T — L4 ¢ 13,064,000/ 7C) ~ 1,047,000 7T (=
ZT— L : 160,000 7T) k57,0008 T (ZZE— 1
F BT o

#

BE_Z-_THF+_A=T—BHUEFEGABTIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(il

Amongst the depreciation provided for the year ended 31 December
2020 of approximately HK$5,811,000 (2019: HK$8,336,000), nil (2019:
HK$54,000), HK$3,445,000 (2019: HK$4,111,000) and HK$2,366,000 (2019:
HK$4,171,000) were charged to cost of inventories, administrative expenses
and other operating expenses respectively.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had certain property, plant and
equipment with carrying amount of approximately HK$37,750,000 (2019:
HK$42,370,000) pledged to secure banking and general facilities granted
to the Group, details of which are included in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group performed an impairment assessment
based on fair value less costs of disposal with reference to valuations
performed by an independent professional qualified valuer on its property,
plant and equipment located in Hunan, the PRC, due to prolonged
suspension of production in Hunan Taiji (note 16(i)). In assessing the land and
buildings, direct comparison method is adopted based on price information
where comparable properties of similar size, character and location are
analysed. For plant and machinery, market approach is principally adopted.
Prices for similar assets are considered, with adjustment to reflect condition
and utility of the appraised assets. The above fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Based on the
assessments, impairment losses of approximately HK$8,403,000 (2019:
HK$13,064,000), HK$1,047,000 (2019: HK$160,000) and HK$57,000 (2019:
Nil) were recognised for buildings, plant and machinery and motor vehicles,
respectively.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REMBHRRWME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_ZT_FTHE+_A=+—HLEFEGABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. REY#*

. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—EZEHF —E—NF

2020 2019

F#& T FHT

HK$’000 HK$’000

N—A—BzEREE Carrying amount at 1 January 73,850 74,367
NEEFABRELOWES F5E Net gain from fair value adjustment 1,970 63
[ 5, 38 #& Exchange realignment 2,101 (580)
Rt A=+—HZEREEAE Carrying amount at 31 December 77,921 73,850

EXRREMEZEEERRE

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
comprises:

— —T-hF

2020 2019

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

REPBENFEHAEER Held under medium-term lease in the PRC 77,921 73,850

R-ZE-_TFE+-_A=+—H AEENRK
EMEL2EFHIBEXAERMAE KT
MEERARARELZMGE  BARTS
BEEEAERLLEAETHEE I%ﬁk
BEABEMEEEEMSER ETHRE
MEDRBKEEERTE=T - AEE—
IHBHBHERN G A MWK LA °

RZEBEZZTF+_A=+—H x5H
B8R T {8 #941,634,0008 T (Z & — 1L & :
39,141,000 70 ) 2/ TR E M HIF1ER
SEHEREEREZER  FBREREGEEY

EMER M 7E25 ©

RZZE_FTFF+_A=+—8 K"K H
B M (B £931,910,000/8 75 (=& — L F ¢
w5wom%ﬁ»2%¥&ﬁ%%aﬁﬁ¢@

BERATERERMEZER  FRBIANE
B %5 =R 2% BT 5528 K2 37(a)(iv) °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2020 with reference to a valuation performed by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, on
an open market value basis by direct comparison method with the
major input being the market price per unit of floor area. Certain
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$41,634,000
(2019: HK$39,141,000) were pledged to secure credit facilities
granted to the Group, details of which are included in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of approximately HK$31,910,000
(2019: HK$30,502,000) were pledged to secure loan facilities
granted to a related company, details of which are included in
notes 28 and 37(a)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements.
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mEMBHRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. REYXE (B) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
TRVFALREBE ZIEMEZ AFEFER The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
e of the Group’s investment properties.
B ) BEARRT
W5 HRE EEmAE EHEBAE
(B—-%) (=) (B=8) #at
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
FTER FTER THER FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZB-ZF+=H As at 31 December 2020
=+-—H
REUAFERE: Recurring fair value measurement for:
ERYE Commercial properties - - 77,921 77,921
RZE-hnF+=A As at 31 December 2019
==E
KEMENTERFE Recurring fair value measurement for:
mAE Commercial properties - - 73,850 73,850
RAFE WEFE-—REF_HHEZAFE During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
FTEEE TEEASERE=-R(ZZ—N measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
Fm) o or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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mEMBHRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14. REWZE (1) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

PERAFESERAE=RNAFEFEN

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level

HER - 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
BEME
Commercial
properties
TAT
HK$'000
AN—E-NF—A—BWNEAER8 Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 74,367
N ERAREEN W EFRE - Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised
FEERRNER in profit or loss 63
FE R Exchange realignment (580)
- %—ﬂiﬂ— —“A=+—8k Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 and
—ECEF-A—HOEEDEE 1 January 2020 73,850
NEEFABELERN K ZEFE Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised
RS AR in profit or loss 1,970
B 34, A2 Exchange realignment 2,101
RZE-EF+ - A=+—HHEALR Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 77,921

R-E-_EFR-_F-NF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2020 and 2019

AFEDHK & B & 1l ERATAEERAE

Fair value Significant

hierarchy Valuation techniques unobservable input
MBI R 2 ERYE F=R BEELBE BERARBEMNTISER

Commercial properties In Beijing, PRC  Level 3 Direct comparison method Market unit price per square meter

AEBERBERLEE  ZEUABERER
AGER  EREBEUMEERLEND &
BONERR/ RREETHLR - AEEHEY
BOUXRN BB -MHE FHELENEU
WMEETON  URGEMENEERE
A M5 EEER A FLER -

Direct comparison method is adopted based on the principle of
substitution, where comparison is made based on prices realised
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable properties.
Comparable properties of similar size, scale, nature, character
and location are analysed and weighed against the respective
factors of each property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of
market value.

TEHAERSFHKREMMBER K
ZEF+_A=+—H BumBERL
/(TR 6% EBHRREMELFELI

The key input was the market unit price. A 5% increase/(decrease)
in the market unit price (per square meter) would result in an
increase/(decrease) of approximately HK$3,896,000 in the fair

(RF&) #93,896,0005% 7T °

R-FB_FFR-_ZF-NF+=-R=1+—
B FBEASERTFECRENEHSAE
BAFENEENE B RENEELR

BREEMEFH -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Group’s investment

properties in the PRC are commercial properties held by the
Group either for capital appreciation or for earning rentals.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—BE+ =+ BIEE (B THIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

15. FHREEE 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AEBAEEEFFRANE T IHREFE The Group has lease contracts for certain land and building
SITHESRY - EREHEE T $’§l5'5 used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront
S —BERE BEIMWHEENER to acquire the leasehold land, and no ongoing payments will
BAREMR BELHWNRFER - ]IL/(EP,Hﬁ be made under the terms of the land lease. The leasehold land
HERE THREFHHEER KA is held under medium term leases and is situated in the PRC.
R=E=F - —RMmsE ' REBERANEERUIN Leases of land and building generally have lease terms less than
EENSHBEEEEFEXIRG - 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

RAFERN AEBFERAEEEMNREEN The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
BN R : movements during the year are as follows:
HE i T REF &ast
Leasehold Land and
land building Total
FHET FHET FExT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZE—NnF—H—H As at 1 January 2019 17,963 = 17,963
nEER Depreciation charge (437) = (437)
ME 5 28 Exchange realignment (330) - (330)
RZZE—NF+=-A=+—HK Asat 31 December 2019 and
—_E-_TF—A—H 1 January 2020 17,196 - 17,196
1840 Additions - 1,970 1,970
meEEHA Depreciation charge (434) (656) (1,090)
bE 5 38 & Exchange realignment 1,158 - 1,158
R-ZZBE-_ZTF+_-_F=+—H  Asat 31 December 2020 17,920 1,314 19,234

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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f mEMBHRERME (F)
| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16. Hit\E\EE EE 16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BHER
HEEER FTHEE RERE &5t
Exploration
and
Supplier  evaluation Mining
contract assets rights Total
TAER THER THER THER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(a2 (i) (B (i) (B 2 (iii))
(Note (i) (Note (ii)) (Note (iii))
—E-EF+=A=t—H 31 December 2020
MN-_ZE-_ZF—F—H2ZKA + Costat 1 January 2020, net of
B 2 5H 85 RORE accumulated amortisation and
impairment - 7,113 7,407 14,520
B AR EEE Impairment loss recognised - (3,599) (3,014) (6,613)
bE 5, 3 B Exchange realignment - (519) (539) (1,058)
R-BE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 - 2,995 3,854 6,849
R-ZT-_ZTF+-H=+—H At 31 December 2020
(DN Cost 174,985 16,344 15,273 206,602
2 EEIRE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment (174,985) (13,349) (11,419)  (199,753)
EEFE Net carrying amount - 2,995 3,854 6,849
—E-hFt+-_A=+—8H 31 December 2019
R-ZT—hE—F—B2zKA  Costat1 January 2019, net of
B 2 5HH 8 RORE accumulated amortisation and
impairment - 8,907 12,264 21,171
ERRBEEE Impairment loss recognised - (1,764) (4,808) (6,570)
FRE Amortisation provided during the year - - 9 9)
bE 5, Exchange realignment - (30) (42) (72)
RZEBE—NAF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2019 - 7,113 7,407 14,520
RZZBE—NAF+_A=+—H At 31 December 2019
BN Cost 163,707 17,627 16,472 197,806
RETEE MORE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment (163,707) (10,514) (9,065)  (183,286)
R FE Net carrying amount — 7,113 7,407 14,520

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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AR ERENE (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16. Hib B EE (&)

(i)

HERSREEAEER _ZTNFREA_+-H
WeEg B (G (KRR RIS A 2B R R]) K&
MEBARAERER  BERBAEERMHEREGE
) EEREEEE AR AR (DERME ) L
MEREMFT L AMA-TERFAA=FTRAZ
BEARZMHERZ  HEERRME AR
AE ([FEZRIRME ) F—RE B2 SR
mBUER - BREENEZRRMEATEEERE
5 ZERR M T R R 2 SRR A R E R
FiAS0% M L - RIBELAAEBEAR  EIRME
BEREHREBBRENTZ ZRMEKE - WRRE
EFRRRMBNEERERREER LS R
FHRUBEE EB A AR FEEREKE - BVEE
REBEAEAR ZGERRABRERRAEAIERLD
THFEZ FHEH -

HRKEREER  AEEER-_Z—=F+AR
—E-RF+ AR (AP ERE) ReEREREK
B BE B R A 2 D B RRIR S # 4R
HERE  E—TFBERER P ERRIEE36()
H-Z—RFN\AR PEREHRGEHER
BREMEFEE ©

R-ZE—AFE-_A-+—8 5B GEMN ERS
REENEETENEEERMPRARERE
HEHAE-_ZE-NAF_A+t-_BZREFBNE &
It RIS (EAREAN) RS- N\FHLAZEXK
FEREBOR  ARREZRPULS  NPERELE
HHERILAFRAHERE (BHE—FPEHER -
B2 MM ES6b) - BEFEEZEMZEZEER
B ARAREZERAR AR LNBRERTFET
HEARZE R TS B A Eib et - At - ARER
RERRREMEEEEETHVE - ZZTHEA
E=TE e HERSNEREERTEMNA LT
EEXTHTE BERZSTHHEE A&ER
B RBE_Z—\E+-_A=+—BILEEER
ERERARBEEISNELEERRAZERELN
28,245,000/ T BEE 2 £ -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

HE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=1+—HBI-FE CABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The supplier contract represents the materials supply agreement embedded
in the joint venture agreement dated 30 June 2006 regarding the
establishment of Hunan Taiji entered into between the joint venturers, namely
Junefield Building Material, an indirectly held subsidiary of the Company, and
BRI EE AR AT (“Lianyuan Steel”), upon the acquisition of Junefield
Building Material and its subsidiary, Hunan Taiji, by the Group on 22 May
2009. HEEZEERME AR QA (“Hualing Steel”), a company established
in the PRC, is a steel products manufacturer, Lianyuan Steel has beneficial
interests in Hualing Steel and Hualing Steel is also effectively owned as to
more than 30% by the holding company of Lianyuan Steel. Pursuant to the
joint venture agreement mentioned above, Lianyuan Steel is responsible to
guarantee the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag required by
Hunan Taiji and to procure Hualing Steel to supply granulated steel slag
to Hunan Taiji at the prescribed unit price for a period of 15 years from
the date of commencement of operation of Hunan Taiji. The intangible
asset was amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life
of approximately 14 years in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

Due to shortage of supply of granulated steel slag, the Group has filed
applications in October 2013 and December 2015 for arbitration proceedings
against Lianyuan Steel, which is also the minority shareholder of Hunan Taiji,
for, inter alia, failing to procure the requested amount of steel slag supply,
further details of which are included in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial
statements. Since August 2016, Hunan Taiji was in suspension of production
due to suspension in the supply of raw materials of granulated steel slag.

On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was informed by Hunan
Taiji that a notice of response to action (fEFFi#R%IE) dated 12 February
2019 from the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi City, Hunan Province,
the PRC, was received, pursuant to which Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in
September 2018 requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
shareholders’ disputes (further updates please refer to note 36(b)). Based
on the legal opinion of the legal advisors in the PRC, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the outcome of the ruling of this litigation
proceeding was uncertain and could not be estimated with reasonable
certainty. As a result, the Group determined the production resumption
of Hunan Taiji had been adversely affected. In view of these uncertainties,
which also adversely affected the likelihood of recovering the carrying value
of the supplier contract intangible asset, the Group determined it prudent to
recognise full impairment of approximately HK$28,245,000 in relation to the
supplier contract intangible asset in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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mEMBwERNE (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

16. Hib B & E (&)

(ii)

(%)

HARRTEEETZEEEZELARMEERER
YRS 2 e T FUA R EREGEIE
RN - HERE{E 452,995,000 7T (Z T — 1L4F :
7,113,00087) - R=ZZE=TF+=-_A=+—81
BERER R TG - ZEEERAEERATEA
HATHE -

ARREEZEBIYEXS AR GEM IR LR
HRAERAE ([HE]) HEHRRFGEEER
—ERE+ - A=+ BNGEEETRENG
MEAAEBARRSREF N ETHERBEEDN
SHERER - HETHE  MAMREFHEER

BAORTHWRKFEEBRSELEMN - A kE
SROKERMEABLUSS  E2 SERLEX

AN UREBERENSHTVEBEMNETE - 54
W IE B R R BT B EE M) AT 5 B R ZE9F e (FT AR
BORE AT AT IR K 519.4% ) LA R Q4 B S (B AR B0 5% Al
PIREB12.8%) - RMRBHIFERTEEERN T
HN - DRIARRANERRRANFEOEHAHEEETY
AAEBABEBARAZAER - 22955 FH
EAEHBUENERE S RERIEFERE2.3%E
Al o BB - AEBRAZSHIRRTEEER
B ARESBEEAEERSE  YREE_2=
TEF A=t HLFEARRNEDHFERTHEE
EMERRAEEES B41,003,0007% 7T 52,596,000
FBIT

ARREELEBUEX LA RMGEMKEHEE
RRFABEER_ZT-AF+-_A=+—HNMA
EETRET - MERAERFTRREIRETRA
ETNEREBENFERER - RETE  ME
DRRAEEEELOETHRRIGED RS
EEEMN  HARESFEEE BAEILSS
EE SEREEREN  UREEBHAENKHHT
BEEMETE - ERMBSREFGEEENFED
BIR Z 84 i [ (P A A B AT HT 3R K 7518.9%) A 2
10F B (AT B AT IR R B16.1%) © IRAIRED
REFHEEENTESRA - DRIARREEFERARS
FORMPBREDUAAEEORRFARTE A
it ZoRAFRERANFREARNAEERE
RIFFERK27%TRA - RBFTE - AEERA
ZEMHR R EEEN G AT IRE S BENER
HEE YRBE_FT-NF+_A=+—HLF
EARMBEYRRTEEERDREBRED R
338,000/ 7T K& 1,426,000/ 7T °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
% & X 8 R & 7

#

%E

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

The exploration and evaluation assets mainly represent the cost of
concessions, permits and exploration and evaluation works related to
various coal and mineral mines in Peru, which are under the exploration
and evaluation stage as at 31 December 2020 with a carrying value of
approximately HK$2,995,000 (2019: HK$7,113,000). These assets are not
subject to amortisation until they are placed in use.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
(“Ravia”), an independent professional qualified valuer, on its exploration
and evaluation assets as at 31 December 2020, based on value-in-use
calculations using discounted cash flow projections. For the purpose of
assessment, the two exploration and evaluation assets have been allocated to
exploration and evaluation activities’ CGUs, of which the recoverable amounts
are determined by taking into account the estimated mine life, production
volume, selling price and operating costs, and the latest financial budgets
approved by the management. The assessments cover a 9-year period using
pre-tax discount rate of 19.4% and a 9-year period using pre-tax discount
rate of 12.8% for the two exploration and evaluation assets, respectively.
During the assessment periods for the two exploration and evaluation assets,
the latest financial budgets for the next 6 years and for the next 6 years
respectively were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group and cash
flows beyond this 6-year period and 6-year period respectively were projected
using a growth rate of 2.3% per annum. Based on the assessments,
the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts of these
exploration and evaluation assets were lower than their carrying amounts
and recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$1,003,000 and
HK$2,596,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 on its two exploration
and evaluation assets, respectively.

The directors of the Company performed impairment assessments with
reference to valuations performed by Ravia, an independent professional
qualified valuer, on its exploration and evaluation assets as at 31 December
2019, based on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections. For the purpose of assessment, the two exploration and
evaluation assets have been allocated to exploration and evaluation
activities” CGUs, of which the recoverable amounts are determined by
taking into account the estimated mine life, production volume, selling
price and operating costs, and the latest financial budgets approved by
the management. The assessments cover an 8-year period using pre-tax
discount rate of 18.9% and a 10-year period using pre-tax discount rate of
16.1% for the two exploration and evaluation assets, respectively. During the
assessment periods for the two exploration and evaluation assets, the latest
financial budgets for the next 5 years and for the next 6 years respectively
were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group and cash flows
beyond this 5-year period and 6-year period respectively were projected
using a growth rate of 2.7% per annum. Based on the assessments,
the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts of these
exploration and evaluation assets were lower than their carrying amounts
and recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$338,000 and
HK$1,426,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 on its two exploration
and evaluation assets, respectively.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(il

ﬂﬂ/\\\ﬁ/ﬁ? (nﬁ)

(%)

RIEEELE N W E N RRETRIEE 2 EF -
ZERBERES G EEREREESEM T
A - BE-—T-NEF+ A= + EIJJ:@TZ
BREBHLERDNR016%  REBEE_T _FF+—
A=t—RLFERN " FHEES ?iéf’

e

BE_Z-_ZTHEF+-_A=+—HILFE 2ZhK
CETHHE ARARESHRBEEETRE
Pl e RETHE MEARBEEEECKIET
REREHRSELESMN AR MBEENILE
BREFELSS EB EEREERA AR
EEEBHENKIVBREMERE - 6 B MAR
T4 & EE 1 AT A8 3 B R O B ] (P AR 9 B AT 4T
B E519.6%) ARIFERH (FTANRATFTRES
12.3%) - RMIARBEEBEENTHEHA - 25K
JK FERAREFOENPBRE AR EE R

REARBIAER - ZHH =FHRERAFHRHE
L‘M%:E’ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ%*ﬁfﬁimﬁﬁzS%TE‘EU RIRAF
i AREERRZSRKBREEL — E’JfE;ﬁrTHﬁZIEI
SRENERESE  B2EE  ITREBE
—EFE+ A=+ HLEFERNER /)FMEEET@Z’J
3,014,000/ 7T °

HE-_ZT—NAF+-A=1+—HLFE 2=k
g%Lﬁmﬁﬁ RN R EEHREEETRE
Tl RETHE MERBEREEELSIRET
RERTHRSCELSN  HAKBSENLE
BEGHELSS  E2 - SEREERAE  UAKE
BEEMENSHMEEEMET - 5B IERE
HEEN TS BIRESERR (BT MO AT
L H19.0%) ARIOFERE (FTAMT AT RE A
14.5%) - RRIERBEREENTEHR - 251FK
R=FRARAENSH U EAE D UAEBHR
SFRBAER  ZHOR=FHBRRAFHBIA
BB S RERBEERE27%EA - BRIEFTHE
AEERBZSHEEEEN MG IRE S HER
HE@ESHE WREBEE_Z—hE+=-A=+—8H

BE-—2—

TELZA=+—BIEEE (LB TEIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

The mining rights represent the rights to conduct mining activities pertaining
to coal mines in Peru. The mining rights are amortised on a unit of production
basis over the estimated economic reserve of the mine. Effective amortisation
rate for the year ended 31 December 2019 approximate 0.16% per annum.
The mines were suspended for production for the year ended 31 December
2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessments of the mining rights with reference to
valuations performed by Ravia. For the purpose of assessment, the two
mining rights assets have been allocated to mining rights activities’ CGUs,
of which the recoverable amounts are determined by taking into account
the estimated mine life, production volume, selling price and operating
costs, and the latest financial budgets approved by the management. The
assessments cover a 9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 19.5%
and a 9-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 12.3% for the two mining
rights assets, respectively. During the assessment periods for the two mining
rights assets, the latest financial budgets for the next 3 years and for the next
5 years respectively were based on the assumed mining plans of the Group
and cash flows beyond these 3-year period and 5-year period respectively
were projected using a growth rate of 2.3% per annum. Based on the
assessments, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amount
of one of the mining rights assets was lower than its carrying amount and
should be fully impaired and recognised impairment loss of approximately
HK$3,014,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the directors of the Company
performed impairment assessments of the mining rights with reference to
valuations performed by Ravia. For the purpose of assessment, the two
mining rights assets have been allocated to mining rights activities’ CGUs,
of which the recoverable amounts are determined by taking into account
the estimated mine life, production volume, selling price and operating
costs, and the latest financial budgets approved by the management. The
assessments cover an 8-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 19.0%
and a 10-year period using pre-tax discount rate of 14.5% for the two
mining rights assets, respectively. During the assessment periods for the two
mining rights assets, the latest financial budgets for the next 3 years and
for the next 5 years respectively were based on the assumed mining plans
of the Group and cash flows beyond these 3-year period and 5-year period
respectively were projected using a growth rate of 2.7% per annum. Based

IFEEARNGMEBEREREEAERRREBED D on the assessments, the Group determined that the estimated recoverable
1,145,000 7t % 3,661,000/ T ° amounts of these mining rights assets were lower than their carrying amounts
and recognised impairment losses of approximately HK$1,145,000 and
HK$3,661,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 on its two mining rights
assets, respectively.
17. & 17. INVENTORIES
—BEBF —NE
2020 2019
FTERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R B E FE Raw materials and consumables 5 3,623
24K o Finished goods 28,259 27,218
28,264 30,841

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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mEMBwERNE (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18. FE W BE Zk 18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
i —E-AF
2020 2019
TR TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
JrE U BR X Accounts receivable 3,249 4,790
NEREL Impairment (2,317) (1,619)
932 3,171
FEWBEZ—MBNEEZE AEERE - —8m Accounts receivable are usually due immediately from the date of
EEBAEENT HEEEH—KRAE—E billing. Payment in advance is normally required except the credit
A MEKEAREE K FRERNLIEERE period is generally 1 month extending up to 2 months for certain
BT HER Y ETREPEZAEEEM customers from coal mining business and sale of parts of mining
8B o NE B 4458 % R YR >~ fE Uk BR equipment business of the Group. The Group seeks to maintain
AR BHEREEET  VHEREREET strict control over its outstanding receivables and overdue
HYWHEE®E - UWHEEERE - fElEE balances which are reviewed regularly by senior management to
HETTERTEPUARKE . ET R B minimise credit risk. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing
B o and mainly denominated in RMB, USD and Soles.
RIPEHIR » BB HEBA SN B EE An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable as at the
REBEWEZRVERSTOT : end of the reporting period, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:
—ECEH —E-NF
2020 2019
TR TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
— & AR Within 1 month 113 2,802
—Z={8A 1 to 3 months 582 369
HBim =18 A Over 3 months 237 -
932 3,171

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
¥ o= BB A B B A 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #
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mEMBHRERME (F)
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFEGIBETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable
are as follows:

18. EWERK (&)
YRR EREZEBNT

—®-8% —T-AF
2020 2019

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

RFE ] At the beginning of year 1,619 1,224
R EEE Impairment loss recognised 1,021 602
8 0] 2 fE 2 Y BB B 18 Reversal of impairment loss recognised (207) (189)
48t 2 UK [o] T i 88 Write-off as uncollectible (131) =
HE H, 8 & Exchange realignment 15 (18)
RE R At the end of year 2,317 1,619

AEERATEMHHRELNFISRNBLS
EEFERBMEEER  EAARKER
HRBMnEREREFEROEREER
- RFEREHEEERRE BRERERE
ARAGERBREBERBHRE A - BR
ERBBENEER  ERNEHEERER " N
ERBESARASERBESNT - BAIAAR
RARRLBEARTA A E R A FFHESR

AT 151 74 5 B M B 0 B £ LR O
&

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses by recognising a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all accounts receivable from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, accounts receivable has
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s accounts receivable:

png:
Past due
PH—@EA —ZE=@B HBB=#EA &5t
Less than 1to 3 Over 3
1 month months months Total
R-ZE_ZEF As at 31 December 2020
+=—BA=t+—H
BEm4AE (F&T) Gross carrying amount (HK$’000) 258 663 2,328 3,249
EHIEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 12.79% 22.78% 91.62% 71.31%
BB E (FET) Loss allowance (HK$’000) (33) (151) (2,133) (2,317)
RZZE—NhF As at 31 December 2019
+-—HA=+—H
SRmeE(FET) Gross carrying amount (HK$°000) 2,752 822 1,216 4,790
TEHEEEEX Expected credit loss rate 4.07% 35.40% 100% 33.80%
EERE (F5T) Loss allowance (HK$'000) (112) (291) (1,216) (1,619)

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE—T - TFE+ - A=1+—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. A KE >

BeRHEAMERREA

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

—B_o®F —E-NF

2020 2019

FERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

TE IR Prepayments 729 900
bieaca Deposits 1,849 4,304
H b fE Uk ZOE Other receivables 17,369 21,108
E b e B 3K Other loan receivable = 3,357
19,947 29,669

A Impairment (3,999) (7,422)
15,948 22,247

BNHA - e REMBEFAEZREER

The movements in provision for impairment

of prepayments,

BEIT deposits and other receivables are as follows:
—E-ZF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
REA] At the beginning of year 7,422 33,948
ErERREEE Impairment loss recognised 1,710 496
B 3R B B 1E 8 B Reversal of impairment loss recognised (531) (938)
4255 W [ i i 5H Write-off as uncollectible (4,370) =
HEME A A Disposal of subsidiaries (278) (25,999)
[EE 5, 38 & Exchange realignment 46 (85)
RER At the end of year 3,999 7,422

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. IR

5 RE R HMERR
(&)
BEWERIBEFRE - EMEWRER 2 REE
BORBHHAEESHE 2 EHEHRED -
HAR TR B R SE - AR BWENEEL
R EEMER M EMIEEEE RF
—NWF+_A=+—HZEMEWREFKIIA
ARBEE - 128 A1%:T 8 - AEAERE
ERAMER-_E—=F+=-AEE - L X
@E%ﬁ AER—_T—NFE+-A=+—H”
BHRE RAAZEERERZ=ZE—=
¢+ AR EZERBTLR REE
—ECEF+_A=Z+—HLEFER KK
B EB AT 4929,0008 7T #45EE&HE
425 5 [o] T 8 o

FRBREEMBYGIENSREEKEM
UEFNEREEERRENEHOT :

BE-—T-

—BE+ =+ BIEE (B THIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment loss was made on other loan receivable based
on a review of the outstanding amount on regular basis when
collection of the amount is in doubt. Bad debts are written off
when identified. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over this balance. The other loan receivable
as at 31 December 2019 was denominated in RMB, bore interest
at 1% per month, was secured by personal guarantee and was
repayable in December 2013. The above other loan receivable as
at 31 December 2019 was fully impaired as the loan was past due
in December 2013 and the collection of the amount was in doubt.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received
approximately HK$29,000 from the creditor and the remaining
balance was written off as uncollectible.

The movements in the ECL allowance related to financial assets
included in other receivables and other loan receivable are as

follows:

BETHEHERFENSREE
Financial assets included
in other receivables

Rt EREN

Other loan receivable

BEGEY RAFEY BEGED BAGED

BMfEE RERE BAFE RAORE

12EARM BR-AE BE-FR 2BARE BE-XF BE-£EA
REBR RrE WE REER FmE B @t

Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime
ECL not ECL ECL not ECL
12-month credit- credit-  12-month credit- credit-
ECL  impaired  impaired ECL  impaired  impaired Total
THL THL TET FEL FEL THL THL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$'000
“E-AE-B-H AUl Janvary 2019 - - - - - 3421 3,421
EiaE Exchange realignment - - - = = (64) (64)
W:?—jﬁﬂ-—ﬂ At 31 December 2019 and
=+-Bk=-%=% 1 January 2020
—A—AH - - - - - 3,357 3,357
REZRED Reversal upon settlement = - - - - (29) (29)
RN GEER Impairment loss recognised - - 27 - - - 27
&L T Write-off as uncollectible - - - - - (3,559) (3,559)
[ 5 % Exchange realignment - - - - - 231 231
R-Z-F£+-R At 31 December 2020
=+-A - - 27 - - - 27

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20. FEUKERE N T8 20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES
TEERNES
AMBEH —B-BFE T NF
Maximum
outstanding
during the
year 2020 2019
Het THET THERT THET
NG Name of company Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Junefield Group S.A. Junefield Group S.A. (i) 110 110 15
Junefield Premium Metal Junefield Premium Metal

Company S.A.C. Company S.A.C. (i) 5) 5 =
Junefield Mining S.A.C. Junefield Mining S.A.C. (i) 708 708 =
Total Genius Iron Total Genius Iron Mining S.A.C.

Mining S.A.C. (i) 182 179 182
HE 2 R R0 18 Hualing Steel (i) 12,924 12,924 12,092
IR EBR AR Mega Choice Investment

Limited (i) 82 82 81
Junefield Geological Junefield Geological

Explorations Institute S.A.C.  Explorations Institute S.A.C. (i) (5) 5 =
Golden Ideal Gold Mining Golden Ideal Gold Mining S.A.C.

S.AC. (i) 6 6 =
b R B B b = R B Beijing Junefield Real

BRAA Estate Development

Company Limited (i) 50 - 50
14,019 12,420
ZEWGIE BEIETE R B REETEIENE - The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

terms of repayment.

ket Notes:

(i) AABRITEEHEABALEENRABZMES ([/AE (i) Mr. Zhou Chu Jian He (“Mr. Zhou”), a close family member of Mr. Zhou
FHE]) REZEAREAEBRRER - Jianren (an executive director of the Company), has beneficial interests in
these companies.

(i) R SRE Z IR ERINE  REEERNE (i) Lianyuan Steel, being the non-controlling interest of Hunan Taiji, has beneficial
BAEmER - MEZERBEBIBI0%ESITE interests in Hualing Steel and Hualing Steel is also effectively owned as to
B R IR AT AE  c BERETES more than 30% by the holding company of Lianyuan Steel. The amount
BEEMRBEREMNET R mainly comprises of prepayments and deposits paid.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
21. UNFEEBHEEFHT AEER 21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

€@ TH THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
—E-FHF —TNF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETRAEE - EmE: Listed equity investments, at market value:
— BB - Hong Kong 15,706 19,781

MR ERRARETFIEES - Fik - 5
BRAARFEAEEEEHA A ABESNSH
THo

22, B RBITHEER

The above equity investments were classified as financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss as they were held
for trading.

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

—E-EF —E—NF

2020 2019

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

B e RIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 6,893 35,784

RBEPELERE  AEEBUNARETE
e RIRITHE Y B4,652,0008 T (=&
— L4 ¢ 5,641,000 7T) &7 A B 2 68
T BEARBITIERARAHEME
SAT - AR AR R B A O BE B R B R A BE
EERNEEEREHATE ASERABEREE
TTINEZEISRIRITIEA R SIRIEE & -

R-ZEBE-_ZTE+-_F=+—8 B/EL NET
HEER IR R B R 1T Z & £ 429,000
RH (HESER 63,0008 7T) (CE—HF:
27,000 7 (5 R 463,000/ 7T) ) (1E A%
HEARNRES) -

RITBESREET ARTHERMERZHH X
AR CRITEREREERFAYEIHE
HIRCER ZIRTTIAY

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$4,652,000 (2019: HK$5,641,000) and placed with banks in
the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the cash and bank
balances, there was a balance of approximately Soles 29,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$63,000 (2019: Soles 27,000 or
equivalent to approximately HK$63,000), placed in bank in Peru
as guarantee fund for issuing of credit card.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
23. FE{FBR =X 23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

RBER REZAHAECAEEEN An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the end

BRAZERE DT : of the reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
—RCERHF —E-NF
2020 2019
FE T TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
— B A AR Within 1 month 5 103
—Z=={88 1 to 3 months 32 1,911
HBiE =18 A Over 3 months 4,764 2,501
4,801 4,515

ENEABTAERIEANARE XK
REEE-

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are mainly

denominated in RMB, USD and Soles.

24. HENFERESTERE 24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
—E-%F —TNF
2020 2019
F#E T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
= Accruals 17,670 17,008
FEN R ET Business tax payable 2,030 2,030
B Wiz e Deposits received 1,033 1,361
AHBERE Contract liabilities 229 233
H b &S 5108 Other payables 31,151 31,907
52,113 52,539

BAREIZEREANE AEREXRE
RARFE - A RA/STFHFERE
BUAARBERRBE -

The accruals mainly comprise of accrued interest, legal
and professional fees and salaries. Other payables are
non-interest-bearing and are mainly denominated in RMB and
Soles.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. ;T 2R HtE& 25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
i aE FERT TAT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BDHA Current
RITER—BEA Bank loan - secured (i) - 2,465
HiEHR—HHEM Other loan — secured (ii) 23,000 25,000
b B 51— K Other loan — unsecured (i) 5,980 5,595
CE Total 28,980 33,060
Pl i Analysed into:
AEEZHRITREMEE Bank and other borrowings repayable:
—— FRHIFERER — Within one year or on demand 28,980 33,060
iz - Notes:

T NE+_A=+—HB AE£EEBEWEE
i $8 17 BU 15 $R 17 B 3K £9319,000% Tt 5k # E R 4
2,465,000/ LA AWM BIREEE B E - ZEZRA
EHE - B—FHRARTRERE ([RBERT
AEFRLS]) MEFEAEZ FHRRAE HERE

(i)

EETFE+ A=+ -HUEFERRHEER -
RITEFARNEBURWBZETOE BER

SEEER ER-_TE-_TH&+-_A=+—H
2 BR T 4818 49 537,750,000/ 7T (=T — h 4 ¢
42,370,000/ 7T) - REXR®%E  EERBERBREE
5 e

REBEEE —ZWE AR RS /25,000,0007 7T
N—FHEREI %S WREAEEZ — %%L
BeHmke ﬁﬁ#ﬁmhmuﬁm#@ REF =
SEF BN ER-T—N\F—AEE - R=_F— t
F+=8" mﬁgﬁﬁmhAJiﬁ%mm-é
BYC#E— S TEHPE_T—NF—HA=8-

(ii)

R=ZZT—AhE—R AEERZKE AR
25,000,000/ T — F B EIE KT FiR% - B
FRERB% BERAAR/—T_TF—A=H RN
—Z-TF—f  REHRZBENGKEBIEEER
K7 #82,000,00078 7T A K Z A 2 BEE 5 #1575,000
BILTHMEAR  EFBHCE—STEE-T
——H—A=ZH -RER=-ZZT=_—F—AERNE

KRE EEANCE—STERE_T_—_F—§8
=H-
RZZEZTF+-A=1+—H ZERULE

E BR M 48 [ 4 541,634,000 £ (Z T — N & :
39,141,000/ 70) & TIREMEEAEET - N=
T_TERT-AFT_A=+—HB BHER
INABRAESER FHEAERAESEEE (@)
ERAR (AEERETHAEERRER)ETHR
RIERIE BRI -

HiSEIERER T UARBFELRTFILE
BRIZERER -

(il

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

(i)

(i)

(ii)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a bank loan of approximately
USD319,000 or equivalent to approximately HK$2,465,000 from a local bank
in Peru for financing its mining projects in Peru. The loan was denominated
in USD, interest-bearing at annual rate of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR”) plus 6.4% per annum and was fully repaid during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The bank loan is secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment situated in Peru with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$37,750,000 (2019: HK$42,370,000) as at 31 December 2020.
Application for release of charge of asset is in process subsequent to the year
end.

The Group entered into an agreement with a money lender in Hong Kong for
one-year term loan with principal amount of HK$25,000,000 for facilitating
the general working capital needs of the Group. The secured other loan is
denominated in HK$, interest-bearing at 8% per annum and was repayable
in January 2018. In December 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary
agreement with the money lender and the repayment date was further
extended to 3 January 2019.

In January 2019, the Group entered into a new agreement with the money
lender for one-year term loan of HK$25,000,000 with interest at 8% per
annum and repayment date on 3 January 2020. In January 2020, the
repayment date was further extended to 3 January 2021, based upon
conditions of partial repayment of the loan in the amount of HK$2,000,000
and payment of arrangement fee in the amount of HK$575,000 to the
money lender pursuant to a supplemental deed. Pursuant to a supplement
deed effective in January 2021, the repayment date is further extended to 3
January 2022.

As at 31 December 2020, the loan is secured by certain of the Group’s
investment properties with aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$41,634,000 (2019: HK$39,141,000). The loan is also secured by personal
guarantee given by Mr. Zhou and corporate guarantee given by Junefield
(Holdings) Limited (in which Mr. Zhou has beneficial interests) as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

The unsecured other loan is denominated in RMB, bears interest at a rate of
9.5% per annum and repayable on demand.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HE_Z_TF+_A=+—HLEFE UGB TIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

26. ENBENSFHIE 26. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

ZENREAEEE B NEETFEN - The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

27. HE&E 27. LEASE LIABILITIES
RAFERN AEBHEEENEREEN The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during
E@EgZHHMT the year are as follows:
—F=FF —TNF
2020 2019
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R—A—BNEES%E Carrying amount at 1 January = -
MEE New lease 1,970 _
A 2L N Accretion of interest 33 -
it 2 Repayment (699) -
RT+ZRA=+—HHNERE<HE Carrying amount at 31 December 1,304 -
Bl Analysed into:
mENE o Current portion 973 -
IERENEB Non-current portion 331 =
HEBBENIMBE SN ELSEHBREKWMT The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40(e)
40(e) N ° to the consolidated financial statements.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED e
¥ o B &E A BB A I ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. HEG & (&) 27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)
HEEEBEANERNSEOT ¢ The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are
as follows:
—B_o®F —E-NF
2020 2019
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEBEHNE Interest on lease liabilities 38 -
FREEEHEER Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1,090 437
HEHEERBAMNAXS Expense relating to short-term leases 219 324
EEENERNBRE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1,342 761
HEpREARER S RERNNBRE S RE A The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
BEIAR : statement of cash flows is as follows:
—B-EF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
EREEEA Within operating activities 219 324
ERmEEENR Within financing activities 699 =
918 324
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & 3§ MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. MIBIEEREL 28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

—ECEHF —ET—NF

2020 2019

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

R THEEATNRE Guarantees given to a bank in connection

48 TERITHER with facilities granted to a related company - 134
BEEBEEMESLDHE KRBT (EAIRINE Junefield Property Agency, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
EREARAR ([BMEE]) MERA) BTl of the Company, pledged certain of its investment properties,
VYAHMAZZ-—NEF+—ANBNEREH whose carrying values included in the consolidated statement
(KHmaHpEmE kB (ERER)) - # of financial position amounted to approximately HK$31,910,000
BEMWELE (RAGzHAEE2ENBAR) (2019: HK$30,502,000) in aggregate (note 14), in favour of a bank
MPITHEBEE TREYE (HEREWB as security for the repayment obligations of $2MZEEZ AR A
ARSI 2R BT 8 A BR B (B & 3£ 4 4981,910,000 7] (“Jinzhou Rongxin”), a related company of the Group which
BIL(ZZF—LF : 30,502,000% 70) ) (KI5 is ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou, for partial loan principal
14) - DEABMEE (HALERKREZER amount of RMB8,000,000 (2019: RMB8,000,000) plus related
EMASEBENR) REEALTNEAARE interests in respect of a loan of principal amount RMB35,000,000
35,000,000t 2 EF M E D E R A& AR and tenure is for a period of two years from 8 November
8,000,0007T (=ZZF — .6 : AR%8,000,000 2019, pursuant to mortgage agreements (as supplemented
70) MR N B EIEEREEZER B and amended by a supplement agreement) dated 8 November
FHR-ZTE-—NF+—AN\BEFTMEF - 5 2019 entered between Junefield Property Agency and a bank
s 55 b EE A 40 B SR N SR 5 TN BT LR B 1 % - (as lender to Jinzhou Rongxin) (the “Mortgage Agreements”).
Bl BNKEREREBERELL N Junefield Property Agency and Jinzhou Rongxin also entered
—RUEFEE ARM120,0007T © A RBEHE into an indemnity agreement, whereby Jinzhou Rongxin agreed
EHELLHNERGRBE T ZEETREZE to pay Junefield Property Agency a one-time handling charge of
WERE - BINEENTARE REEEM RMB120,000 and to fully indemnify Junefield Property Agency’s
ELLREER  MEBMNEREERELY  EB obligations under the Mortgage Agreements. Jinzhou Rongxin’s
S AE R E S 0 SR B A IE R AT IR parent company has also provided guarantees to Junefield
BHAEERRIBX- Property Agency that it will assume all fees and losses incurred to

Junefield Property Agency in respect of the provision of financial
guarantee, in case of default by Jinzhou Rongxin.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFEGIBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

28. BIBIERA L (&) 28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT (continued)

R EH AR M HEROPBFERE HIEA
HEEBRBEMENEEIANAFER
BRCERRAN RS EARETIE -
RBERAKR - ARBEED KN EERBEEA
BB ATOAR - BEEANHBEARRIARE
BALEBETENRBENSR  Bwa - MR

MeR=ZT=_FF+=ZA=+—8 "' RBRESF
BRI ISR XRS5 - (AT BB ERILT
BT (ZE— 4 - #9134,000/87T) » WH I
=P ERBEHEEBHEERD 472,000
T (ZZE—F : ##510,00057T) °

RZEZZEF+_A=+—8 xEERAH
BEREGHMARNESERKOSRELN A
A R #8,020,0007T (48 & 4 499,592,0007%8
L) (ZE—F : AR¥8,020,0007T (1%
R 498,974,000/ 7T)) °

PBERAANEERRBODEASE R
B -REE-_Z-_FTFR-_FT—NF+=A
=+—HIEFERN SR HEIEE A
% - BEHUBERSANEERRMOAE
— &R W28 M FE40d) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

The financial guarantee contract that arose from the entering into
the Mortgage Agreements is measured at the higher of the ECL
allowance and the amount of its fair value initially recognised less
the cumulative amount of income recognised. At the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company have assessed the
current status of the debts under guarantee, the financial position
of the debtor as well as economic outlook of the industries in
which the debtor operate, and concluded that there has been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
the financial guarantee contract. Loss allowance was estimated
to be close to zero (2019: approximately HK$134,000) as at 31
December 2020 in accordance with HKFRS 9, and as a result
reversal of expected credit loss of approximately HK$72,000
(2019: provision of HK$10,000) was recognised in profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2020, the maximum exposure amount of the
Group under the financial guarantee contract was approximately
RMB8,020,000, equivalent to approximately HK$9,592,000 (2019:
RMB8,020,000, equivalent to approximately HK$8,974,000).

The credit exposure of the financial guarantee contract is
classified as stage 1. During the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, there were no transfers between stages. Please refer
to note 40(d) for further information about credit risk exposure of
the financial guarantee contract.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. JEEBIIE 29. DEFERRED TAX
AEBEREERBEERBERFRN 2810 The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities

o during the year are as follows:
EEBIEEE Deferred tax assets
A {4t 45 8 R 2R PE
RBORF 2 BB
Losses
available
for offsetting
against
future taxable
profits
FAT
HK$'000
RZZE—nF—H—H As at 1 January 2019 349
[ o, =58 Exchange differences 2)
RZE—NAF+ZA=+—HK At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
—T-_TF—H—H 347
RNEZHIK ZELERIE Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (329)
ME 5 =58 Exchange differences (18)
R-ZE-TBF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2020 -
EERIBE & Deferred tax liabilities
BEMYE

Revaluation
of properties

FHET

HK$'000

RZZE—h&—H—H At 1 January 2019 33,207

REB= R 2 EERIE Deferred tax charged to profit or loss 220

M 5 =R Exchange differences (171)
= %—ﬂ¢+ “A=+—HkK At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

—E-FTF—-—H—H 33,256

RE=NR 2 EERE Deferred tax charged to profit or loss 553

b 5 =& Exchange differences 594

R-ZE-ZF+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 34,403

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) "
BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29. JEERI1E () 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

AEEBREBB 2 HIEEIEL1,062,000%8
T (ZZ— N4 : 1,062,000 7T) AT £ [R 2 /3
PRI HIREIBZ R A Z KA REREHF -
ARE B IR R Bl E A T I B 49161,902,000
BT (T F— AL4F 139,925,000/ 7T) I #5
R—ZERFREm ] 3K R RERB =
M RZE—AFE+-_A=+—H x&£H
EERMNZRES ZHIEFBIEL1,784,000%8
T AR AFANLEE  HEETHSREEE
BEER 2% A 225% F A S - RAFEE R L
EENZRMBAR (HiE41)E  R=ZZT=
TFE+-_A=+—HB AEEIERFRE/E/N
LR ER -

AEBNTNARABWMBEBEZHEBBEIEY
106,559,000/ 7t (=& — J14F : 86,973,000
BIL)  MASBEAEELENFE AL
EEBEFREN I ERALAEER  E5%E
AAMBMARSHEFEZERERAZ
50% @ IS HEBEEAZEE RZZ—N
F+-_A=+—H EREEHEBEEBELD
1,241,000 T HERELEFIBEE - ARTIB
EEREEBEEEE —BEHECHBRAR T
ANFAIRE B A B AR B S B E R 38 2 JE R B %
R W BT IEEEEREERIBEE

BEFECERESHENRE NP REKLZ
ZINERERIBEINEGEEST IR 2R EAE
W10%ENH - EIEBEEBE _TZENF—H
—BERER TERAR-_ZEZT+F+_A
=+ HUBREEZAF - R REHREE
INECEEMBRIEEER BRI ARG
o RIS AT IR EBRE BB R R - EASE
Ems BAMEAE%K10% - AL - &
SEERRPEKLIZMBATEZTZN
F—A—BARELEZEFMDIRZRKREH R
EHH RZEZTFR T —-NF+=A
=+ H HENBERRTERELZT -
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The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$1,062,000 (2019: HK$1,062,000) and that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group has tax
losses arising in the PRC of approximately HK$161,902,000
(2019: HK$139,925,000) that will expire in one to five years for
offsetting against future taxable profits. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group has tax losses arising in Ecuador of approximately
HK$1,784,000 that may be carried forward for five years, but
may only be offset against 25% of the profits earned in each tax
year. The Group has no tax losses arising in Ecuador as at 31
December 2020 after disposing the subsidiary in Ecuador (note
41) during the year.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Peru of approximately
HK$106,559,000 (2019: HK$86,973,000) which the Group has
the option to carry forward all net operating losses for four years
or carry the losses forward indefinitely, but only up to 50% of
the taxpayer’s taxable income of each subsequent year. Loss
carryback is not permitted. Deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$1,241,000 of such
tax losses as at 31 December 2019. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of tax losses arising in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated since 1 January 2008.
There were no unremitted earnings for the PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2020 and 2019.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

30. R4 30. SHARE CAPITAL
RAHE A&
Number of shares Share capital
g Sl 313 —T-NE g Sl 313 —T-NE
2020 2019 2020 2019
THERT FTAEL
HK$°000 HK$’000
ETE Authorised:
BREE010B T2 AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 25,000,000,000  25,000,000,000 2,500,000 2,500,000
BEETRER Issued and fully paid:
R—FB—BRk+ZA=+—H  At1January and 31 December 1,206,249,251 1,206,249,251 120,625 120,625

31. R
AEBAFER - EEZERELBRAR
BN R REOREEIEHA RREHE

EXTI

() WBEARFPEMBLAZAFMA
%M B R R B AS H BRI R M 2 10% 8]
BREXTRARHER EEREEHRED
HEMER250%A 1 © EHAEERAR
SEEE NREBRSAEE - X ERR
FEFTARBEER  YARREHER
ARSAD L2 HIEE BN - 1EE
AETRIESRIEINEEMELRZ
25% o

(i) HMHEERAARFNTES TER
REER T BEREMZEFNEERR]
PIERIHE °

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
oE B EAXAERLF

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 80 to 81 of this annual
report.

()  According to the Articles of Association of the PRC
subsidiary of the Company which require the appropriation
of 10% of its profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The transfer of the reserve must be made before
distributions of dividends to owners of the Group. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used for making up losses and may
be converted into capital in proportion to existing owners’
equity percentage, provided that the balance after such
issuance is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

(i) Other reserve represents the capital contribution from a
related company controlled by Mr. Fu Kwan, an executive
director, the chairman and the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE (CABRIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32, EEAEERESZHHEASKR 32 PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group that has material non-controlling interests:

PN
TRIRAEE 2 FAEAFERE 2 I
2EMBD R 2B -

HEARRRE BRItARTEEEHI
Place of

establishment and
principal place of

FERERRE 2
FRE Rz LBl
Proportion of
ownership
interests held by the
non-controlling

TEREFERERZZER

Loss allocated to
non-controlling

Rt FERES

Accumulated
non-controlling

Name of subsidiary business interests interests interests
“E-Z2F —T-NF ZB-BF T NF ZB-BF T NF
2020 2019 2020 2019 2019
THET FHT THERT THT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
R ZE Hunan Tai] F B PRC 40% 40% (8,598) (9,809) 12,455 19,866

AREBERFRBEEAEREDR 2B R 28
BERBEHINMT - UTHBEERBER
SERHHRATHE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

R+=—A=+—H
At 31 December
—EZEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
F#& T FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MENEE Current assets 13,190 15,164
EREBEE Non-current assets 54,189 62,641
mBAE Current liabilities (34,225) (26,125)
EREBEE Non-current liabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_ZT_FTHE+_A=+—HLEFEGABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 202

0 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. HEEAFERER G EASHN 32. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

BR (%)

WEER () Hunan Taiji (continued)
BZ+=-A=+—-RHLEE
Year ended 31 December
—E-EF —ZT-NEF
2020 2019
THEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
PN Revenue - -
H A e A R Wz Other income and gains 1 1,137
i3 Expense (21,495) (25,659)
FEER Loss for the year (21,494) (24,522
FEHMEEmKE (FAX) Other comprehensive income/(expense)
for the year 2,968 (1,271)
FETEMAXERE Total comprehensive expense for the year (18,526) (25,793)
BT IR R R AR S Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests = =
KEXBRERE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities
() mAFEE (594) 455
RekReEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
CR ) /G s s equivalents (594) 455

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

—EFE+_A=+t—HILFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33. AAE T ELE B EYHE 33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TRAFMAEBRETHEEAGBE The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
PRERES IR E - ﬂéé@ﬁ;zg from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
BERAREMEEIARARERREHNAEE changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
HAR S RERNDEARELTHERERE - which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.
HEAME FERTHEE HARHEMEE st
Interest- Interest-
bearing bearing
Lease bank other
liabilities borrowings borrowings Total
FET FETT FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—hE—H—H At 1 January 2019 - 6,280 30,701 36,981
RMEREREELENEE : Changes from financing
cash flows:
BERITER Repayment of bank loan - (3,724) - (3,724)
Hith# g : Other changes:
HE H 8 B Exchange realignment - (91) (106) (197)
RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 and
RZZ_Tf—H—H 1 January 2020 - 2,465 30,595 33,060
MERSREELENET Changes from financing
cash flows:
ERRITER Repayment of bank loan - (2,483) (2,000) (4,483)
BEHEAE Repayment of lease liabilities (699) - - (699)
H fih % B Other changes:
S New lease 1,970 - - 1,970
MEREZ Interest expense 33 - - 33
B 5, 38 #& Exchange realignment - 18 385 403
R-E-ZEF+=-H=+-—H At 31 December 2020 1,304 - 28,980 30,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

34. EEIKHF 34. CHARGE OF ASSETS
UAEEETFTEEHEE AR 2 AEE R Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings, which are
TREMEEZHFBOAENREE WK RE secured by certain pledged assets of the Group, are included in
FI5E13 ~ 14 ~ 25}%28 ° notes 13, 14, 25 and 28 respectively, to the consolidated financial

statements.

35. &MY ZH 35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AEERBELLHNTHEHRESTREY The Group leases certain of its investment properties under
¥ ERZEENT—Z==ZF(ZZT—hF: operating lease arrangements, which leases negotiated for terms
—F=4F) o ranging from one to three years (2019: one to three years).
RZE_ZEF+_A=+—8 xEBBRE At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
B P AT 2 O] s 48 & 8 49 08 R R B receivable by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable
FEWHRITHEBENRELOT operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

—E-EF —E-NF

2020 2019

FHET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

% Within one year 2,736 3,473
FE_EZELF(REERMEF) In the second to fifth years, inclusive 720 2,500
3,456 5,973

36. FRIRFFER 36. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

@ HBEMPIR=ZZE—=F+AK (a) Junefield Building Material filed two applications for
—E-AF+ AR EBEREEZ S arbitration proceedings at the China International
HmEEEe ([FHEZES]) RS Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission (“Arbitration
HEPFE WPERE 2 L ERRERE Commission”) against the minority shareholder of Hunan
H(EHPABE)AERN_E—F—A Taiji, Lianyuan Steel in October 2013 and December 2015
—HEZ—=FNA\A=+—BHHK respectively for compensations on, inter alia, failing to
RZEBE—=FhA—HBHE-_ZT—HEFAhH procure the requested amount of supply of the granulated
A=THHHEBREH EEEZS S H=E steel slag for production (“Steel Slag Supply”) for the
HTREHRERRAERE KB ([KEH periods from 1 January 2011 to 31 August 2013 and from
Bl ZmEE  RBEMEER (DR A 1 September 2013 to 30 September 2015 under Hunan
[BE— R EEMBHEBINIE ZRFEE Taiji's joint venture agreement (the “First Taiji Arbitration
hEERE]) ° Application” and the “Second Taiji Arbitration Application”

respectively).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. RIREFR (%)

(a)

(&)

R=ZZ—RF—F - 5 GEM) ZEMF
HEEBSENEBE —AREMFPHRE
ZHOR B (M) ZRERZZE—tF
NAZHESERNEEEASHAR
#13,850,0007T °

R-_ZT—tERA B EM RS
ZRREMRRFELE—FRERSR
FOBRESMEALIAZZE—AFA
A=Z+BERZEER=_ZE—~FN\A
=+—H8 REFTRESEHOARE
71,485,0007T ' WKW EHHEEZE S
B HERAMEIRERMEBR  FHir
M AR VB

R-ZZT—NERA HBEM) KE
F_RFEMPH-RBZHAE ([HA
£ Bt (HR81E) BRI EER
B (EM) SN - —mFE—A—H
E-T—NENA=+—BHEREtE
TR ZEEH ARM30,097,0007T ° A
i ERMERER —_T—NFEANAN
BRISZ 2 B51E - 5B GEM) 1 R
MEERTHAARER ([EEMHHK
EBT ) IR R BIFAITRG - ZHBER
TE-NFLtA-t+hhBELRES -
Hig  BERESEN-_Z—-AENARAB
MAP I RmE R ARZER ([HER
mAREER ) IREH ERBEHAE 2 #H
o RIBERN-_Z—hE+A=Z+Ah
BREE R mHRRERERE AR
el (BM) &BRZZ—NF
+—AZTNBESEE(ME5) KB
AR E o

AEERESRBE _ZT-—R"FALA—BE
F e T 8 A 5| 2 2 A] RE BR 1B HE R
HERBUE—FTHSIORREER - A
RZEERE - FMEAGE ([FEF

#D
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
36. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(@)

(continued)

In January 2015, Junefield Building Material was awarded
the First Taiji Arbitration Application by the Arbitration
Commission. Junefield Building Material ultimately
received the compensation in the amount of approximately
RMB13,850,000 from Lianyuan Steel on 2 August 2017.

In May 2017, Junefield Building Material further filed an
application to extend the claiming period ended from 30
September 2015 to 31 August 2016 with a revised claim
amount of approximately RMB71,485,000 in respect of the
Second Taiji Arbitration Application and it was successfully
accepted by the Arbitration Commission.

In May 2019, Junefield Building Material received the
arbitral award for the Second Taiji Arbitration Application
(the “Arbitral Award”), pursuant to which, among others,
Lianyuan Steel is liable to pay Junefield Building Material
the compensation for the supply shortfall for the period
from 1 January 2014 to 31 August 2016 amounting to
approximately RMB30,097,000. However, Lianyuan Steel
failed to pay the compensation before 9 June 2019.
Junefield Building Material filed an application for mandatory
execution with the Intermediate People’s Court of Loudi
City, Hunan Province, the PRC (“Loudi Intermediate Court”)
which was accepted on 29 July 2019. Subsequently,
Lianyuan Steel lodged an application for requesting
withdrawal of the Arbitral Award with the Fourth Intermediate
People’s Court of Beijing, the PRC (“Beijing Intermediate
Court”) on 5 August 2019, which was rejected by Beijing
Intermediate Court pursuant to court’s ruling dated 29
October 2019. Junefield Building Material ultimately received
the compensation (note 5) plus related interest on 29
November 2019.

The Group is in the course of seeking legal advice on further
action for possible compensation on the supply shortfall
commenced from 1 September 2016 onward against
Lianyuan Steel and considering filling further applications for
arbitration proceedings (the “Arbitration Application”).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

36. FKRFFER (8]E) 36. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)
by RZZE—-hAhE-_A=-+=-8 HBGE (b) On 22 February 2019, Junefield Building Material was
M) ENEEEENEEERETRRE informed by Hunan Taiji that a notice of response to
bttt B A-—ZTE—NF_A+=H action (JEFFEEIZ) dated 12 February 2019 from Loudi
JEFERAEZE B ERMNE (EA Intermediate Court, was received, pursuant to which
BEHEAR-_ZE—NFHhAERERE Lianyuan Steel, as plaintiff, had in September 2018
R ARREZ RS N ERE requested a court judgement to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to
BEMELILRI AR RE - the termination of Hunan Taiji’s joint venture agreement due

to the prolonged shareholders’ disputes.

REUGEERZZE—NFNAZTEHAH The court hearing of this case has been held on 25
FERRA - HAEBERZZE=ZZTF—A+N September 2019 and the ruling was given on 19 January
HEW - Bt - BEAREORARIRE 2020, pursuant to which the request for a court judgement
2 EHA G  RBEREGEHERL to dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan
AIRRUR AR EMN B RKEHEEE - ER Taiji’s joint venture agreement due to the prolonged
MEELMPEE S %J}U\E,iﬁn s shareholders’ disputes was rebutted. Lianyuan Steel has
BERDIRRBAA ST _ZTF— A filed an appeal dated 23 January 2020 to the Higher
ZT+=H8 L& BRI AIRAUAER People’s Court of Hunan Province (“Higher Court”) to
Ho request immediate dissolution of Hunan Taiji.

s (M) W hme AR EL R A Junefield Building Material received a civil ruling dated 14
ZEEFTATHBZREHAAE - October 2020 issued by the Higher Court, pursuant to which
Bt =4 ﬁiIF{’Etlj ‘#Ui}&ﬂa%ﬁﬁ%?ﬁqﬂ & the Higher Court ruled that the civil ruling dated 19 January
FEREHEBRAZTE_TF—A+NA 2020 issued by the Loudi Intermediate Court was withdrawn
ZEEHREE - MMERER AR and Hunan Taiji should be dissolved from the effective date
A A AR AR AR ([ R AREOR ) o BRAREK of the ruling (the “Dissolution Ruling”). The Dissolution Ruling
R EAEHR j’[EﬁA‘%‘%iqLﬂ is final and took effect on 21 October 2020. Subsequently
== Elti;d( HER-_ZE_ZF+ on 31 October 2020, Junefield Building Material received a
A=+—8" H*(%M)%@'J/L/ﬁﬁﬂﬁ letter from Lianyuan Steel requesting for proceed with the
x/\/ﬁﬂﬁa\%ﬁﬁf{ BE7EK e dissolution of Hunan Taiji.
BEAEBRBIAEERZEZRZER - Based on the legal opinion of the Group’s PRC legal
MEREEEATE R ARERER advisors, Hunan Taiji is entitled to lodge an application with
B FE BRI EE AR B AR - I B B E TR SR the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC for requesting
B ESRPAR RE 2 A SRR AR a retrial to withdraw the Dissolution Ruling and rebut the
EK/EHFTZEEDJ?E’AE%IZ@%EE- (IB®E request made by Lianyuan Steel for court judgement to
k) RZBE_ZTF+_F x5EE dissolve Hunan Taiji prior to the termination of Hunan Taiji’s
Ek;&ﬁ%- ko Bl ZREARERT joint venture agreement (the “Retrial Request”). In December
BEBRKZEBINER_ZE=_—%F=H 2020, the Group lodged the Retrial Request. On 12 March
+ =B - 2021, notice of acceptance of the Retrial Request was

received from the Supreme People’s Court of the PRC.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. KR

(b)

( il )

(&)

RZEZ—FZA—8 - H5E(EM) K
BRmERMHARERFLABRAE-T
Z—F—AZ+RAEZREHTEE &
gt - BEMHRAOEE S EMEREIL AR
BREEAEAENETAHRNEI TS
F o R IR ER 8 E SOR T $8 2R
EETEGEE - At mREEE R
HEENABHEHERETRGEE
([RENEEEE]D - RIBEAEEFEE
BERZEEER  BHBEHT AR
BEE YR E-_—F—A=+,H
B AR o

REASETEAZBRNER A2
AEERR  BUIBERELTIETE
BEBRZBERATEEFEHRPE -

REBE-_Z-_ZF+_A=+— EIM:E
EA - ﬁﬁﬁIETfEA$%IEM\ EiEH
E};%i%%’éfiﬁ”\]ﬁlunaﬁl\ﬁﬂ$%l%ﬁ

METHFERR P ME 42,614,000
RR(CE—hAh&E+-_A=+—8":

1,000,000% ) - ZMEHR D A1 HE
PR -ZZF-_—FWNAREARITTNER
Ao BREBIIBRIRELE AN - HR
REVEAEREAMAR  Hib - RIBEA
BERER %$WF%K%I?H//J¥<??‘
BINRRIE

AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
36. OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 1 February 2021, Junefield Building Material received
a civil ruling dated 26 January 2021 issued by the
Loudi Intermediate Court, pursuant to which the Loudi
Intermediate Court ruled that Hunan Taiji failed to
proceed with the dissolution within 15 days pursuant to
the Dissolution Ruling and it accepted the request from
Lianyuan Steel for implementing a mandatory dissolution by
the court, hence Hunan Taiji should proceed to a mandatory
dissolution implemented by the court from the effective date
of this ruling (the “Mandatory Dissolution Ruling”). Based
on the legal opinion of the Group’s PRC legal advisors, the
Mandatory Dissolution Ruling is final and took effect on 26
January 2021.

Based on the opinions of the Group’s PRC legal advisors,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Mandatory Dissolution Ruling will not affect the acceptance
of the Retrial Request and the possible Arbitration
Application.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were two
ongoing claims against the Group totaling approximately
Soles 2,614,000 (31 December 2019: Soles 1,000,000)
regarding the fatal accidents occurred in a mining site
operated by the Group in Peru. Settlement hearings
were scheduled to be held in April and July 2021 for the
two cases respectively. The accidents were covered by
insurance policy. As the claims are being handled by the
lawyer, the directors have taken the view that no additional
compensation should be borne by the Group based on legal
opinion and no provision for contingent liabilities in respect
of the claims is necessary.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HE_Z_TF+_A=+—HLEFE UGB TIME)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37.BERFRS

PRt FhR A M BmA M 28 k36 E 2 X 5
Sh s REBREFERBRETETUNTEAR

5

In addition to the transactions detailed in notes 28 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

material transactions with related parties during the year:

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
orza FHET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
s (£E) AR A YEAE Management fees charged by Junefield
BB (Holdings) Limited (i) 1,080 1,080
44 B SR A R A 7 U ERAY Management fees charged by New
BT Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (i) 689 1,418
R EBE RIS EBRA A Management fees income from Macrolink
U ER 89 B 38 B U A International Investment Co. Ltd. (i) 2,150 2,469
FERRE IR AR A A Short-term lease expense charged by
WHER Y 52 BATE & F =2 FERE A ERERAA (ii) 56 136
REBMMHEBRZERFH Agency commission fee income from
ERZEAR AR BEMNTHERREFMEREBRA A
REBEBRA (i) 1,296 -
AR ER R ERE AR Interest expense charged by
A E A F) B 2 B EREERZE AR AR (ir) = 745
mJunefield Mining S.A.C. Purchase of mineral concentrates from
HERERE Junefield Mining S.A.C. (iii) 1,281 1,707
RN SRS IR B S R B One-time handling fee income for provision
—REFEBRA of financial guarantee to Jinzhou Rongxin (iv) = 136

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE (CABRIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

37. BELXZ (&)
(a) BEZ 2EAXR S (&)

Bzt

(i)

(i)

ARBRTEFARZALENRARLLE -
Witk (RE) BRARER EmEx - §A
ERBETRATNTKRHE °

ARBEFERATEEBERENZEME
ARTHAEGEL © BAREBRTIAFH
77 HRBE °

Junefield Mining S.A.C.B— R EEM
RIAKAR  HERATERKREEHRS -

RBE-_T_ZTF+_A=+—HBILFE
R AEER—FERTRAELETREY
¥ DMERBMNRERIBMHERTE AR
8,000,0007T (485 1 #9,568,0007% 7T.) (=
T — N 4F : AR#¥8,000,000t (HERH
8,952,000/ 7T ) ) KRB FI BT AR B R E
EZEFR REE_Z—NE+-_A=+—
AIEFEA @ AEE RIS ERER SR
WM&z — R FEE AR120,0007T (H6
LR #1136,00087T) - BREE— 15 W
B2 B AR S M R M 528 o

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Significant transactions with related parties
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(il

(iv)

Mr. Zhou, a close family member of Mr. Zhou Jianren (an executive
director of the Company), has beneficial interests in Junefield
(Holdings) Limited. The monthly management fees were mutually
agreed between the contracting parties.

Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive director of the Company,
has beneficial interests in these related companies. The fees and
prices were mutually agreed between the contracting parties.

Junefield Mining S.A.C. is a company incorporated in Peru and is
ultimately wholly-owned by Mr. Zhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group pledged certain
of its investment properties in favour of a bank as security for the
repayment obligations of Jinzhou Rongxin for partial loan principal
amount of RMB8,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$9,568,000
(2019: RMB8,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$8,952,000)
and related interest. The Group received from Jinzhou Rongxin
one-time handling fee of RMB120,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$136,000) for provision of financial guarantee during the year ended
31 December 2019. Further details please refer to note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) BFAEBE2FTEEBAEZH (b) Compensation of key management personnel
& of the Group
—E-FF —TNF
2020 2019
THExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEEERET Short term employee benefits 2,292 2,292
BERAE T Post-employment benefits 58 56
ENETEERBABZHELRE Total compensation paid to key
management personnel 2,350 2,348

tREFZERABETHNREETRS
WEBK EMRANFI4AZTEE 2B
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The above related party transactions with key management
personnel do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. EE s ZzE&RT A 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
RpEHEERE - SERSMTACZER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
(ERCENE instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

DAFE
FTERHE

BEETA  LEBEAAE
BENER TR

BE SREE et
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total

TR FHET TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

—EEE 2020
JFE UL BR 3R Accounts receivable - 932 932
BEEEMNKIE ek Financial assets included in prepayments,

HWEWRB S EE deposits and other receivables - 1,081 1,081
FEUN R A A 218 Amounts due from related companies - 1,095 1,095
WAFEEFEAEZETA Financial instruments at fair value

BmmemTA through profit or loss

— FTRRAEE (FE) — Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 15,706 - 15,706
Re RIBITES Cash and bank balances - 6,893 6,893

15,706 10,001 25,707
AR (A
sfrEAHE
FEET A DA AR
B=H oM FTER
BE TREE et
Financial
Financial assets at
assets at amortised
FVTPL cost Total
TAT TAT TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-NEF 2019
& I BR =X Accounts receivable = 3,171 3,171
BREEEMNRIE - E2 K Financial assets included in prepayments,

HitEW Bz ot EE deposits and other receivables - 1,927 1,927
FEU B E A R A Amounts due from related companies = 328 328
WAFEF=EAEZEHTA Financial instruments at fair value

BmemTA through profit or loss

— PR E (FHF) - Listed equity investments (Hong Kong) 19,781 - 19,781
B4 RIRTTHE Cash and bank balances = 35,784 35,784

19,781 41,210 60,991

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED -~
¥ o= BB A B B A 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 # #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=1+—HBI-FE CABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

38. REE s/ T A (&) 38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)
D#BERATENSRAE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
—B-EF —E-NEF
2020 2019
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERTBR IR Accounts payable 4,801 4,515
BREEEMENFKIER Financial liabilities included in other
EiratzemasE payables and accruals 43,946 44,926
ARRERITKREMEES Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 28,980 33,060
B AR IE R A FIFRIE Amounts due to related companies 27,955 26,740
HEARE Lease liabilities 1,304 -
B IERE 4 Financial guarantee contract - 134
106,986 109,375
30. e TE 2 ANFEENLDFEEDHA 39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

EERENGE REABRSFEY BRE
R BRERNRE  ReREMREKRIEA
MEMEE BUKBEQRRE BN
R BREEMEMNFEREFAEZSR
BE FAERTLEMEER BMNBEERT
RE HERABARIETHEARNEE
MTRITVERZIAFEREEREERS

EREERABZATERENR ST ER
BRETXBREBTAZSEAR  BHI%
AEEERI - ARG A FEZTERR
R :

FTRAREZAFEDUATSRERE
B ARFAZESTRRBMGETEMG 25T
RFE(GRAGREBBERRER) REELATE
28 (MARFEFEBREZEHF ABIH
AREME @ sHAGABRRR)BAE - AR
SRBEBEEABREHRARABEZEE-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies, accounts payable, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities
and guarantee given to a bank in connection with facilities granted
to a related company approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The directors believe that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for equity investments at FVTPL, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate values at the
end of the reporting period.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE—T - TFE+ - A=1+—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

3. PRMITAZAFERLIFEIR 39
(&)
DFEDR
TRITAEBESHMTAZ AFEFRA R -

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s financial instruments.

BRAEETEZEE Assets measured at fair value
£ B E= @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FHET FHET FHET FHT
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
R-ZE-ZF As at 31 December 2020:
+=—H=+—8:
A EEBHEEEE A Financial instruments at FVTPL
ExmemIT A
—EmRAEE — Listed equity investments 15,706 - - 15,706
RZZE—h&F As at 31 December 2019:
+t-A=+—8:
LAAE(EE 8 B E# &) A Financial instruments at FVTPL
BamemT A
— FTRAEKE - Listed equity investments 19,781 - - 19,781

RAFEE TERE-REE_FHZ2AFE
AFEER TEEASIBHE=R(=Z—H
FE) -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s exposure to the
risk of changes in market interest rates was considered
insignificant in management’s opinion as the Group had
no borrowings with floating interest rates as at the year
end. The Group currently does not hedge its exposure to
interest rate risks. However, the management monitors the
interest rate risk exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. A 100 basis
points increase and decrease are used and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank borrowings had
been 100 basis points higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s loss before tax for the year
ended 31 December 2019 would increase by approximately
HK$25,000 as a result of the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings. If the interest rate
on interest-bearing bank borrowings had been 100 basis
points lower and all other variables were held constant,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss
before tax. The Group has no variable-rate borrowings as at
31 December 2020.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE—T - TFE+ - A=1+—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. Bt ISR ETE B 1Y R BUR ()

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

AEBEHRZEHRAR - ZFRBRK
BEEBEMERAEMNREEEININEH
EITZHERRE - ARBEZETREE
REBHURTBERWE  MEEXRD
ZRAMORXZYAARE - REBKE
TETT REXRB LB EERAREY
AAR®E - REBRETIIE -

A B B AL NS EPIR o AAT
ERETYERINEAR  LEERE
P R A 2 SN S TRLR -

BB TTES T - AN AR
FEMR - Bt - HRB T E8ERED
Frepslks - TRETEMEEME RS
FRABZBERT AKBERBAER
(REBEERABATFEZIHIE) X
AEE D ENBERHERFEAR
BEXRZ AR EEE CBURE -

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s major operations and businesses are located
in the PRC and Peru and substantially all transactions are
conducted in RMB, Soles and USD. All the assets and
liabilities of these businesses are denominated in RMB,
Soles and USD.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, relevant foreign currency risk
is minimal. Accordingly, their fluctuation is excluded from
the sensitivity analysis. The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities)
and the Group’s equity.

ERMM MREEAIE B M,
CR2) (), "D (R ) *
(Increase)/
Increase/ decrease Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
% FAT FAT
% HK$’000 HK$'000
—EZBF 2020
AT ARKEE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (1,097) -
BT AREAE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 1,097 -
—E=—NE 2019
AT ARKEE If HK$ weakens against RMB 5 (569) =
BT E ARKHE If HK$ strengthens against RMB (5) 569 -
* TBREREE * Excluding accumulated losses

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

E B EAXER LT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. I EREE BN RBEE (18) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
(b) e Bz (&) (b) Foreign currency risk (continued)
BEEERL  BARERANE R &R In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
FAMRERE - BRI EKE unrepresentative of the inherent exchange risk as the year
B W SN [ end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
(c) BREEEW A (c) Equity price risk
% B 4% R B 75 I AN 38 25 2 A B A R Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
EIRBUKTE RERIFZFEELIEEZEMm securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of
WAL ZER RZE_TFR_ZT—N equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
F+ZA=1+—H8 AEEEH 2 KRE Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
BRERKEINNANAEEF=AEE equity investments classified as financial instruments at
it AlBmm e T A2 @RI ARK FVTPL as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The Group’s
B AKBERBRMETZ FTHRET) listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are
R E R AR M EME - valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.
RAFEEELIBRERRIRFIBEE The market equity indices for the Stock Exchange, at the
H% FIEERE - BT 2 MG EEE M close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
EXBZFARSELHEZMAT : the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest
and lowest points during the year were as follows:
—EB-EF B/ & —hE =/ &
+=A=+-—H High/low +=—A=+—H High/low
31 December —E-ZH 31 December —
2020 2020 2019 2019
B 22 B Stock Exchange
— 1B A 5 & - Hang Seng Index 27,147 29,056/ 28,190 30,157/
21,696 25,064

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

HE—T - TFE+ - A=1+—HIFEXBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
40. I REEEEE N REEK (8) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) REERERR (&) (c)

TRETEMBEEGEHERTZE AR
ABMERZEZBERAT RAREZRF
BEEEH5% BRE - HREBRKRE
RBERRAERK ZREEFE -

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period.

B %t A A5 1R g m

REE ®P(GEm) (R ) *
Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss (decrease)
amounts before tax in equity*
THET FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-EE 2020
BEETR : Investments listed in:
BAE-NURFEFEEE Hong Kong - financial
P ABENETRIA instruments at FVTPL 15,706 785/(785) -
—ZT-NF 2019
BELETR : Investments listed in:
EH-UAFEFERE Hong Kong - financial
BEABENEHITA instruments at FVTPL 19,781 989/(989) =
TBRIERTER Excluding accumulated losses

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z_ZF+_A=t—HLEFEUAETIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

MEEEEEENREE (&)

AEBETHRTESMEEZ A KEE
B URBEREFEHRGHTNEEEER
B EHE R - W IBERRIER BB
ﬁ gEoh - A E E HRE A B U R
FE IR E S BEEHEZ - RS
TH&Z@MET’F&E%’JM@%E o

AEEHEbeREE(BRES RS

EEY  BREERMNRIE - ?Zi’i\&,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ

F‘HﬂlzﬁlﬁﬂﬁimﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁuﬁlFﬁL

IE)EI’M:.EH %ELi’ﬁﬁFE
R EREFR A:I/E\-WEEE{E

HRASEERERYREEECFEF=F
HETEE WEFEFR R-_ZT=F
FR-_FT-—hF+-_A=+—H A&
ESARFRAEBAATFPTEEL
FREERERESEERHBER -

AP 18RI EE - A E LB YR
REAB I ERFTERREERSRE -

%EAFEH&EE%KL‘MI\E’J%%E%{FM&ﬁﬁk
BERED  AKBEEEELAVBERY
IR HER ET%J—%LZﬁE}]—JAb'E W& 1E
BERRBEEZREERARECEREE
g AEEERREE DS KREE
e AEEKHRE A EEXERERE
A #) BY J Bee BR ) 4R TE SR BSS B 32 40 LR
ETHER - AEEEEEEE LAl X FF
HYRTRE 12 8 o A& B 3L B UERFKEASN
F & B8 E AR SRR & A5k A 0 {E
DRURBREEER R K AE & E 5D
BHETERREE -
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The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition, the
Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual accounts receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and amounts due from related companies, arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. At 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk arising from the
Group’s accounts receivable that were due from the Group’s
largest customer or the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses for accounts receivable as disclosed in note
18.

For financial assets other than accounts receivable and
for financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
probability of default upon initial recognition of the asset or
financial guarantee and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the asset or underlying loan as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. The Group uses
four categories for financial assets other than accounts
receivable and for financial guarantee contract which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. Bt ISR ETE B 1Y R BUR ()

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

28 rEBEBEIENES BARHMCEFRENER
Category Group definition of category Basis for recognition of ECL
iEakes RSB FHELDRR DA - B EEFE KA 12{A BB REEEE
Performing The counterparty has a low risk of default and does  12-month ECL
not have any past due amounts
7 &t B YRR EEERR D KCBREEM REGFEDHEREEBE - R EARE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit risk Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired
since initial recognition
B FREBERTNEECERRE REGEPEAEEBE - ERRE
Default There is evidence indicating the asset is credit Lifetime ECL — credit impaired
impaired
i ERBETEBABRERENVHERNE mAKE BBEMHE
Y [B] FRIE ) 7 B 5
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off

severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
maximum exposure to credit risk for financial guarantee
contract.

TRBETIAR-E_EER _ZT—NF
+TZ A=+ —AREBEASEMNEEER
BEMEHREEREREERR Ex
E@EER AEMR  RIEEMELE
AHTERASKE DB ATERS - BitE
Alim e IS AeREENERT
RENRVBERGEONESEERR
e e

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_Z-_TF+-_A=+—HIFE (CABRIIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) Credit risk (continued)

40. Bt ISR ETE B Y R BUR ()

(d) EERE (&)
B 5 B B LR R OF A B B B R 7

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

2 (&) (continued)
128 A B
EEER ERGENRNEERR
12 month ECL Lifetime ECL
E-K& B-R& BZKR B A% @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
THT T T THL THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z-2F+-A=1—H Asat31 December 2020
FEMBR Accounts receivable* - - 932 932
BRERATE KBER Financial assets included in prepayments,
HitEWH B e REE deposits and other receivables
~EE~ - Normal* 1,081 - - 1,081
FERBERRFIE Amounts due from related companies
~Eg~ - Normal"* 1,005 - - 1,095
BeRBTES Cash and bank balances
—KaH ~ Not yet past due 6,893 - - 6,893
RETEEATMBELT  Guarantees given to a bank in connection
RITHELR with facllities granted to a related company
—HELRRRNEEN - Guaranteed portion of facilties drawn
BERDA by a related company
-ARH - Not yet past due 9,592 - - 9,502
18,661 - 932 19,593
RZE-NF+-A=1+—H Asat31 December 2019
R Accounts receivable* = = 3171 3171
BARERMNTE Kek Financial assets included in prepayments,
HuEWTE S REE deposits and other receivables
—EE - Normal** 1,927 - = 1,927
YN B Amounts due from related companies
—EE" - Normal** 328 = = 328
BeRBTES Cash and bank balances
K — Not yet past due 35,784 = = 35,784
RETHELANAE Guarantees given to a bank in connection
BTRITNER with facilities granted to a related company
-BEATRINRBE - Guaranteed portion of facilities drawn by
NEERDS a related company
-KBH - Not yet past due 8,074 - - 8,074
47,013 - 3,171 50,184
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HE_Z_TF+_A=+—HLEFE UGB TIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. BB EKREEENREEE (8) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) EERE (&) (d) Credit risk (continued)
55 E B LR R F 42 R IE R Maximum exposure and year-end staging
35 (&) (continued)
* BEAAREEERBRER T AN EIER * For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
AR BRI ENERES A BER approach for impairment, information on the ECL calculation is

disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

RUTEE18AHEE -

*x BEEEMNZE  REREMEKSEY & - The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,

. . o N deposits and other receivables and amounts due from related
BE 2 DA T R M I 2 A BB MR B L post's & . ; ,
companies is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due

WHEEHKASHEENEERR B 118 and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
MRBORKRBEZ LT EZREEeWE A significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
[T T8 ¢REAENERES RS credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
RITERE] ©
(e) RBESRAK (e) Liquidity risk
AEB ZHRRNTHERARSHES T The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
K oBREGRTEEHESHEBEUERNRE requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
B SRR oRBESF K - RIT of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short,
M—REETEIERERR - medium and longer term. Banking and general facilities have

been put in place for contingency purposes.

REBRHESRME  NEFERK In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
BIEHEFE—IKEZIRERBEESEEY - M and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
ZKEEEERECHIREHAERS adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
BrAEASEERRIBRESRERS 2% operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
2o flows.

TRERAEB 2 &RBENHRE M The table below shows the maturity profile of the Group’s
EREBEASORTRMNR AR - financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
TERIBERESHAENEEREE based on the contractual undiscounted payments. The
RZGEHHTERABA T BEFEANEEIRE amount included below for financial guarantee contract is
BRALTH AR EHEREBEYNR the maximum amount the Group could be required to settle
ST under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that

amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFEGIBETIIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

40. Bt ISR ETE B Y R BUR ()

RERD =%
=@ERAUAR +t=EAURA —ZhRE @at
On demand 3 to
or less than less than 1to5
3 months 12 months years Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-EFE 2020
FE S BR X Accounts payable 4,801 = - 4,801
B EMEMNFZIER  Financial liabilities included in
ErtafEzemasE other payables and accruals 43,946 = = 43,946
HEAE Lease liabilities 249 746 332 1,327
FFERITREMES Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 28,980 - - 28,980
B E R R IR Amounts due to related
companies 27,955 - - 27,955
MR TFEEAGNRE  Guarantees given to a bank
B TRITEOER in connection with facilities
granted to a related company 9,592 - - 9,592
115,523 746 332 116,601
—E-NF 2019
FERTBRR Accounts payable 4,515 = - 4,515
BIEfEEMEMNZIER  Financial liabilities included in
ErraEzemasE other payables and accruals 44,926 = = 44,926
SRR TREMES Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 31,256 1,881 = 33,137
FES B A R FIE Amounts due to related
companies 26,740 - - 26,740
MR TFEEARMNREE  Guarantees given to a bank
BT IRITHER in connection with facilities
granted to a related company 8,974 - - 8,974
116,411 1,881 - 118,292

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

40. BB EKREEENREEE (8) 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

AEEEAER 2 TEARRREAE
EIRSEREEERBELEZ N4
FREZEANLLE  AXFKEEBLRE

ERSKRREE-

RUEFLBEAAGE AEENEH
EEBIRN RS2 & BRETHB
-BE-T-TER-T-—NF+=
A=+ —RILFE  TERAERER
B8 BRERBRENES -

Ao B AR 15 2 R 25t R (B (5%
B L) EREAK - EHFE
RS E (R e A ARER
BRAREMER) RASERSSE
Wit -

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group monitors capital using the debt-to-total equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings (including amounts due
to related companies and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.

R_EBE_ZBER-_FT—HLE+=A The debt-to-total equity ratios at 31 December 2020 and
=t—HzEBHEERLENT : 2019 were as follows:
—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
wmigEg Total borrowings 56,935 59,800
B ReRBREEED Less: Cash and cash equivalents (6,830) (35,721)
(ER e Net debt 50,105 24,079
BRE T Total equity 119,002 178,967
BISH AR X Debt-to-total equity ratio 42% 13%

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

41.

H S E A

RBE_Z_ZF+_A=1T—HIHE
A+ Topshine Reward Limited ([ Topshine J)
(XRRIzEEZENBRAR) HBESE
VAHAEZZEZZTFNAZHMNEEHZ -
LA H & Genuine Crystal Limited ([ Genuine
Crystal |) REMBARMN 2 MBRAEE -
EHERERS BT ([ ZE_FHE
E18]) o Genuine Crystals — K& & 5 IR
A A EKE A E Bl Mighty Comforts

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Topshine Reward
Limited (“Topshine”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement dated
2 September 2020 with a related party, to dispose the entire
equity interests in Genuine Crystal Limited (“Genuine Crystal”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal 2020”) at a consideration of
HK$5,000. Genuine Crystal is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries include (i) Mighty Comforts Limited, an
investment holding company incorporated in the BVI, (ii) Profit

Limited * —"RREBERELZEEFMAZ 2K Land International Limited, an investment holding company
BN a) (i) A R ﬁﬁﬁ{@ﬁ F— KRN incorporated in Hong Kong and (iii) Profit Land Property

ERFEMARL 2 REZERAT : K(i) Profit
Land Property Development PROLANDPRO
SA —RKREMZRFEM L2 AR

CECEFHEFEER T EFNAC
HZATK —ZE_ZFHEFHENWNRA
£1#473,902,00087C - R - ZE - TFHEFA
1% - ANEB R Genuine Crystal & H KB
NEP T EREE R ER -

REBEZE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE
N Topshinel@ B FE=HFIZABAEZ
E-NF+—ANBRNEEHZ UALE
Lukewarm Gold Limited ([ Lukewarm|) & &
MEBAREARER AR ([FEH]) HE2HIAR
# %5 LA K Lukewarm/R Topshinefy i% 3 & 7
([REER]) - B #EERE /2,200,000
T ZE-—NFHRESFHE]) - BE=-ZT— 1
FHEEE - F#EWETopshines] SRR K& OH %

Development PROLANDPRO S.A., a company incorporated in
Ecuador.

The Disposal 2020 was duly completed on 2 September 2020.
The gain on the Disposal 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$3,902,000. Following the completion of the Disposal 2020,
the Group ceased to hold any interest in Genuine Crystal and its
subsidiaries.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Topshine entered into
the sale and purchase agreement dated 8 November 2019 with
an independent third party, to dispose the entire equity interests
in Lukewarm Gold Limited (“Lukewarm”) and its subsidiary,
Like Top Corporation Limited (“Like Top”), together with the
shareholder’s loan (“Shareholder’s Loan”) owing by Lukewarm
to Topshine at an aggregate consideration of HK$2,200,000
(“the Disposal 2019”). In connection with the Disposal 2019,
Like Top released and waived an aggregate of approximately

g ENEREBRECAEEREREGEY HK$15,303,000 interest-free loan owed by the Group to Like Top,
15,303 ooo/%jgs’\j%,ﬁ BEX - HEAKRKERRK by entering into a deed of release and discharge with Topshine,
JEREXH which is a non-cash transaction for the Group.

—E-hEHEEBEIR -_ZET—NLE+— The Disposal 2019 was duly completed on 18 November 2019.

B+N\BZA5HK ° %%%Dﬁ?ﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁs%@
303,000 & —E-NFHEFEN YR
A8 #13,320,0008TC c R=ZZE—NFHES
HER % - ANEB R Lukewarm R EEHR T B
A -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

The gain on the Disposal 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$3,320,000, after disposal related expenses of approximately
HK$303,000. Following the completion of the Disposal 2019, the
Group ceased to hold any interest in Lukewarm and Like Top.

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T_TF+_A=t—"HLEFEUAETIE)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

41. HEHWB LR (&) 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
—ECEF —ET—NF
HEEE HEEE
REEBRH R E B H
Disposal Disposal
2020 2019
At date of At date of
disposal disposal
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERAE Assets and liabilities
Y BB RERE(HE13) Property, plant and equipment (note 13) - 89
JE UK BR 3k Accounts receivable = 48
B FOE C Re R E A EL R IE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables = 697
JE Y7 &= B 3R IR Amount due from the Group = 15,303
Re RIBITES Cash and bank balances 44 194
JE 1~ BR 3K Accounts payable - (2,449)
Hfth fEAT SR IE R FEET B & Other payables and accruals (3,880) )
IR E Shareholder’s Loan — (36)
(3,836) 13,844
BE 5K B % Exchange fluctuation reserve (61) -
& AR R B 2 Disposal related expenses - 303
& W s (B7225) Gain on disposal (note 5) 3,902 3,320
5 17,467
AR Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 5 2,200
% Bk JE WA £ B 3B Discharge of amount due from the Group = 15,303
EZERRER Assignment of Shareholder’s Loan - (36)
5 17,467
EBRAHENBATINIRESRRESEEYH G An analysis of the net (outflow)/inflow of cash and cash
£/ mAEBEAMAT equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
—ECEF —E—NF
2020 2019
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BeRE Cash consideration 5 2,200
S AR B 2 Disposal related expense - (303)
HENR S RRITHER Cash and bank balances disposed of (44) (194)
BRALENBARNRE MRS Net (outflow)/inflow of cash and cash equivalents
ZEWHORE) R FE in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (39) 1,703

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020 & #
5 Z2 B & A8 R 2 A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NN T Z B B AR R R 42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
BBAANDTNREHBLRE VB ERDE Information about the statement of financial position of the
TEEMT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
i —E-hF
2020 2019
FET TFAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
RBEE Non-current assets
Y - B M ERE Property, plant and equipment 9 14
FREEE Right-of-use assets 1,314 =
KRB AR ZIEE Investments in subsidiaries 2,405 2,405
IEREBEELE Total non-current assets 3,728 2,419
REBEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 25,759 22,561
FER NI BE REMEIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 461 1,577
NGRS Amounts due from subsidiaries 80,551 96,982
IRAFEFEBEEZE ;AR Financial instruments at fair value through
MNemITA profit or loss 15,706 19,781
WL NIBITERS Cash and bank balances 209 10,154
mEEERE Total current assets 122,686 151,055
REBEE Current liabilities
HENTELETARE Other payables and accruals 13,676 13,128
STEEMEE Interest-bearing other borrowing 5,980 5,595
HEAE Lease liabilities 973 -
JE 1~ B B & R RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 10,189 7,764
mE B EAE Total current liabilities 30,818 26,487
REEEFE Net current assets 91,868 124,568
EERAERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 95,596 126,987
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 331 _
EEFRE Net assets 95,265 126,987
Ex Equity
AATEEANELESR Equity attributable to owners of the Company
fig A% Share capital 120,625 120,625
Gl Reserves (25,360) 6,362
R Total equity 95,265 126,987
= RE
Fu Kwan Zhang Jian
5% 5%
Director Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
HE_Z_TF+_A=+—HLEFE UGB TIME)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

42. NN T 2B BARREK (88) 42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
st :

Note:

ARAEBREOT

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

B 473 )i 18 BR E-S0 @t
Share
premium  Accumulated
account losses Total
FH&T FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
R-—ZE—AF—A—H At 1 January 2019 163,910 (63,779) 100,131
FEEEAAZAE Total comprehensive expense for the year - (93,769) (98,769)
R-ZB-—hhF+-_A=+—-HBRK At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
—ZE-TF—-H—H 163,910 (157,548) 6,362
FEEPEMAI AT Total comprehensive expense for the year - (31,722) (31,722)
R-ZB-Z2F+=-A=+-H At 31 December 2020 163,910 (189,270) (25,360)

43. FEHMREE
@ R=FT=—F=AN\A - RYHEW

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 8 February 2021, Shenzhen Macrolink entered into

4

EBMTRIREGR QA ([FrEEmg %
BRDFIVYEELZEEESR Bt - &
JFEBREN S —_—F_A/\Bi
E-T-_OF-A+ERAItZ=FHEA
MFEHEREETEERITEEY
XREMEELEEE  BEEBHAUKL
HiR%B((EEER]) -

HE T IR AR R MR 2 AN
BAR - REETRAFIAE - T3
B2 A R RIIA T BE T2 HBAA

e} (a)

RNAMBFEBERS o

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
WOE B E AR AR AF

a property operation and management contract (the
“Management Contract”) with #HIEMZERIEEBR A A
(“Macrolink Development”), pursuant to which Shenzhen
Macrolink agreed to provide property operation and
management, solicitation of business and tenants and other
related services in relation to certain owned and entrusted
properties for Macrolink Development for a period of three
years commencing from 8 February 2021 and ending on 7
February 2024.

Macrolink Development is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Macrolink Group. The entering into the
Management Contract and the transaction contemplated
thereunder constitute continuing connected transaction for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43. REHEREE (F)

(b)

R-ZE-——F=FFHH  ANABEHZH
ERONBEEREGRAR ([FEH
TND T EE W Bt AQF
ERHREEE My EHTMNE K
HREHENER TR 2 2R E (K
TEEKAMERSURDEETIEE
&) - #R(E A186,000,0007 T ([ U B
B2HE]) RENEEHZEER (A=
——®=AAA)EB &% 150,000,000
BILERRE - HERAMERERIE
BE AL - WEEE M ARTK -

BIE ETRAE14AE - WEFEBEK
ARRIZEHERS o

RirE M RARIEBD R - FEBBE
BIREMEER - ZEFEEBRIE
(VREE TYEEREWT - LUERHE
GIEEAR AR ([FEBREE]) (RF
B2 BREEAR  WAKRARE
FBRHTESEE BB A) EMART
ZEE - EHEFE - S8 BER
ELA KRBT EIRIBRIE T~ 2
F) R 350 5 2 AR B AN = 7 =% i B i 1
1R%E A AR ¥600,000,0007T ()R EE
TYEEBITIR - AERIEBITRE
BRAE (e ) (R R 2
BRETAR > XAKRQREFELRNIT
EEEEBEAN) ENBRITZEE
EAEFIE - B8 - BEFEL KR
BT IR BIHBHEB N A R HE
R EMKARAY - MEREAAR
#96,000,0007T : K (i) 2= Bt 122 A [F) =
BERNE R EBREER Y EIRIB AT
EMBRINER (BBAIMIEENR

#) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %

BE_T-TF+ - A=+t—HIEFEUABTIE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b)

On 5 March 2021, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with Macrolink Asia Industrial
Investment Limited (“Macrolink Asia”), pursuant to which
the Company conditionally agreed to purchase, and
Macrolink Asia conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity
interest of Macrolink Development, a company principally
engaged in property leasing and property management and
operations, at a total consideration of HK$186,000,000 (the
“Acquisition”). A deposit of HK$50,000,000 has been paid
on the date of signing of the sale and purchase agreement,
i.e., 5 March 2021. The Acquisition has not yet been
completed as at the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

The Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, there has been financial assistance provided
by Macrolink Development which includes: (i) to provide
certain properties as security to secure the indebtedness,
any accrued interest, penalty interest, compensation for
damages and any costs and expenses for enforcing the
rights and charges under property mortgage agreements
owed from HFEBBEEARR AR (“Macrolink Mineral”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability and an
associate of Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive
director of the Company, to a bank with a maximum
guarantee amount of RMB600,000,000; (ii) to provide
certain properties as security to secure the indebtedness,
any accrued interest, penalty interest, compensation for
damages and any costs and expenses for enforcing the
rights and charges under property mortgage agreements
owed from ¥TEBIERRAERAE] (“Macrolink Holding”), a
company established in the PRC with limited liability and an
associate of Mr. Fu Kwan, the chairman and an executive
director of the Company, to a bank with a guarantee amount
of RMB96,000,000; and (jiii) Macrolink Holding agreed to pay
Macrolink Development fees for the property mortgages for
and in favour of itself and Macrolink Mineral (collectively the
“Financial Assistance Agreements”).

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HoE KR EALAAERLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
43. FEMERSBE (F

(b)

(&)

RZZB-_—F=A0R HMEBHEECD
HFEMIERIIDEERGE &
It FEREROREREREREE
TEXRAEEMRETHERYEEE
(ThEEEBA] -

WEEHAFKESRERBREN LR
fRUER K R ER R IR - TR T °
RUFEERTK R - EBEREK S
ARBZHBAR - Bt - RIFEETR
AIEV4AE - ZEVHED BB LD E
EEBHER DR EREBRARF 2
AERSGR/RFERERS -

44. it ELG SRR

REVBBREN T —F=-A=THEE
EHEL AT -

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o

i

E X E R 2 A

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 5 March 2021, Macrolink Development has entered
into the property management agreement with Macrolink
Holding, pursuant to which Macrolink Holding has
authorised Macrolink Development to conduct the leasing
and property management of certain properties entrusted for
management (the “Property Management Agreement”).

Following the completion of the Acquisition subject to the
fulfilment and/or waiver of the conditions precedent to the
sale and purchase agreement of the Acquisition, Macrolink
Development will become a subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, the Financial Assistance Agreements and the
Property Management Agreement will constitute connected
transactions and/or continuing connected transaction of the
Company upon completion under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

44. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 % #
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES "

REBR-_ZT_TF+_A=T—HZREME

Details of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2020

HEWMT - are as follows:
BREEEE
i B (F 7 3K) HEE R AR
Approximate
gross floor area Category of
Location (square meter) the lease term Use
Office units 708, 728, 731, 732, B b R T R 851 {5 A [EES
734, 735, 1132, TR IR E N FHARN ZZ PO F Commercial
1510 and 1516 of Tower 1 HEESE =R=—+—HER
Junefield Plaza 708 ~ 728 ~ 731 » Land use rights
No. 6 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie 732 -~ 734 - 735 for a term expired
Xi Cheng District, Beijing 1132 - 1510 % on 21 March 2044
the PRC 1516 E N By
Office units 725-729 on Level 7 R BR HE 2T P O R 744 —+ {5 A RE [EES
and 917 on Level 9 of Tower 2 FRMENKRE R FHARN Z TP PO 5 Commercial
Junefield Plaza B ESE R =AZ+—BE®R
No. 10 Xuan Wu Men Wai Dajie TIET725RT729E Land use rights

Xi Cheng District, Beijing
the PRC

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F %
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for a term expired
on 21 March 2044
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LEMBHRE
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

E RESULTS
BE+-—A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
BB —TNF —_ZT-N\F —ZT—+F —T—RHF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FHET FHET TR FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
SRS E T Continuing Operations
A Revenue 262,463 337,839 184,704 36,275 154,401
FELEEL 2 Loss before tax from
Br T A S 18 continuing operations (72,542) (102,143)  (139,665) (63,891) (51,881)
Frafi (Bix) %  Income tax (expense)/credit (904) 3,624 7,765 1,029 2,195
FEICEEE 2 Loss for the year from
FEBE continuing operations (73,446) (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862) (49,686)
BRIEEEEBR 2 Loss for the year from
FEEE discontinued operations - - - - (1,953)
FEEE Loss for the year (73,446) (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862) (51,639)
FE{L Attributable to:
ZIN/NETE7F SN Owners of the Company (64,848) (88,810)  (111,784) (44,895) (36,495)
FEFE IR A Non-controlling interests (8,598) (9,809) (20,116) (17,967) (15,144)
(73,446) (98,619)  (131,900) (62,862) (51,639)
> ==
EERARE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R+=—HA=+—H
At 31 December
—E-EF —T-NF ZE-)\F ZT—tF ZZT—F
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
TER FHET FHT FHT FH T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEHE Total assets 268,582 329,261 393,394 440,295 483,730
BEHEE Total liabilities (149,580) (150,294)  (133,527)  (145,647)  (139,012)
119,002 178,967 259,867 294,648 344,718
FE(hfE R Equity attributable to:
NATEE A Owners of the Company 106,547 159,101 229,684 241,836 278,838
FEIE AR = Non-controlling interests 12,455 19,866 30,183 52,812 65,880
119,002 178,967 259,867 294,648 344,718

MACROLINK CAPITAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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